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PART I
Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Disclosures
This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Report”) includes, and incorporates by reference, certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
federal securities laws. Statements that are not historical facts, including statements about our beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements include statements preceded by, followed by or that include the words “may,” “could,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “expect,”
“plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “intend,” “predict,” “seek,” “contemplate,” “potential” or “continue” and similar expressions. These forwardlooking statements reflect the current expectations of Turtle Beach Corporation concerning future events and actual results may differ materially from current
expectations or historical results. Any such forward-looking statements are subject to various risks and uncertainties, including without limitation those
discussed in the sections of this Report entitled “Business Overview,” “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.”
Forward-looking statements are only predictions and are not guarantees of performance. These statements are based on our management’s beliefs and
assumptions, which in turn are based on currently available information. Important assumptions relating to the forward-looking statements include, among
others, assumptions regarding demand for our products, the expansion of product offerings geographically or through new marketing applications, the timing
and cost of planned capital expenditures, competitive conditions and general economic conditions. These assumptions could prove inaccurate. Forwardlooking statements also involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, which could cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in
any forward-looking statement. In addition, even if our actual results are consistent with the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, those results may not be indicative of results or developments in subsequent periods. Many of these factors are beyond our ability to control or
predict. Such factors include, but are not limited to, the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The availability of capital under our revolving credit facility and term loan;
Our dependence on the success and availability of third-party platforms and software to drive sales of our headset products;
Continued relationships with our largest customers;
Our ability to adapt to new technologies and introduce new products on a timely basis;
The impact of competitive products, technologies and pricing;
The impact of seasonality on our business;
Manufacturing capacity constraints and difficulties;
Current and future transitions in video gaming console platforms and the potential impact on our business;
The scope of protection we are able to establish and maintain for intellectual property rights covering our technology;
Our ability to forecast demand for our products;
Estimates of our future revenues, expenses, capital requirements and our needs for additional financing;
Cybersecurity and other information technology risks;
Our success at managing the risks involved in the foregoing items;
Our financial performance; and
Other factors discussed under Item 1A - Risk Factors or elsewhere in this Report.

Except as required by applicable law, including the securities laws of the United States and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”), we undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements after we file this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
whether as a result of any new information, future events or otherwise. Investors, potential investors and other readers are urged to consider the above
mentioned factors carefully in evaluating the forward‑looking statements and are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward‑looking statements.
Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results or performance.
Unless the context indicates otherwise, all references in this Report to “we,” “our,” “us,” “the Company,” and “Turtle Beach” refer to Turtle Beach
Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
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Item 1 - Business Overview
Turtle Beach Corporation, headquartered in San Diego, California and incorporated in the state of Nevada in 2010, is a premier audio technology
company with expertise and experience in developing, commercializing and marketing innovative products across a range of large addressable markets under
the Turtle Beach® and HyperSound® brands. Turtle Beach is a worldwide leading provider of feature-rich headset solutions for use across multiple platforms,
including video game and entertainment consoles, handheld consoles, personal computers, tablets and mobile devices. HyperSound technology is an
innovative patent-protected sound technology that delivers immersive, directional audio offering unique potential benefits in a variety of commercial
settings and consumer devices, including improved clarity and comprehension for listeners with hearing loss.
VTB Holdings, Inc. (“VTBH”), the parent holding company of the historical headset business, was incorporated in the state of Delaware in 2010 with
operations principally located in Valhalla, New York. Voyetra Turtle Beach, Inc. (“VTB”) was incorporated in the state of Delaware in 1975.
The Company's stock is traded on NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol HEAR.
Headset Business
Turtle Beach launched its first gaming headset in 2005 and has grown to be the leading brand in gaming audio, and designs and markets premium audio
peripherals for video game consoles, personal computers and mobile devices, including headsets for PlayStation®4 consoles and officially-licensed headsets
for the Xbox One consoles. Turtle Beach branded headsets are distributed internationally across North America, South America, Europe, the Middle East,
Africa, Australia, and Asia, and sold at thousands of storefronts, including major retailers such as Amazon, Argos, Best Buy, Game, GameStop, EB Games,
Target, and Walmart.
We offer a variety of headsets, spanning multiple wired and wireless retail price points ranging from $20 to $300 and have offerings across all major
gaming platforms. Our price tiers correspond to customer profiles, beginning with “Entry-Level” gamers and progressing through “Casual,” “Enthusiast” and
“Core.” Each successive price tier incorporates a higher level of finishing, features and technology, progressing from passive mono to amplified stereo,
surround sound, and programmable surround sound. Premium headsets have padded leather headbands, accent stitching, and noise-isolating memory foam
ear cups. Other features in certain of our premium headsets include removable microphones, breakaway cables and “charge-and-play” batteries that allow
gamers to continue playing even as they recharge their batteries. As gaming consoles have evolved from dedicated video game platforms to home
entertainment hubs, and as mobile devices have become platforms for entertainment, we have continued to evolve our headsets to reflect how content is
consumed.
Each headset model is designed for a “primary” platform, such as a specific console or for the PC platform, though many can be used with multiple
platforms, and most are compatible with mobile devices. A primary platform and unique packaging often results in the products being represented in the
applicable platform area by retailers, increasing the prominence of Turtle Beach products in physical retail locations and online catalogs.
Turtle Beach was the leading console gaming headset manufacturer in the U.S. with a 42% dollar share of the market, as noted by the December 2016
sales tracking data from The NPD Group, Inc, with four of the Top 5 third-party headsets for both the Xbox One and PlayStation®4.
Our 2016 was highlighted by:
•

Entered competitive gaming audio gear market with the Elite Pro Headset, which includes the groundbreaking ComforTec™ Fit System, and
partnered with top professional eSports organizations, OpTic Gaming and FaZe Clan;

•

Launched Stealth 350VR headset, the first and only headset created specifically for use with the new virtual reality devices like
PlayStation®VR, HTC Vive™; and

•

Launched Stream Mic, a professional-quality desktop microphone created for gamers livestreaming from their consoles.

HyperSound Business
HyperSound technology is a pioneering audio solution that provides an effective means of projecting sound in a highly directional manner, without use
of large speaker arrays, to a specific location creating a precise audio zone. HyperSound directs a beam of audio to targeted listeners in a specific spot,
delivering an immersive, 3D-like audio experience. The Company sells HyperSound Professional Audio Solutions, which is being purchased for commercial
retail environments where a targeted zone of sound is desired.
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We believe our technology offers a number of advantages over regular audio speakers, including:
• the ability to create a beam of sound and place it where it is intended;
•

the ability to deliver a beam of sound over longer distances; and

•

the ability to penetrate other competing ambient sounds to more effectively communicate.

HyperSound Glass, unveiled in June 2016, is similar in design to touchscreen glass, where there are multiple layers of transparent materials and
electronics working in conjunction with the glass. For HyperSound Glass, the glass pane is layered with a set of transparent films allowing it to generate a
beam of ultrasound that delivers crisp, clear audio to the targeted listener.
In September 2016, we started the process of restructuring the HyperSound business and winding down direct sales of the HyperSound Clear™ 500P
product, in an effort to reduce costs and align spending with revenues, while continuing to pursue certain additional opportunities, including licensing the
technology for HyperSound Glass and other applications.
Industry Overview
Gaming Headset Market
Sales in the gaming accessories market, which includes headsets and other peripherals such as gamepads, specialty controllers, adapters, batteries,
memory and interactive gaming toys are heavily dependent on the global video game industry. In 2013, the gaming industry experienced a cyclical event as
Microsoft and Sony each announced new consoles for the first time in eight years, and the consumer response to the Xbox One and PlayStation®4 (the “new
generation” or “new-gen” consoles) has been overwhelmingly positive, creating a new installed base of gamers and a market for new-gen headsets.
When new console platforms are introduced into the market, changes to their platforms impact how headset connect with or work with the new consoles
and, such as with the most recent consoles, required a transition of console gaming headsets and consumers reduced their purchases of game console
peripherals and accessories, including headsets, for old generation console platforms in anticipation of the new platforms becoming available.
The October 2016 Intelligence: Worldwide Console Forecast report by DFC Intelligence Forecasts, or “DFC,” estimates that cumulative new generation
consoles are expected to exceed $65 billion by 2020. While sales of the new-gen consoles have outperformed previous platforms, the overall console gaming
market uncharacteristically slowed in the recent holiday season. Sales tracking data from The NPD Group, Inc. indicated that console gaming headset sales in
the U.S. were nearly $400 million, up slightly from prior year, as consumer deferred purchases ahead of mid-cycle console refreshes and a limited line up of
multi-player games.
We believe next year will be a key point in the evolution of the console landscape. Following the recent PlayStation®4 Slim and Pro releases,
Microsoft's Xbox One Scorpio, with a focus on high-end 4K and VR gaming, potentially provides the opportunity to combine the console and the rapidly
growing PC gaming market through cross-platform initiatives.
HyperSound Markets
Hearing Health Care. Gradual hearing loss can affect individuals of all ages, varying from mild to profound and is a growing, widespread issue. In the
United States, there are nearly 50 million people with some degree of hearing loss significant enough to require a hearing aid. HyperSound technology offers
a fundamentally new way to deliver sound, and research indicates that it improves sound clarity and speech intelligibility, particularly for those with hearing
loss.
Commercial. We are currently marketing our HyperSound technology to retailers and audio-visual integrators for use in settings where directed audio
and sound zones are beneficial, such as digital signage and interactive retail displays. Convenience retailers and fast moving consumer good brands face
ever-greater challenges as competition for customers intensifies, and as shoppers increasingly rely on in-store cues. As a result, digital signage is a growing
form of direct advertising, capturing an increasing share of advertising spending as restaurants, banks, retail outlets, museums and other outlets and
organizations employ commercial displays to communicate with patrons.
Consumer Applications. Our HyperSound technology has the potential to be developed into consumer products for various applications, including
computers, video game consoles, televisions, home theater and home audio. With the advent of flat panel displays for use in televisions and mobile devices,
manufacturers have been focused on creating thinner products often at the expense of sound quality. We believe that our ability to create a 3D sound image
from two thin emitters, compared to a five- or seven-speaker surround sound set-up using conventional speakers can deliver a compelling and enhanced
audio experience.
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Business Strategy
We intend to build upon the Turtle Beach brand awareness, sophisticated audio technology and high quality products to grow the core console and
casual gaming business to increase sales and profitability.
•

Console Headset Market Share Growth. We believe that our brand's image among consumers is a competitive advantage and that our success is
attributable to our emphasis on delivering the highest quality, most innovative headsets.
To maintain our competitive position in our markets, we are focused on the following:
•

continuing to deliver innovative, high quality console gaming headsets that incorporate advanced audio and wireless technology;

•

growing our gaming headset business in all areas including personal computer headsets;

•

maintaining our strategic relationships that provide our brand a larger presence with consumers and create opportunities for retailers to carry our
products;

•

continuing to improve our cost position through increased global sourcing and expanded points of distribution.

•

Expand Our Product Lines. We intend to increase our sales by continuing to develop internally, or through potential acquisitions, products that we
offer to our customers. In 2016, we launched new products in two small markets in virtual reality and live streaming that we believe have rapid growth
potential. We continue to invest in the resources necessary to maintain and expand our technical capability to manufacture multiple product lines that
incorporate the latest technologies.

•

Accelerate International Expansion. We have a strong gaming headset market position in North America, the United Kingdom, Germany, France and
Australia, and, as part of our long-term strategy, believe there are additional growth opportunities in Latin America and Asia. In particular in China,
under a Chinese language version of the Turtle Beach brand and logo, phonetically pronounced “Huan Jing” (translates as “Fantasy Space"), where we
believe there is a potential growth opportunity in the personal computer market as well as the console market following the Chinese government lifting
its ban on video game consoles in September 2013.

•

Develop HyperSound License Model. This is expected to require less capital compared to internal development efforts in recent years while still
allowing for revenue generating opportunities, including (i) the technology for HyperSound Glass, (ii) commercial retail display sales and (iii) hearing
related and other applications.

Product Development
We continue to innovate, make improvements to our technology and develop new products, and anticipate that we will continue to devote substantial
resources to research and development in the near future. Our product management team takes a disciplined approach to product design that balances
iteration, incremental improvement and innovation to achieve a blend of differentiated technology designed to attract customers, maintain product design
continuity and exceed expectations as to quality, reliability and profitability. For the year ended December 31, 2016, we invested $8.3 million in the
continued expansion of our new generation headset portfolio including the launch of the Stealth 350VR, Elite Pro headsets and Stream Mic, professionalquality live streaming microphone as well as product development efforts around HyperSound Glass. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we
expended $11.6 million and $9.4 million, respectively.
Intellectual Property
We operate in industries where innovations, investment in new ideas and protection of resulting intellectual property rights are critical to success. We
have a substantial base of intellectual property assets to protect our current and future product development, such as key innovations in gaming headsets as
well as all of the core technology areas behind HyperSound, and intend to vigorously enforce such rights.
As a third-party gaming headset company certain technology used in the new generation of consoles, such as integrated voice and chat audio from the
Xbox One, requires a license to enable products to connect to that platform. While Playstation®4 does not require any license to produce headsets that can
connect, certain connections on the Xbox One require the purchase of proprietary chips to integrate into the locked chat audio.
While we currently believe that we have the necessary licenses, or can obtain the necessary licenses to produce compatible products, there is no
guarantee that licenses will be renewed or granted. Moreover, if these licensing parties enter into exclusive license agreements with companies other than us
for their “closed systems” or if we are unable to obtain sufficient quantities of these headset adapters or chips, we would be placed at a competitive
disadvantage.
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Supply Chain and Operations
We have a global network of suppliers that manufacture products to meet our cost objectives and quality standards sought by our customers. We have
worked closely with component, manufacturing and global logistic partners to build a supply chain that we consider predictable, scalable and consistent to
provide high-quality, reliable products and leading cost management practices. The use of outsourced manufacturing facilities is designed to take advantage
of specific expertise and allow for flexibility and scalability to respond to seasonality and changing demands for our products.
In anticipation of new product development and incremental growth, we made additional investments with a focus on making advancements to our
planning systems. In connection with our initiative to improve our operating efficiency and reduce costs, we have continued efforts to focus on companywide overhead reduction activities including right-sizing our supply chain, consolidation of warehouses with our global logistics partnership with Keuhne &
Nagel as well as the planned transition of our European warehouse to a third-party logistics provider in 2017.
We believe we have solid relationships with our suppliers and that, subject to the discussion in “Risk Factors” and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital Resources,” we will continue to have a sufficient supply of quality
products on satisfactory terms.
Retail Distribution
Our headsets are sold in over 40 countries, by retailers such as Amazon, Argos, Best Buy, Game, GameStop, EB Games, Target, and Walmart. We often
have a broader assortment and more shelf space than competitors at video game and electronics retailers such as GameStop and Best Buy which we believe
reinforces the brand’s authenticity with gaming enthusiasts, and our presence in mass channel retailers such as Walmart and Target enables the brand to reach
a wider audience of casual gamers. Our established presence on Amazon.com and other online retail sites, and positive consumer product ratings on those
sites, increases the search visibility of our products and helps to influence both online and in-store sales.
Turtle Beach UK serves as a primary sales office for the European market, and has strengthened Turtle Beach’s European operations with support for
sales, marketing, customer service and distribution.
TurtleBeach.com is an important focal point for our marketing efforts serving as a destination for paid and earned media. Earned media is favorable
publicity gained through promotional efforts other than advertising, as compared with paid media, which refers to publicity gained through advertising. The
website acts as a hub for both online and offline activity, and provides a direct sales channel for new and refurbished products.
Customers
The following tables show net revenues by product type:
December 31,
2016

Net Revenues
Headset
HyperSound (1)
Total

2015

2014

(in thousands)

$

173,323
655

$

161,835
912

$

185,469
707

$

173,978

$

162,747

$

186,176

(1) Business acquired in January 2014.

The Headset business customer base is comprised primarily of large retailers and distributors, both domestic and international. In 2016, net sales to our
major market channels consisted of $114.3 million to domestic retail customers, $37.5 million to international customers, $12.6 million to domestic
distributors and $8.9 million to other customers.
Our three largest individual customers accounted for approximately 49% of our gross sales in 2016, 47% of our gross sales in 2015 and 45% of our
gross sales in 2014. During 2016, our three largest customers, Best Buy, Walmart and Game Stop each accounted for between 14% to 17% of our
consolidated net sales.
Geographic Information
In addition to the traditional markets of the United States and United Kingdom, we have pursued growth in countries such as Germany and France and
believe that additional long-term growth opportunities exist in Asia Pacific and Latin America.
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During 2016, we began to improve our international structure by taking retailers across Europe direct, leveraging off our new warehousing facility and
simplifying our distribution model to provide less risk and lower infrastructure costs. In 2017, the Company believes this new model will provide significant
growth in the European markets.
The following table presents total net revenues, and percentage of total, based on where customers are physically located for each of the three years
ended December 31, 2016:
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

North America
United Kingdom
Europe
Other
Total revenues

$

130,371
21,778
15,729
6,100

74.9% $
12.5%
9.0%
3.6%

117,526
20,881
17,329
7,011

72.2% $
12.8%
10.6%
4.4%

123,908
29,425
24,082
8,761

$

173,978

$

162,747

$

186,176

66.6%
15.8%
12.9%
4.7%

Long-lived assets are largely held in the United States, refer to Note 12, “Geographic Information” in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Seasonality
Our gaming headset business is seasonal with a significant portion of sales and profits typically occurring around the holiday period. Historically, more
than 50% of headset business revenues are generated during the period from September through December as new headsets are introduced and consumers
engage in holiday shopping. In addition, launches of major new online multiplayer games and specific retailer purchasing behavior can drive significant
revenue shifts between months and quarters in a given year.
Employees
As of December 31, 2016, Turtle Beach had 172 employees, of which 150 were full-time salaried employees. None of our employees are represented by
a labor union. We believe that our relationship with our employees is good.
Available Information
We make available free of charge on or through our website, http://corp.turtlebeach.com, our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and all amendments to those reports as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference unless specifically stated
therein.
In addition, the public may read or copy any materials filed with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room located at 100 F Street NE, Washington,
D.C. 20549. The public may also obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. These reports
and other information are also available, free of charge, at www.sec.gov.
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Item 1A - Risk Factors
Set forth below is a summary of certain material risks related to an investment in our securities, which should be considered carefully in evaluating
such an investment. Our business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows can be affected by a number of factors, whether currently known or
unknown, including but not limited to those described below, any one or more of which could, directly or indirectly, cause the Company’s actual results of
operations and financial condition to vary materially from past, or from anticipated future, results of operations and financial condition. Any of these
factors, in whole or in part, could materially and adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and
common stock price. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently consider immaterial may also impair our business
operations.
Because of the following factors, as well as other factors affecting the Company’s financial condition and operating results, past financial
performance should not be considered to be a reliable indicator of future performance, and investors should not use historical trends to anticipate results
or trends in future periods. Please also see “Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Disclosures” in the section immediately preceding Item 1 of this Report.
Risks Related to Liquidity
We depend upon the availability of capital under our revolving credit facility and term loan to finance our operations. Any additional financing that we
may need may not be available on favorable terms or at all.
In addition to cash flow generated from sales, we finance our operations with a revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility”) provided by Bank of
America, as Agent, Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner and our term loan (the “Term Loan Due 2019”) provided by Crystal Financial LLC (“Crystal”),
as Agent, Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner. If we are unable to comply with the financial and other covenants contained in the Credit Facility or the
Term Loan Due 2019 (collectively, the “Loan Documents”) and are unable to obtain a waiver under the applicable Loan Documents, Bank of America or
Crystal, as applicable, may declare the outstanding borrowings under the applicable Loan Documents immediately due and payable. Such an event would
have an immediate and material adverse impact on our business, results of operations and financial condition. We would be required to obtain additional
financing from other sources, and we cannot predict whether or on what terms, if any, additional financing might be available. If we are required to seek
additional financing and are unable to obtain it, we may have to change our business and capital expenditure plans, which may have a materially adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the debt under the Loan Documents could make it more difficult to obtain
other debt financing in the future, which could put us at a competitive disadvantage to competitors with less debt.
The Loan Documents contain financial and other covenants that we are obligated to maintain. If we violate any of these covenants, we will be in default
under the applicable Loan Documents. These covenants include restrictions that prohibit or otherwise limit our ability to pay dividends, incur additional
indebtedness, acquire assets or engage in certain other types of transactions, and also require that we maintain certain financial ratios and EBITDA levels
during specified periods. If a default occurs and is not timely cured or waived, Bank of America or Crystal, as applicable, could seek remedies against us,
including termination or suspension of obligations to make loans and issue letters of credit and acceleration of amounts due under the applicable Loan
Documents. No assurance can be given that we will be able to maintain compliance with these covenants in the future. The Credit Facility is asset based and
can only be drawn down in an amount to which eligible collateral exists and can be negatively impacted by extended collection of accounts receivable,
unexpectedly high product returns and slow moving inventory, among other factors. As of the date of this Report, we were in compliance with our covenants
under the Loan Documents.
The Credit Facility and Term Loans provide our lenders with a first-priority lien against substantially all of our working capital assets, including trade
accounts receivable, inventories, and intellectual property and contains certain restrictions on our ability to take certain actions.
The Credit Facility and Term Loan Due 2019 contain certain financial covenants and other restrictions that limit our ability, among other things, to
incur certain additional indebtedness; pay dividends and repurchase stock; make certain investments and other payments; enter into certain mergers or
consolidations; engage in sale and leaseback transactions and transactions with affiliates; and encumber and dispose of assets.
In addition, we have granted the lenders a first-priority lien against substantially all of our assets, including trade accounts receivable, inventories and
our intellectual property. Failure to comply with the operating restrictions or financial covenants could result in a default which could cause the lenders to
accelerate the timing of payments and exercise their lien on substantially all of our assets.
8

If suppliers, customers, landlords, employees or other stakeholders lose confidence in our business, it may be more difficult for us to operate and may
materially adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.
If suppliers, customers, landlords, employees or other stakeholders have doubts regarding our ability to continue as a going concern, this could result in
further loss of confidence, which, in turn, could materially adversely affect our ability to operate. Concerns about our financial condition may cause our
suppliers and other counterparties to tighten credit terms or cease doing business with us altogether, which would have a material adverse effect on our
business and results of operations.
Risks Related to Our Operations
We depend upon the success and availability of third-party gaming platforms and software to drive sales of our headset products.
The performance of our headset business is affected by the continued success of third-party gaming platforms, such as Microsoft's Xbox consoles and
Sony's PlayStation® consoles, as well as video games developed by such manufacturers and other third-party publishers. Our business could suffer if any of
these parties fail to continue to drive the success of these platforms, develop new or enhanced videogame platforms, develop popular game and entertainment
titles for current or future generation platforms or produce and timely release sufficient quantities of such consoles. For example, DFC Intelligence forecasts'
estimates of future cumulative new generation console has declined since the debut of the new-gen consoles in 2013, which, if such estimates are accurate,
may negatively impact our future headset sales or otherwise negatively impact our business. Further, if a platform is withdrawn from the market or fails to sell,
we may be forced to liquidate inventories relating to that platform or accept returns resulting in significant losses.
In order for our headsets to connect to the Xbox One advanced features and controls, a proprietary computer chip is required. As a result, with respect to
our products designed for the Xbox One, we are currently reliant on Microsoft or their designated supplier to provide us with sufficient quantities of the
chips. If we are unable to obtain sufficient quantities of these headset adapters or chips, sales of our Xbox One headsets and consequently our revenues would
be adversely affected.
In addition, we are licensed and approved by Microsoft to develop and sell Xbox One compatible audio products pursuant to a license agreement under
which we have the right to manufacture (including through third party manufacturers), market and sell audio products for the Xbox One video game console
(the “Xbox One Agreement”). Our Xbox One headsets are dependent on this license. Microsoft has the right to terminate the Xbox One Agreement under
certain circumstances set forth in the agreement. Should the Xbox One Agreement be terminated, our headset offerings may be limited, thereby significantly
reducing our revenues.
Accordingly, Microsoft, Sony and other third-party gaming platform manufacturers may control our ability to manufacture headsets compatible with
their platforms, and could cause unanticipated delays in the release of our products as well as increases to projected development, manufacturing, licensing,
marketing or distribution costs, any of which could negatively impact our business.
Our HyperSound business has not generated significant revenues and we may not be successful in implementing our strategic priorities for our
HyperSound business, which may have a material adverse impact on our business and financial results.
Our HyperSound business has incurred operating losses since the spin-off of Parametric Sound Corporation from LRAD Corporation in 2010, and could
incur additional losses in the near-term if we are unable to successfully complete our previously announced strategic alternative process to continue the
development and commercialization of the HyperSound technology.
Substantially all our HyperSound revenues to date have been derived from sales of a limited number of products to a limited number of customers. We
cannot guarantee that we will have sufficient capital to continue development of our HyperSound products and technology, or that we will be able to
develop a larger customer base and introduce new products to generate additional revenues. Further, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to generate any
future license revenues.
Our ability to achieve future profitability is dependent on a variety of factors, many of which are outside our control, including, but not limited to, the
outcome of our strategic review. Failure to achieve profitability or sustain profitability, if achieved, may require us to continue to make additional capital
investments in, or to dispose of, our HyperSound business, either of which could materially impact our results of operations.
Our Turtle Beach brand faces significant competition from other consumer electronics companies and this competition could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
We compete with other producers of personal computers and video game console headsets, including the video game console manufacturers. Our
competitors may spend more money and time on developing and testing products, undertake more
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extensive marketing campaigns, adopt more aggressive pricing policies, pay higher fees to licensors for motion picture, television, sports, music and
character properties, or develop more commercially successful products for the personal computer or video game platforms than we do. In addition,
competitors with large product lines and popular products, in particular the video game console manufacturers, typically have greater leverage with retailers,
distributors and other customers, who may be willing to promote products with less consumer appeal in return for access to those competitors’ more popular
products.
In the event that a competitor reduces prices, we could be forced to respond by lowering our prices to remain competitive. If we are forced to lower
prices, we may be required to “price protect” products that remain unsold in our customers’ inventories at the time of the price reduction. Price protection
results in our issuing a credit to our customers in the amount of the price reduction for each unsold unit in that customer’s inventory. Our price protection
policies, which are customary in the industry, can have a major impact on our sales and profitability.
In addition, if console manufacturers implement new technologies, through hardware or software, which would cause our headsets to become
incompatible with that hardware manufacturer’s console, there could be unanticipated delays in the release of our products as well as increases to projected
development, manufacturing, marketing or distribution costs, any of which could harm our business and financial results.
Further, new and emerging technologies and alternate platforms for gaming, such as mobile devices, could make the consoles for which our headsets are
designed less attractive or, in time, obsolete, which could require us to transition our business model, develop products for other gaming platforms.
The industries in which we operate are subject to competition in an environment of rapid technological change, and if we do not adapt to, and
appropriately allocate our resources among, emerging technologies, our revenues could be negatively affected.
We must make substantial product development and other investments to align our product portfolio and development efforts in response to market
changes in the gaming industry. We must anticipate and adapt our products to emerging technologies in order to keep those products competitive. When we
choose to incorporate a new technology into our products or to develop a product for a new platform or operating system, we are often required to make a
substantial investment prior to the introduction of the product. If we invest in the development of a new technology or for a new platform that does not
achieve significant commercial success, our revenues from those products likely will be lower than anticipated and may not cover our costs.
Further, our competitors may adapt to an emerging technology more quickly or effectively than we do, creating products that are technologically
superior to ours, more appealing to consumers, or both. If, on the other hand, we elect not to pursue the development of products incorporating a new
technology or for new platforms that achieve significant commercial success, our revenues could also be adversely affected. It may take significant time and
resources to shift product development resources to that technology or platform and it may be more difficult to compete against existing products
incorporating that technology or for that platform. Any failure to successfully adapt to, and appropriately allocate resources among, emerging technologies
could harm our competitive position, reduce our share and significantly increase the time it takes us to bring popular products to market.
There are numerous steps required to develop a product from conception to commercial introduction and to ensure timely shipment to retail customers,
including designing, sourcing and testing the electronic components, receiving approval of hardware and other third-party licensors, factory availability and
manufacturing and designing the graphics and packaging. Any difficulties or delays in the product development process will likely result in delays in the
contemplated product introduction schedule. It is common in new product introductions or product updates to encounter technical and other difficulties
affecting manufacturing efficiency and, at times, the ability to manufacture the product at all. Although these difficulties can be corrected or improved over
time with continued manufacturing experience and engineering efforts, if one or more aspects necessary for the introduction of products are not completed as
scheduled, or if technical difficulties take longer than anticipated to overcome, the product introductions will be delayed, or in some cases may be
terminated. No assurances can be given that our products will be introduced in a timely fashion, and if new products are delayed, our sales and revenue
growth may be limited or impaired.
Our business could be adversely affected by significant movements in foreign currency exchange rates.
We are exposed to fluctuations in foreign currency transaction exchange rates, particularly with respect to the Euro and British Pound. Any significant
change in the value of currencies of the countries in which we do business relative to the value of the U.S. Dollar could affect our ability to sell products
competitively and control our cost structure. Additionally, we are subject to foreign exchange translation risk due to changes in the value of foreign
currencies in relation to our reporting currency, the U.S. dollar. The translation risk is primarily concentrated in the exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and
the
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British Pound. As the U.S. dollar fluctuates against other currencies in which we transact business, revenue and income can be impacted.
The affirmative vote in the United Kingdom to withdraw from the European Union may adversely affect our business.
On June 23, 2016, the United Kingdom ("UK") held a referendum in which voters approved a potential exit from the European Union ("EU"), commonly
referred to as "Brexit." As a result of the referendum, it is expected that the British government will begin negotiating the terms of the UK’s future relationship
with the EU. The Brexit vote may result in regulatory uncertainty throughout the region and could adversely affect business activity, political stability and
economic conditions in the UK, the Eurozone, the EU and elsewhere. Any of these developments could have a material adverse effect on business activity in
the UK, the Eurozone, or the EU.
The uncertainty concerning the timing and terms of the exit could also have a negative impact on the growth of the UK and/or EU economies and cause
greater volatility in the pound sterling, euro and/or other currencies.
A significant portion of our revenue is derived from a few large customers, and the loss of any such customer, or a significant reduction in purchases by
such customer, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
During 2016, our three largest individual customers accounted for approximately 49% of our gross sales in the aggregate. The loss of, or financial
difficulties experienced by, any of these or any of our other significant customers, including as a result of the bankruptcy of a customer, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition and liquidity. We do not have long-term agreements with these or other significant
customers and our agreements with these customers do not require them to purchase any specific amount of products. All of our customers generally purchase
from us on a purchase order basis. As a result, agreements with respect to pricing, returns, cooperative advertising or special promotions, among other things,
are subject to periodic negotiation with each customer. No assurance can be given that these or other customers will continue to do business with us or that
they will maintain their historical levels of business. In addition, the uncertainty of product orders can make it difficult to forecast our sales and allocate our
resources in a manner consistent with actual sales, and our expense levels are based in part on our expectations of future sales. If our expectations regarding
future sales are inaccurate, we may be unable to reduce costs in a timely manner to adjust for sales shortfalls. In addition, financial difficulties experienced by
a significant customer could increase our exposure to uncollectible receivables and the risk that losses from uncollected receivables exceed the reserves we
have set aside in anticipation of this risk.
The manufacture, supply and shipment of our products are dependent upon a limited number of third parties, and our success is dependent upon the ability
of these parties to manufacture, supply and ship sufficient quantities of their product components to us in a timely fashion, as well as the continued
viability and financial stability of these third-parties.
Because we rely on a limited number of manufacturers and suppliers for our products, we may be materially and adversely affected by the failure of any
of those manufacturers and suppliers to perform as expected or supply us with sufficient quantities of their product components to ensure consumer
availability of our own products. Our suppliers’ ability to supply products to us is also subject to a number of risks, including the availability of raw
materials, their financial instability, the destruction of their facilities, or work stoppages. Any shortage of raw materials or components or an inability to
control costs associated with manufacturing could increase our costs or impair our ability to ship orders in a timely and cost-efficient manner. As a result, we
could experience cancellations of orders, refusal to accept deliveries or a reduction in our prices and margins, any of which could harm our financial
performance and results of operations.
Moreover, there can be no assurance that such manufacturers and suppliers will not refuse to supply us at prices we deem acceptable, independently
market their own competing products in the future, or otherwise discontinue their relationships with or support of us. Our failure to maintain these existing
manufacturing and supplier relationships, or to establish new relationships on similar terms in the future, could have a material adverse effect on our business,
results of operations, financial condition and liquidity.
In particular, certain of our products have a number of components and subassemblies produced by outside suppliers. In addition, for certain of these
items, we qualify only a single source of supply with long lead times, which can magnify the risk of shortages or result in excess supply and also decreases
our ability to negotiate price with our suppliers. For example, in our HyperSound commercial product we depend on one piezo-film supplier to provide
expertise and materials used in our proprietary emitters and one supplier for a majority of our plastic and metal parts. Also, if we experience quality problems
with suppliers, then our production schedules could be significantly delayed or costs significantly increased, which could have an adverse effect on our
business, liquidity, results of operation and financial position.
In addition, the ongoing effectiveness of our supply chain is dependent on the timely performance of services by third parties shipping products and
materials to and from our warehouse facilities and other locations. If we encounter problems with
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these shipments, our ability to meet retailer expectations, manage inventory, complete sales and achieve objectives for operating efficiencies could be
materially adversely affected. We have experienced some of these problems in the past and we cannot assure you that we will not experience similar problems
in the future.
Our net sales and operating income fluctuate on a seasonal basis and decreases in sales or margins during peak seasons could have a disproportionate
effect on our overall financial condition and results of operations.
Historically, a majority of our annual revenues have been generated during the holiday season of September to December. If we do not accurately
forecast demand for particular products, we could incur additional costs or experience manufacturing delays. Any shortfall in net sales during this period
would cause our annual results of operations to suffer significantly.
Demand for our products depends on many factors such as consumer preferences and the introduction or adoption of game platforms and related
content, and can be difficult to forecast. If we misjudge the demand for our products, we could face the following problems in our operations, each of which
could harm our operating results:
•

If our forecasts of demand for products are too high, we may accumulate excess inventories of products, which could lead to markdown allowances
or write-offs affecting some or all of such excess inventories. We may also have to adjust the prices of our existing products to reduce such excess
inventories;

•

If demand for specific products increases beyond what we forecast, our suppliers and third-party manufacturers may not be able to increase
production quickly enough to meet the demand. Our failure to meet market demand may lead to missed opportunities to increase our base of gamers,
damage our relationships with retailers or harm our business;

•

The on-going console transition increases the likelihood that we could fail to accurately forecast demand for our new generation console headsets
and our existing headsets; and

•

Rapid increases in production levels to meet unanticipated demand could result in increased manufacturing errors, as well as higher component,
manufacturing and shipping costs, all of which could reduce our profit margins and harm our relationships with retailers and consumers.

Loss of our key management and other personnel could impact our business.
Our future success depends largely upon the continued service of our executive officers and other key management and technical personnel and on our
ability to continue to attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel. In addition, competition for skilled and non-skilled employees among companies like
ours is intense, and the loss of skilled or non-skilled employees or an inability to attract, retain and motivate additional skilled and non-skilled employees
required for the operation and expansion of our business could hinder our ability to conduct research activities successfully, develop new products, attract
customers and meet customer shipments.
If we are unable to continue to develop innovative and popular headset products, or if our design and marketing efforts do not effectively raise the
recognition and reputation of our Turtle Beach brand, we may not be able to successfully implement our headset growth strategy.
We believe that our ability to extend the recognition and favorable perception of our Turtle Beach brand is critical to implement our headset growth
strategy, which includes further establishing our position in existing gaming headsets, developing a strong position in new console headsets, expanding
beyond existing console, PC and mobile applications to new technology applications, accelerating our international growth and expanding complementary
product categories. To extend the reach of our Turtle Beach brand, we believe we must devote significant time and resources to headset product design,
marketing and promotions. These expenditures, however, may not result in a sufficient increase in net sales to cover such expenses.
The on-going console platform transition has adversely affected, and future transitions in console platforms may adversely affect, our headset business.
In 2005, Microsoft released the Xbox 360; in 2006, Sony introduced the PlayStation®3; and in 2012, Nintendo introduced the Wii U. Sony launched
its new generation console, PlayStation®4, on November 15, 2013, and Microsoft launched its new generation console, Xbox One, on November 22, 2013.
When new console platforms are announced or introduced into the market, consumers have historically reduced their purchases of game console peripherals
and accessories, including headsets, for old generation console platforms in anticipation of new platforms becoming available. During these console
transition periods, sales of gaming console headsets such as those sold by us, related to old generation consoles slow or decline until new platforms are
introduced and achieve wide consumer acceptance, which we cannot guarantee. This decrease or decline may not be offset by increased sales of products for
the new console platforms. Over time as the old generation platform user base declines, products for the old platforms are typically discontinued which can
result in lower margins, excess inventory, excess parts, or similar costs related to end of life of a product model. In addition, as a third party gaming headset
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company, we are reliant on working with the console manufacturers for our headsets to be compatible with any new console platforms, which if not done on a
timely basis may adversely affect sales. Sony and Microsoft may make changes to their platforms that impact how headset connect with or work with the new
consoles which could create a disruption to consumer buying behavior and/or product life-cycles.
As console hardware moves through its life cycle, hardware manufacturers typically enact price reductions, and decreasing prices may put downward
pressure on prices for products for such platforms. During platform transitions, we may simultaneously incur costs both in continuing to develop and market
new products for prior-generation video game platforms, which may not sell at premium prices, and also in developing products for current-generation
platforms, which will not generate immediate or near-term revenue. As a result, our operating results during platform transitions are more volatile and more
difficult to predict than during other times.
Further, technological and other developments may in the future accelerate the frequency of such console transitions resulting in such disruption
occurring more frequently. For example, journalists have begun to report rumors of new consoles on the horizon from each of Sony and Microsoft, Neo and
Project Scorpio respectively. In addition, competing technologies such as tablet-based gaming and virtual reality may result in further disruption to the
overall console gaming market.
We are party to ongoing stockholder litigation, and in the future could be party to additional stockholder litigation, any of which could harm our business,
financial condition and operating results.
We have had, and may continue to have, actions brought against us by stockholders in connection with the merger, past transactions, changes in our
stock price or other matters. Any such claims, whether or not resolved in our favor, could divert our management and other resources from the operation of our
business and otherwise result in unexpected and substantial expenses that would adversely and materially impact our business, financial condition and
operating results. For example, and as further described in Item 3, “Legal Proceedings,” and Note 13, “Commitments and Contingencies,” we are involved in
legal proceedings related to the merger of VTBH and Paris Acquisition Corp. involving certain of our stockholders, including the holder of VTBH’s Series B
Redeemable Preferred Stock, (the “Series B Holder”), filing a complaint in New York state court alleging breach of contract against VTBH and seeking a
declaratory judgment that he is entitled to damages and specific performance, including the redemption of his stock. The redemption value of VTBH’s Series
B Redeemable Preferred Stock was $17.5 million as of December 31, 2016.
If we are unable to protect our information systems against service interruption, misappropriation of data or breaches of security, our operations could be
disrupted, our reputation may be damaged, and we may be financially liable for damages.
We rely heavily on information systems to manage our operations, including a full range of retail, financial, sourcing and merchandising systems. We
regularly make investments to upgrade, enhance or replace these systems, as well as leverage new technologies to support our growth strategies. In addition,
we have implemented enterprise-wide initiatives that are intended to standardize business processes and optimize performance. Any delays or difficulties in
transitioning to new systems or integrating them with current systems or the failure to implement our initiatives in an orderly and timely fashion could result
in additional investment of time and resources, which could impair our ability to improve existing operations and support future growth, and ultimately have
a material adverse effect on our business.
The reliability and capacity of our information systems are critical. Despite preventative efforts, our systems are vulnerable from time-to-time to damage
or interruption from, among other things, natural disasters, technical malfunctions, inadequate systems capacity, human error, power outages, computer
viruses and security breaches. Any disruptions affecting our information systems could have a material adverse impact on our business. In addition, any
failure to maintain adequate system security controls to protect our computer assets and sensitive data, including associate and client data, from unauthorized
access, disclosure or use could damage our reputation with our associates and our clients, exposing us to financial liability, legal proceedings (such as class
action lawsuits), and regulatory action. While we have implemented measures to prevent security breaches and cyber incidents, our preventative measures
and incident response efforts may not be entirely effective. As a result, we may not be able to immediately detect any security breaches, which may increase
the losses that we would suffer. Finally, our ability to continue to operate our business without significant interruption in the event of a disaster or other
disruption depends, in part, on the ability of our information systems to operate in accordance with our disaster recovery and business continuity plans.
Our reliance on information systems and other technology also gives rise to cybersecurity risks, including security breach, espionage, system
disruption, theft and inadvertent release of information. The occurrence of any of these events could compromise our networks, and the information stored
there could be accessed, publicly disclosed, lost or stolen. Any such access, disclosure or other loss of information could result in legal claims or proceedings,
liability or regulatory penalties under laws protecting the privacy of personal information, disrupt operations, and damage our reputation, which could
adversely affect our business. In addition, as security threats continue to evolve we may need to invest additional resources to protect the security of our
systems.
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Our results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected by global business, political, operational, financial and economic conditions.
We face business, political, operational, financial and economic risks inherent in international business, many of which are beyond our control,
including:
•

trade restrictions, higher tariffs, currency fluctuations or the imposition of additional regulations relating to import or export of our products,
especially in China, where all of our Turtle Beach products are manufactured, which could force us to seek alternate manufacturing sources or
increase our expenses;

•

difficulties obtaining domestic and foreign export, import and other governmental approvals, permits and licenses, and compliance with foreign
laws, which could halt, interrupt or delay our operations if we cannot obtain such approvals, permits and licenses;

•

difficulties encountered by our international distributors or us in staffing and managing foreign operations or international sales, including higher
labor costs;

•

transportation delays and difficulties of managing international distribution channels;

•

longer payment cycles for, and greater difficulty collecting, accounts receivable;

•

political and economic instability, including wars, terrorism, political unrest, boycotts, curtailment of trade and other business restrictions, any of
which could materially and adversely affect our net sales and results of operations; and

•

natural disasters.

Any of these factors could reduce our net sales, decrease our gross margins, increase our expenses or reduce our profitability. Should we establish our
own operations in international territories where we currently utilize a distributor, we will become subject to greater risks associated with operating outside of
the United States.
The electronics industry in general has historically been characterized by a high degree of volatility and is subject to substantial and unpredictable
variations resulting from changing business cycles. Our operating results will be subject to fluctuations based on general economic conditions, in particular
conditions that impact discretionary consumer spending. The audio products sector of the electronics industry has and may continue to experience a
slowdown in sales, which adversely impacts our ability to generate revenues and impacts the results of our future operations. A lack of available credit in
financial markets may adversely affect the ability of our commercial customers to finance purchases and operations and could result in an absence of orders or
spending for our products as well as create supplier disruptions. We are unable to predict the likely duration and severity of any adverse economic conditions
and disruptions in financial markets and the effects they will have on our business and its financial condition.
Further, Turtle Beach products are manufactured in China for export to the United States and worldwide. As a result of opposition to policies of the
Chinese government and China’s growing trade surpluses with the United States, there has been, and in the future may be, opposition to the extension of
normal trade relations (“NTR”) status for China. The loss of NTR status for China, changes in current tariff structures or adoption in the United States of other
trade policies adverse to China could increase our manufacturing expenses and make it more difficult for us to manufacture our products in China.
If we fail to maintain an effective system of internal controls, we may not be able to accurately report financial results or prevent fraud, which could have
an adverse effect on our business and financial condition.
Effective internal controls are necessary to provide reliable financial reports and to assist in the effective prevention of fraud. Any inability to provide
reliable financial reports or prevent fraud could harm our business. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we perform system and process
evaluation and testing of our internal control over financial reporting to allow management and our independent registered public accounting firm, as
applicable, to report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. If we are not able to comply with the requirements of Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, or if we or our independent registered public accounting firm identifies deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting
that are deemed to be material weaknesses, investors could lose confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, the market price of our
common stock could decline and we could be subject to sanctions, investigations by NASDAQ, the SEC or other regulatory authorities, or shareholder
litigation.
In connection with the audit of our consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015, our management identified control
deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting that constituted a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting. As such, our
controls over financial reporting were not designed or operating effectively, and as a result there were adjustments required in connection with preparing our
consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016. The control deficiency resulted in more than a remote likelihood that a material
misstatement of our annual and interim financial statements would not be prevented or detected.
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We are currently taking steps in an effort to remediate our material weakness, but there can be no assurance that we will be successful in pursuing these
measures or that these measures will significantly improve or remediate the material weakness described above. There is also no assurance that we have
identified all of our material weaknesses or that we will not in the future have additional material weaknesses. There is no assurance that we will be able to
remediate the material weakness in a timely manner, or at all, or that in the future, additional material weaknesses will not exist or otherwise be discovered. If
our efforts to remediate the material weakness described above are not successful, or if other material weaknesses or other deficiencies occur, our ability to
accurately and timely report our financial position could be impaired, which could result in late filings of our annual and quarterly reports under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"), restatements of our consolidated financial statements, a decline in our stock price or
suspension or delisting of our common stock from the NASDAQ Global Market.
Risks Related to our Intellectual Property and other Legal and Regulatory Matters
Our competitive position will be seriously damaged if our products are found to infringe on the intellectual property rights of others.
Other companies and our competitors may currently own or obtain patents or other proprietary rights that might prevent, limit or interfere with our
ability to make, use or sell our products. Although we do not believe that our products infringe the proprietary rights of any third parties, there can be no
assurance that infringement or other legal claims will not be asserted against us or that we will not be found to infringe the intellectual property rights of
others. The electronics industry is characterized by vigorous protection and pursuit of intellectual property rights or positions, resulting in significant and
often protracted and expensive litigation. In the event of a successful claim of infringement against us and our failure or inability to license the infringed
technology, our business and operating results could be adversely affected. Any litigation or claims, whether or not valid, could result in substantial costs or
a diversion of our resources. An adverse result from intellectual property litigation could force us to do one or more of the following:
•

cease selling, incorporating or using products or services that incorporate the challenged intellectual property;

•

obtain a license from the holder of the infringed intellectual property right, which license may not be available on reasonable terms, if at all; and/or

•

redesign products or services that incorporate the disputed technology.

If we are forced to take any of the foregoing actions, we could face substantial costs and shipment delays and our business could be seriously harmed.
Although we carry general liability insurance, our insurance may not cover potential claims of this type or may be inadequate to insure us for all liability that
may be imposed.
In addition, it is possible that our customers or end users may seek indemnity from us in the event that our products are found or alleged to infringe the
intellectual property rights of others. Any such claim for indemnity could result in substantial expenses to us that could harm our operating results.
If we are unable to obtain and maintain intellectual property rights and/or enforce those rights against third parties who are violating those rights, our
business could suffer.
We rely on various intellectual property rights, including patents, trademarks, trade secrets and trade dress to protect our Turtle Beach brand name,
reputation, product appearance and technology and our proprietary rights in our HyperSound technology. Although we have entered into confidentiality and
invention assignment agreements with our employees and contractors, and nondisclosure agreements with selected parties with whom we conduct business to
limit access to and disclosure of our proprietary information, these contractual arrangements and the other steps we have taken to protect our intellectual
property may not prevent misappropriation of that intellectual property or deter independent third-party development of similar technologies. Monitoring
the unauthorized use of proprietary technology and trademarks is costly, and any dispute or other litigation, regardless of outcome, may be costly and time
consuming and may divert the attention of management and key personnel from our business operations. The steps taken by us may not prevent unauthorized
use of proprietary technology or trademarks. Many features of our products are not protected by patents; and as a consequence, we may not have the legal
right to prevent others from reverse engineering or otherwise copying and using these features in competitive products. If we fail to protect or to enforce our
intellectual property rights successfully, our competitive position could suffer, which could adversely affect our financial results.
We are susceptible to counterfeiting of our products, which may harm our reputation for producing high-quality products and force us to incur expenses
in enforcing our intellectual property rights. Such claims and lawsuits can be expensive to resolve, require substantial management time and resources, and
may not provide a satisfactory or timely result, any of which may harm our results of operations. As some of our products are sold internationally, we are also
dependent on the laws of a range of countries to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights. These laws may not protect intellectual property rights
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to the same extent or in the same manner as the laws of the United States.
Further, we are party to licenses that grant us rights to intellectual property, including trademarks, which are necessary or useful to our Turtle Beach
business. One or more of our licensors may allege that we have breached our license agreement with them, and seek to terminate our license. If successful, this
could result in our loss of the right to use the licensed intellectual property, which could adversely affect our ability to commercialize our technologies or
products, as well as harm our competitive business position and our business prospects.
Our success also depends in part on our ability to obtain and enforce intellectual property protection of our technology, particularly our patents. There
is no guarantee any patent will issue on any patent application that we have filed or may file. Claims allowed from existing or pending patents may not be of
sufficient scope or strength to protect the economic value of our technologies. Further, any patent that we may obtain will expire, and it is possible that it
may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented. If we do not secure and maintain patent protection for our HyperSound technology and products, our
competitive position could be significantly harmed. A competitor may independently develop or patent technologies that are substantially similar or
superior to our HyperSound technology.
As we expand our HyperSound product line or develop new uses for our HyperSound technology, these products or uses may be outside the protection
provided by our current patent applications and other intellectual property rights. In addition, if we develop new HyperSound products or enhancements to
existing products we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain patents to protect them. Even if we do receive patents for our existing or new
HyperSound products, these patents may not provide meaningful protection, or may be too costly to enforce protection. In some countries outside of the
United States where our HyperSound products may be sold or our HyperSound technology may be licensed, patent protection is not available. Moreover,
some countries that do allow for the registration of patents do not provide meaningful redress for violations of patents. As a result, protecting intellectual
property in these countries is difficult and our competitors may successfully sell products in these countries that have functions and features that infringe on
our intellectual property.
We may initiate claims or litigation against third parties in the future for infringement of our proprietary rights or to determine the scope and validity of
our proprietary rights or the proprietary rights of our competitors. These claims could result in costly litigation and divert the efforts of our technical and
management personnel. As a result, our operating results could suffer and our financial condition could be harmed.
We are dependent upon third-party intellectual property to manufacture some of our products.
The performance of certain technology used in new generation consoles, such as integrated voice and chat audio from the Xbox One, is improved by a
licensed component to ensure compatibility with our products.
While we currently believe that we have the necessary licenses, or can obtain the necessary licenses, in order to produce compatible products, there is
no guarantee that our licenses will be renewed or granted in the first instance. Moreover, if these first parties enter into license agreements with companies
other than us for their “closed systems” or if we are unable to obtain sufficient quantities of these headset adapters or chips, we would be placed at a
competitive disadvantage.
Our HyperSound technology is subject to government regulation, which could lead to unanticipated expenses and/or enforcement action against us.
Under the Radiation Control for Health and Safety Act of 1968, and the associated regulations promulgated by the Food and Drug Administration
(“FDA”), HyperSound products are regulated as electrical emitters of ultrasonic vibrations. Under the terms of such regulations, in August 2012 we provided,
and in January 2016 further supplemented, an abbreviated report to the FDA describing the HyperSound commercial product. In September 2015 we
provided an initial product report describing the HyperSound Clear 500P product. The FDA may respond to these reports and request changes or safeguards
to our HyperSound products, but it has not done so to date. We also are required to notify the FDA in writing should a product be found to have a defect
relating to safety of use due to the emission of electronic product radiation. We do not believe our technology poses any human health risks. However, it is
possible that we, or one of our customers, could be required to modify the technology, or a product incorporating the technology, to comply with
requirements that may be imposed by the FDA. Our HyperSound product advertising is regulated by the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC”), which
requires all advertising be truthful, not deceptive or unfair, and evidence based.
In addition, HyperSound Clear 500P and the HyperSound Tinnitus Module feature available in the HyperSound Clear 500P are regulated by the FDA as
medical devices pursuant to the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, or FDCA, and implementing regulations. HyperSound Clear 500P has received
510(k) clearance permitting over - the - counter (“OTC”) commercial distribution for use as a group auditory trainer or group hearing aid and in August 2016,
the HyperSound Tinnitus Module feature available in the HyperSound Clear 500P received 510(k) clearance for prescription use in the temporary relief of
tinnitus symptoms. Recently, FDA exempted group hearing aids from the 510(k) requirement. Therefore, we may modify HyperSound Clear 500P in the
future without seeking additional 510(k) clearance, provided that we do not alter its intended use
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or incorporate a fundamentally different scientific technology, either of which would require a new 510(k) clearance or premarket approval. The Tinnitus
Module remains subject to 510(k) clearance requirements.
We continue to be subject to FDA’s requirements for marketed medical devices, such as the Quality System Regulation, or QSR (which imposes
procedural, documentation and record keeping requirements regarding the manufacture of medical devices); the Medical Device Reporting regulation (which
requires that manufacturers report to the FDA if their device may have caused or contributed to a death or serious injury or malfunctioned in a way that would
likely cause or contribute to a death or serious injury if it were to recur); and the Reports of Corrections and Removals regulation (which requires
manufacturers to report recalls and field actions to the FDA if initiated to reduce a risk to health posed by the device or to remedy a violation of the FDCA
that may pose a risk to health). FDA enforces these requirements by inspection and market surveillance. If the FDA finds a violation, it can institute a wide
range of enforcement actions, ranging from a public warning letter to more severe sanctions such as fines, penalties, suspension or withdrawal of regulatory
approvals, product recalls, seizure of products, operating restrictions or total shutdown of production, and criminal prosecution.
In the European Union we are subject to similar government regulation regarding medical device safety and effectiveness and ongoing certification and
related costs. In the European Union and in other markets we may enter we will be subject to numerous and varying governmental requirements. The timing
and expense to obtain or maintain any required clearances or approvals in foreign markets are difficult to estimate and may be significant. It may also be
costly for us to comply with any applicable regulations and postmarket requirements in each country where we do business. If we fail to do so, we may be
subject to fines, suspension or withdrawal of regulatory approvals, product recalls, seizure of products, operating restrictions or total shutdown of production,
and criminal prosecution.
Our products may be subject to warranty claims, product liability and product recalls.
We may be subject to product liability or warranty claims that could result in significant direct or indirect costs, or we could experience greater returns
from retailers than expected, which could harm our net sales. The occurrence of any quality problems due to defects in our products could make us liable for
damages and warranty claims in excess of any existing reserves. In addition to the risk of direct costs to correct any defects, warranty claims, product recalls or
other problems, any negative publicity related to the perceived quality of our products could also affect our brand image, decrease retailer and distributor
demand and our operating results and financial condition could be adversely affected.
We could incur unanticipated expenses in connection with warranty or product liability claims relating to a recall of one or more of our products,
including the XO FOUR Stealth headset recall in 2015, which could require significant expenditures to defend. Additionally, we may be required to comply
with governmental requirements to remedy the defect and/or notify consumers of the problem that could lead to unanticipated expense, and possible product
liability litigation against a customer or us. As of December 31, 2016 and the date of this report, the Company has not received notice of any lawsuits against
the Company in connection with any recall actions.
Changes in laws or regulations or the manner of their interpretation or enforcement could adversely impact our financial performance and restrict our
ability to operate our business or execute our strategies.
New laws or regulations, or changes in existing laws or regulations or the manner of their interpretation or enforcement, may create uncertainty for
public companies, increase our cost of doing business and restrict our ability to operate our business or execute our strategies. This could include, among
other things, compliance costs and enforcement under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”). For
example, under Section 1502 of the Dodd-Frank Act, the SEC has adopted additional disclosure requirements related to the source of certain “conflict
minerals” for issuers for which such “conflict minerals” are necessary to the functionality or production of a product manufactured, or contracted to be
manufactured, by that issuer. The metals covered by the rules include tin, tantalum, tungsten and gold. Our suppliers may use some or all of these materials in
their production processes. The rules require us to conduct a reasonable country of origin inquiry to determine if we know or have reason to believe any of
the minerals used in the production process may have originated from the Democratic Republic of the Congo or an adjoining country. If we are not able to
determine the minerals did not originate from a covered country or conclude that there is no reason to believe that the minerals used in the production
process may have originated in a covered country, we would be required to perform supply chain due diligence on members of our supply chain. Global
supply chains can have multiple layers, thus the costs of complying with these new requirements could be substantial. These new requirements may also
reduce the number of suppliers who provide conflict free metals, and may affect our ability to obtain products in sufficient quantities or at competitive prices.
Compliance costs such as these could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.
We continually evaluate and monitor developments with respect to new and proposed laws, regulations, standards and rules and cannot predict or
estimate the amount of the additional costs we may incur or the timing of such costs. Any such new or changed laws, regulations, standards and rules may be
subject to varying interpretations and as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory and governing
bodies. This could result in continuing
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uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices. We are committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance and public disclosure. If our efforts to comply with new or changed laws, regulations and standards differ
from the activities intended by regulatory or governing bodies due to ambiguities related to practice, regulatory authorities may initiate legal proceedings
against us and we may be harmed.
The current administration has called for substantial change to fiscal and tax policies, which may include comprehensive tax reform and changes to the
implementation of the Dodd-Frank Act and related or similar regulations. We cannot predict the impact, if any, of these changes to our business. However, it
is possible that these changes could adversely affect our business. Until we know what changes are enacted, we will not know whether in total we benefit
from, or are negatively affected by, the changes.
We are subject to various environmental laws and regulations that could impose substantial costs on us and may adversely affect our business, operating
results and financial condition.
Our operations and some of our products are regulated under various federal, state, local and international environmental laws. In addition, regulatory
bodies in many of the jurisdictions in which we operate propose, enact and amend environmental laws and regulations on a regular basis. The environmental
laws and regulations applying to our business include those governing the discharge of pollutants into the air and water, the management, disposal and
labeling of, and exposure to, hazardous substances and wastes and the cleanup of contaminated sites. If we were to violate or become liable under these
environmental laws, we could be required to incur additional costs to comply with such regulations and may incur fines and civil or criminal sanctions, thirdparty property damage or personal injury claims, or could be required to incur substantial investigation or remediation costs. Liability under environmental
laws may be joint and several and without regard to comparative fault. The ultimate costs under environmental laws and the timing of these costs are difficult
to predict. Although we cannot predict the ultimate impact of any new environmental laws and regulations, such laws may result in additional costs or
decreased revenue, and could require that we redesign or change how we manufacture our products, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our
business. Additionally, to the extent that our competitors choose not to abide by these environmental laws and regulations, we may be at a cost disadvantage,
thereby hindering our ability to effectively compete in the marketplace.
Failure to comply with the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act or other applicable anti-corruption legislation could result in fines, criminal penalties and
an adverse effect on our business.
We operate in 44 countries, including countries known to have a reputation for corruption. We are committed to doing business in accordance with
applicable anti-corruption laws. We are subject, however, to the risk that our officers, directors, employees, agents and collaborators may take action
determined to be in violation of such anti-corruption laws, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, the U.K. Bribery Act 2010 and the
European Union Anti-Corruption Act, or that subjects us to trade sanctions administered by the Office of Foreign Assets Control and the U.S. Department of
Commerce. Any such violation could result in substantial fines, sanctions, civil and/or criminal penalties or curtailment of operations in certain jurisdictions,
and might adversely affect our results of operations. In addition, actual or alleged violations could damage our reputation and ability to do business.
Risks Related to Ownership of our Common Stock
If we cannot meet Nasdaq’s continuing listing requirements and Nasdaq rules, Nasdaq may delist our securities, which could negatively affect us, the price
of our securities and your ability to sell our securities.
Although our shares are currently in compliance with requirements and currently listed on Nasdaq, we may not be able to meet the continued listing
requirements of Nasdaq in the future, which require, among other things, a minimum bid price of $1.00 per share for common shares listed on the exchange.
While we would consider implementation of customary options, including a reverse stock split, if our common stock does not trade at the required level that
regains compliance, if our efforts are unsuccessful or we are otherwise unable to satisfy the Nasdaq criteria for maintaining our listing, our securities could be
subject to delisting. As a consequence of any such delisting, our shareholders would likely find it more difficult to dispose of, or to obtain accurate
quotations as to the prices of our securities. In the event of a delisting, we could face significant material adverse consequences including a limited
availability of market quotations for our securities; a limited amount of news and analyst coverage for our company; and a decreased ability to issue
additional securities or obtain additional financing in the future.
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Ownership of our common stock is highly concentrated, and we are a “controlled company” within the meaning of the corporate governance standards of
NASDAQ and, as a result, qualify for, and rely on, exemptions from certain corporate governance requirements.
Certain Turtle Beach stockholders acting as a group beneficially own or control approximately 54% of our common stock. Accordingly, these
stockholders, acting as a group pursuant to a stockholder agreement, have substantial influence over the outcome of our corporate actions requiring
stockholder approval, including the election of directors, any merger, consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets or any other significant
corporate transaction. These stockholders also may exert influence in delaying or preventing a change in control of the Company, even if such change in
control would benefit our other stockholders. In addition, the significant concentration of stock ownership may affect adversely the market value of our
common stock due to investors’ perception that such conflicts of interest may exist or arise.
Additionally, we have elected to be treated as a “controlled company” under NASDAQ rules. A “controlled company” under NASDAQ rules is a listed
company more than 50% of the voting power of which is held by an individual, a group or another company (and which elects to be treated as a “controlled
company”). Certain stockholders of Turtle Beach constitute a group controlling more than 50% of the voting power of our voting stock. As a “controlled
company,” we are permitted to, and have, opted out of certain NASDAQ rules that would otherwise require (i) a majority of the members of our board to be
independent, (ii) that our compensation committee be comprised entirely of independent directors and (iii) that we establish a nominating and governance
committee comprised entirely of independent directors, or otherwise ensure that director nominees are determined or recommended to our board by the
independent members of our board. Accordingly, our stockholders may not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that are subject
to all of the corporate governance requirements of NASDAQ.
Item 1B - Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2 - Properties
The table below describes our principal facilities as of December 31, 2016.

Location

State or Country

San Diego
Valhalla
Basingstoke
Poway

CA
NY
U.K.
CA

San Jose
Darlington

CA
U.K.

Principal Business Activity

Corporate Headquarters
Administration
Administration
Administration
Research & Development
Warehouse

Approx. Square
Feet

Owned or
Expiration Date
of Lease

30,000
21,000
6,850
2,830

2020
2019
2021
2017

3,500
120,000

2018
2017

Item 3 - Legal Proceedings
The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of its business. Although the amount of any liability
that could arise with respect to these actions cannot be determined with certainty, in the Company’s opinion, any such liability will not have a material
adverse effect on its consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations or liquidity.
On August 5, 2013, VTBH and the Company (f/k/a Parametric) announced that they had entered into the Merger Agreement pursuant to which VTBH
would acquire an approximately 80% ownership interest and existing shareholders would maintain an approximately 20% ownership interest in the
combined company. Following the announcement, several shareholders filed class action lawsuits in California and Nevada seeking to enjoin the Merger.
The plaintiffs in each case alleged that members of the Company’s Board of Directors breached their fiduciary duties to the shareholders by agreeing to a
Merger that allegedly undervalued the Company. VTBH and the Company were named as defendants in these lawsuits under the theory that they had aided
and abetted the Company's Board of Directors in allegedly violating their fiduciary duties. The plaintiffs in both cases sought a preliminary injunction
seeking to enjoin closing of the Merger, which by agreement was heard by the Nevada court with the California plaintiffs invited to participate. On December
26, 2013, the court in the Nevada cases denied the plaintiffs’ motion for a preliminary injunction. Following the closing of the Merger, the Nevada plaintiffs
filed a second amended complaint, which made essentially the same allegations and sought monetary damages as well as an order
19

rescinding the Merger. The California plaintiffs dismissed their action without prejudice, and sought to intervene in the Nevada action, which was granted.
Subsequent to the intervention, the plaintiffs filed a third amended complaint, which made essentially the same allegations as prior complaints and sought
monetary damages. On June 20, 2014, VTBH and the Company moved to dismiss the action, but that motion was denied on August 28, 2014. That denial is
currently under review by the Nevada Supreme Court, which held a hearing on the Company's petition for review on September 1, 2015. After the hearing, the
Nevada Supreme Court requested supplemental briefing, which the parties completed on October 13, 2015. The Nevada Supreme Court also invited the
Business Law Section of the Nevada State Bar to submit an amicus brief by December 3, 2015 and briefing was completed on that date. The Company
believes that the plaintiffs’ claims against it are without merit.
On February 18, 2015, On February 18, 2015, Dr. John Bonanno, a minority shareholder of Series B Preferred Stock of VTBH, filed a complaint in
Delaware Chancery Court alleging breach of contract against VTBH. According to the complaint, the Merger purportedly triggered a contractual obligation
for VTBH to redeem Dr. Bonanno's preferred stock. Dr. Bonanno requests a declaratory judgment stating that he is entitled to damages including a
redemption of his stock for the redemption value of $15.1 million (equal to the original issue price of his stock plus accrued dividends) as well as other costs
and expenses. On February 8, 2016, the Delaware Chancery Court granted VTBH's motion to dismiss for improper venue, and Dr. Bonnano's complaint was
dismissed without prejudice. In January of 2017, Dr. Bonanno filed a complaint in New York state court alleging breach of contract against VTBH and
seeking a declaratory judgment that he is entitled to damages and specific performance, including redemption of his stock. The Company answered the
complaint on March 7, 2017. At the order of the Court, the parties will be filing cross-motions for summary judgment on March 31, 2017, on the sole
question of whether the Merger was a defined event in the purported contract entitling Dr. Bonnano to redemption of his shares. VTBH maintains that the
Merger did not trigger any obligation to redeem Mr. Bonanno's preferred stock.
The Company will continue to vigorously defend itself in the foregoing matters. However, litigation and investigations are inherently uncertain.
Accordingly, the Company cannot predict the outcome of these matters. The Company has not recorded any accrual at December 31, 2016 for contingent
losses associated with these matters based on its belief that losses, while possible, are not probable. Further, any possible range of loss cannot be reasonably
estimated at this time. The unfavorable resolution of these matters could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows. The Company is engaged in other legal actions not described above arising in the ordinary course of its business and, while
there can be no assurance, believes that the ultimate outcome of these other legal actions will not have a material adverse effect on its business, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows.
Item 4 - Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART II
Item 5 - Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
The Company's stock is traded on NASDAQ under the symbol “HEAR.” The following table sets forth the high and low sale prices per share of our common
stock on the NASDAQ for the period indicated:
High

Fiscal Year 2016
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$

Low

2.07
1.42
1.55
2.00

$

0.91
0.83
0.91
1.21

Market Price
High

Fiscal Year 2015
First Quarter
Second Quarter
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

$

Low

3.27
3.29
3.19
3.72

$

1.85
1.75
1.91
1.86

The closing price of our common stock on February 28, 2017 was $1.06 per share. The number of holders of record of common stock at February 28,
2017 was 952.
Stock Performance Graph
Notwithstanding any statement to the contrary in any of our previous or future filings with the SEC, the following information relating to the price
performance of our common stock shall not be deemed to be “filed” with the SEC for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), to be “soliciting material” or subject to Rule 14A of the Exchange Act, or to be incorporated by reference into any of our
filings under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”) or the Exchange Act whether made before or after the date of this Report, except
to the extent we specifically incorporate it by reference into such filing.
The following graph shows a comparison from January 15, 2014 (the date following the reverse acquisition) through December 31, 2016 of the cumulative
total return assuming a $100 investment in our common stock, the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 500 Consumer Durables Index. In accordance with the rules of
the Securities and Exchange Commission, the returns are indexed to a value of $100 at December 31, 2013 and assume that all dividends, if any, were
reinvested. The comparisons in this graph below are based on historical data and are not intended to forecast or be indicative of future performance of our
common stock.
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Dividend Policy
We have not paid regular cash dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future
determination to pay cash dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and will depend on our financial condition, operating results, capital
requirements and such other factors as our board of directors deems relevant.
Unregistered Sale of Equity Securities and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
In February 2016, concurrent with the completion of the Offering, SG VTB Holdings, LLC, the Company's largest shareholder, purchased 1,700,000 shares of
our common stock for $1.00 per shares in a private placement, resulting in total gross proceeds of approximately $1.7 million. The sale of these shares was
not registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance on the exemptions set forth under Section 4(2) thereof and Rule 506 of Regulation D
thereunder.
Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans
See Part III, Item 12 of this annual report for disclosure relating to our equity compensation plans. Such information will be included in our Proxy Statement
or an amendment to this Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 6 - Selected Financial Data
The merger (the “Merger”) between VTB Holdings, Inc. and Parametric Sound Corporation (“Parametric”) was treated as a “reverse acquisition” with
VTBH considered the accounting acquirer. Accordingly, VTBH's historical results of operations on a stand-alone basis replace Parametric’s historical
results of operations for all periods on or prior to January 15, 2014, and for all periods following the Merger, the results of operations of both companies
have been included.
The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial data for each of the five years ended December 31, 2016. This selected financial data should be
read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto included in this Report.
Year Ended December 31,
2016 (3)

2015 (2)

2014 (1)

2013

2012

(in thousands, except per share data)
Net Revenue

$

Cost of Revenue
Gross Profit

173,978

162,747

$

178,470

$

207,136

128,141

132,795

42,610

40,691

50,667

50,329

74,341

25.0 %

(77,701)

Operating Margin

186,176
135,509

24.5 %

Operating loss

$

122,056

Gross Margin

Net income (loss)

$

131,368

27.2 %

(74,399)

(44.7)%

28.2%

(13,825)

(45.7)%

35.9%

1,589

(7.4)%

42,910

0.9%

20.7%

$

(87,182)

$

(82,907)

$

(15,486)

$

(6,163)

$

26,460

Basic

$

(1.79)

$

(1.96)

$

(0.39)

$

(0.49)

$

0.13

Diluted

$

(1.79)

$

(1.96)

$

(0.39)

$

(0.49)

$

0.13

Net earnings (loss) per share:

Weighted average number of shares:
Basic

48,592

42,269

39,665

12,700

12,700

Diluted

48,592

42,269

39,665

12,700

12,700

Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalents

6,183

7,114

7,908

6,509

5,219

Total Assets

94,800

172,460

249,968

127,307

134,195

Total Debt

66,875

64,806

44,555

64,578

74,250

Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock

17,480

16,145

14,916

13,713

12,703

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

—

—

—

24,345

24,345

(1) In 2014, we completed the merger with Parametric, which contributed revenue of $0.7 million in the year and $129.1 million of total assets on date of
the merger.
(2) Includes goodwill impairment charge of $49.8 million.
(3) Includes a $7.1 million charge for inventory reserves associated with the HyperSound restructuring and goodwill and other intangibles impairment
charges of $63.2 million.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto. This discussion summarizes the
significant factors affecting our results of operations and the financial condition of our business during each of the fiscal years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2016.
On January 15, 2014 the Company completed the merger (the “Merger”) with VTB Holdings, Inc. which was treated as a “reverse acquisition” with VTBH
considered the accounting acquirer and surviving entity, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (f/k/a Parametric Sound Corporation), a publiclytraded company. Accordingly, VTBH's historical results of operations on a stand-alone basis replace Parametric’s historical results of operations for all
periods on or prior to January 15, 2014, and for all periods following the Merger, the results of operations of both companies have been included.
Turtle Beach Corporation (herein referred to as the “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “our”), headquartered in San Diego, California and incorporated in the state of
Nevada in 2010, is a premier audio technology company with expertise and experience in developing, commercializing and marketing innovative products
across a range of large addressable markets operating under two reportable segments, Turtle Beach® (“Headset“) and HyperSound®.
•

Turtle Beach is a worldwide leading provider of feature-rich headset solutions for use across multiple platforms, including video game and
entertainment consoles, handheld consoles, personal computers, tablets and mobile devices.

•

HyperSound technology is a pioneering audio solution that provides an effective means of projecting sound in a highly directional manner, without
use of large speaker arrays, to a specific location creating a precise audio zone. HyperSound directs a beam of audio to targeted listeners in a specific
spot, delivering an immersive, 3D-like audio experience.

Business Trends
Headset
Sales in the gaming accessories market, which includes headsets and other peripherals such as gamepads, specialty controllers, adapters, batteries,
memory and interactive gaming toys are heavily dependent on the global video game console industry. In 2013, the gaming industry experienced a cyclical
event as Microsoft and Sony each announced new consoles for the first time in eight years, and the consumer response to the Xbox One and PlayStation®4
(the “new generation” or “new-gen” consoles) has been overwhelmingly positive, creating a growing installed base of gamers and a market for new-gen
headsets.
Cumulative New Generation Console Sales (in millions)

Source: DFC Intelligence Forecasts: Worldwide Console Forecast, October 2016.

In September 2016, Sony discontinued the original PlayStation®4 console and released a new, slimmer, and lower-priced PlayStation®4 Slim, which
no longer includes an optical audio connector. Despite dropping the optical connector, we were
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largely able to accommodate this audio connectivity change via software updates to a small selection of our products affected by Sony's hardware change.
We believe this is a good indication that any potential future console changes are not expected to be nearly as disruptive as this past change as the new
generation of platform uses fairly standard audio connectivity, which we believe is unlikely to change and many headsets now have the capability to be
updated via software upgrades. Over the long term, we expect to benefit from the extension of the new-gen cycle, driven by the introductions of Xbox One S,
PlayStation®VR, PlayStation®4 Pro, and Microsoft's upcoming Project Scorpio, expected to be available in holiday of next year, which should result in
stronger gaming engagement for the next several years.
HyperSound
HyperSound technology is a pioneering audio solution that provides an effective means of projecting sound in a highly directional manner, without use
of large speaker arrays, to a specific location creating a precise audio zone. HyperSound directs a beam of audio to targeted listeners in a specific spot,
delivering an immersive, 3D-like audio experience. The Company sells HyperSound Professional Audio Solutions, which is being purchased for commercial
retail environments where a targeted zone of sound is desired.
Hearing Health Care. HyperSound technology offers a fundamentally new way to deliver sound, and our research indicates that it improves the home
listening experience.
Commercial. We are currently marketing our HyperSound technology to retailers and audio-visual integrators for use in settings where directed audio
and sound zones are beneficial, such as digital signage and interactive retail displays. Convenience retailers and fast moving consumer good brands face
ever-greater challenges as competition for customers intensifies, and as shoppers increasingly rely on in-store cues. As a result, digital signage is a growing
form of direct advertising, capturing an increasing share of advertising spending as restaurants, banks, retail outlets, museums and other outlets and
organizations employ commercial displays to communicate with patrons.
Consumer Applications. Our HyperSound technology has the potential to be developed into consumer products for various applications, including
computers, video game consoles, televisions, home theater and home audio. With the advent of flat panel displays for use in televisions and mobile devices,
manufacturers have been focused on creating thinner products often at the expense of sound quality. We believe that our ability to create a 3D sound image
from two thin emitters, compared to a five- or seven-speaker surround sound set-up using conventional speakers can deliver a compelling and enhanced
audio experience.
Results of Operations
Management Overview
In 2016, our next-gen headsets continued to gain market share led by stronger-than-expected demand for our entry-level Recon series headsets, the
introduction and sales of our Stealth 520 and 420X+ wireless headsets and solid overall performance across the rest of our line. As a result, our net revenues
increased $11.2 million, or 6.9%, to $174.0 million and headset margins improved 540 basis points to 31.9%.
In addition, we completed a ground-up redesign of the competitive gaming headset that brings to market multiple first-and-only innovations in the core
mechanics of headset design, weight and fit with the launch of our Elite Pro headset and tournament audio controller, which delivered a whole new level of
gaming audio. Further, the year marked our entrance into two small but burgeoning new markets in virtual reality and live streaming with our just-launched
Stealth 350VR headset, the first and only headset created specifically for use with the new virtual reality devices like PlayStation®VR and HTC Vive™; and
our Stream Mic, the first professional-quality live streaming microphone that works with Xbox One as well as with PlayStation 4, PC and Mac.
In September 2016, we started the process of restructuring the HyperSound business in an effort to reduce costs and align spending with revenues, while
continuing to pursue certain additional opportunities, including licensing the technology for HyperSound Glass and other applications. By tightly managing
the costs in our headset business our operating expenses, excluding non-cash asset impairments, decreased roughly 20% in the fourth quarter compared to
2015 and we expect to maintain that level with operating expenses approximately 20% lower for the full year in 2017.
For 2016, our reported net loss increased to $87.2 million, or diluted net loss per share of $1.79, driven largely by the negative non-cash impacts of the
goodwill and other intangible impairment charges and inventory reserves associated with the HyperSound restructuring. Our Headset Segment, reported net
loss of $0.7 million, with operating income, compared to a prior year net loss of $17.2 and negative operating income, on the strength of our new-gen
portfolio, product cost improvements and certain operating expense cost reduction efforts.
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Finally, as noted with the release of Sony's new, slimmer PlayStation®4 console, we believe future console changes will not be nearly as disruptive as
this past change was on our business as this new generation of platform uses fairly standard audio connectivity, which we believe is unlikely to change and
the majority of our headsets now have the capability to be updated with simple software upgrades. As such, in 2017, we expect to benefit from the extension
of the new-gen cycle, driven by the introductions of Xbox One S, PlayStation®VR, PlayStation®4 Pro, and Microsoft's upcoming Project Scorpio, expected
to be available in holiday of next year, which should result in stronger gaming engagement for the next several years.
Key Performance Indicators and Non-GAAP Measures
Management routinely reviews key performance indicators including revenue, operating income and margins, earnings per share, among others. In addition,
we believe certain other measures provide useful information to management and investors about us and our financial condition and results of operations for
the following reasons: (i) it is one of the measures used by our board of directors and management team to evaluate our operating performance; (ii) it is one of
the measures used by our management team to make day-to-day operating decisions; (iii) the adjustments made are often viewed as either non-recurring or
not reflective of ongoing financial performance or have no cash impact on operations; and (iv) it is used by securities analysts, investors and other interested
parties as a common operating performance measure to compare results across companies in our industry by backing out potential differences caused by
variations in capital structures (affecting relative interest expense), and the age and book value of facilities and equipment (affecting relative depreciation
and amortization expense). These metrics, however, are not measures of financial performance under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (“GAAP”) and, given the limitations of these metrics as analytical tools, should not be considered a substitute for gross profit, gross
margins, net income (loss) or other consolidated income statement data as determined in accordance with GAAP. We consider the following non-GAAP
measure, which may not be comparable to similarly titled measures reported by other companies, to be key performance indicators:
•

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation (non-cash) and,
certain special items that we believe are not representative of core operations.

•

Cash Margins is defined as gross margin excluding depreciation and amortization, and stock-based compensation.

Adjusted EBITDA
Adjusted EBITDA (and a reconciliation to Net loss, the nearest GAAP financial measure) for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 are as
follows:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Net loss

$

(87,182)
7,447
9,194
3,960
(387)
63,236
—
664
7,079

$

(82,907)
5,099
7,916
5,897
2,393
49,822
—
399
—

$

(15,486)
7,209
6,866
5,194
(6,272)
—
3,744
747
—

$

4,011

$

(11,381)

$

2,002

Interest expense
Depreciation and amortization
Stock-based compensation
Income tax expense (benefit)
Impairment charge
Business transaction costs
Restructuring charges
HyperSound business transition charge
Adjusted EBITDA

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2016 to the Year Ended December 31, 2015
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $87.2 million compared to a net loss of $82.9 million in the prior year period, including $0.2 million and
$17.2 million of net loss attributable to the Headset segment, for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the prior year, respectively.
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For the year ended December 31, 2016, Adjusted EBITDA on a consolidated basis was $4.0 million, including investments of $10.4 million in the
HyperSound business, compared to Adjusted EBITDA on a consolidated basis of $(11.4) million, including investments of $13.8 million in the HyperSound
business from the year ended December 31, 2015.
Headset Adjusted EBITDA totaled approximately $14.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $2.4 million in the prior year, despite the
negative impacts of $2.4 million related to foreign currency, as new-gen headset consumer demand on both platforms continued to drive higher North
American and United Kingdom retailer sales volumes and product mix driven margin improvement.
Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2015 to the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Net loss for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $82.9 million compared to a net loss of $15.5 million in the prior year period, including $17.2 million
and $2.0 million of net loss attributable to the Headset segment, for the year ended December 31, 2015 and the prior year, respectively.
For the year ended December 31, 2015, Adjusted EBITDA on a consolidated basis was $(11.4) million, including investments of $13.8 million in the
HyperSound business, compared to Adjusted EBITDA on a consolidated basis of $2.0 million, including investments of $10.0 million in the HyperSound
business from the year ended December 31, 2014.
Headset Adjusted EBITDA totaled approximately $2.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to $12.0 million in the prior year, which
included the initial sell-in of the Company's and the industry’s first ever Xbox One compatible headsets. In addition to the lower sales volume driven
primarily by the strong dollar on our international business, the current period was
negatively impacted by promotional credits to continue to clear channel inventory and higher third party licensing and royalty
Financial Results
The following table sets forth the Company’s statements of operations for the periods presented:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Net Revenue
Cost of Revenue

$

Gross Profit

173,978
131,368

$

42,610

Gross Margin

Operating loss

Interest expense
Other non-operating expense, net
Loss before income tax expense (benefit)

Income tax expense (benefit)
$

Net loss
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$

40,691

24.5%

Operating expenses

162,747
122,056

186,176
135,509
50,667

25.0%

27.2%

120,311

115,090

(77,701)
7,447
2,421

(74,399)
5,099
1,016

(13,825)
7,209
724

(87,569)
(387)

(80,514)
2,393

(21,758)
(6,272)

(87,182)

$

(82,907)

64,492

$

(15,486)

Net Revenue and Gross Profit
Headset Segment
The following table summarizes net revenue and gross profit for the periods presented:
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Net Revenue
Gross Profit
Gross Margin
Cash Margin (1)

$

173,323
$
55,221
31.9%
32.5%

161,835
$
42,832
26.5%
27.5%

185,469
50,550
27.3%
27.5%

(1) Excludes non-cash charges of $1.1 million, $1.7 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

Comparison of Fiscal Years 2016 and 2015
Net revenues for year ended December 31, 2016 increased $11.2 million, or 6.9%, with 28.8% increase in new-gen headset sales on robust North American
retailer sales (up 10.9%) and less promotional activity as a result of continued stronger-than-expected demand for our entry-level Recon series headsets,
positive consumer response to the introduction and sales of the Stealth 420X+ and Playstation compatible headset market gains across all price points lead
by the Ear Force PX24 and the introduction of the Stealth 520.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, gross profit as a percentage of net revenue increased to 31.9% from 26.5% in the prior year. The year-over-year
improved margin was primarily due to product mix, as heavily discounted old-gen products are no longer a significant portion of revenues with new-gen
headsets up to 92.3% of net revenues, a channel mix shift to higher margin North America retailers as well as an operational move away from branded
headsets that reduced third party licensing and royalty costs.
Comparison of Fiscal Years 2015 and 2014
Net revenues for year ended December 31, 2015, which decreased $23.4 million, or 12.6%, were negatively impacted by a more rapid than expected decline
in old-gen revenues, which were down over $40 million compared to 2014 and, the strong dollar on our international business that declined 29.0% in the
United Kingdom and 28.0% in Europe. These declines were
offset, in part, by a 27.0% increase in new-gen revenues reflecting the continued positive consumer reaction to the XO ONE, XO FOUR Stealth and Stealth
500P headsets and the strong performance of our new products as we completed our headset portfolio transition with the launch of five new headsets for the
holiday season.
Despite the benefit of the product mix shift to higher margin new-gen headsets during the second half of the year, for the year ended December 31, 2015,
gross profit as a percentage of net revenue decreased to 26.5% from 27.3% in the prior year. The year-over-year decrease in gross margin performance was
primarily due to higher promotion credits to clear, and subsequent excess reserves of, old-gen and licensed headsets, incremental costs associated with our
refurbishment model and contract manufacture transitions and, higher third party licensing and royalty costs. Excluding the impact of $1.8 million previous
generation and licensed headset charges, gross profit as a percentage of net sales would have been 27.6% driven largely by sales of higher margin headsets.
HyperSound Segment
December 31,
2016

HyperSound
Gross Profit

2015

655
(12,611)
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2014

912
(2,141)

707
117

Comparison of Fiscal Years 2016 and 2015
Net revenues for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 reflect the initial sales of the HyperSound Clear 500P product that launched in November
2015. The slower than anticipated ramp in sales volumes resulted from the extensive training and resources necessary to build market awareness in the
hearing healthcare channel and we reduced resources as part of our transition away from Clear 500P direct sales in order to pursue a licensing model.
As a result of certain costs related to the HyperSound Clear 500P product, including the incremental amortization expense related to technological feasibility
of the purchased in-process research and development intangible asset and $7.1 million inventory reserve in connection with the Company’s HyperSound
strategic alternative plans, gross profit as a percentage of net revenue was negative for the year. Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policy”
for additional information.
Comparison of Fiscal Years 2015 and 2014
Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2015 were $0.9 million and reflect the initial sales of the HyperSound Clear 500P product that launched in
November 2015, compared to $0.7 million in the prior year primarily from the first wide-scale deployment of the commercial product in Activision Call of
Duty® retail displays.
As a result of certain start-up costs related to the HyperSound Clear 500P product, including the incremental amortization expense related to technological
feasibility of the purchased in-process research and development intangible asset, gross profit as a percentage of net revenue was negative for the year ended
December 31, 2015. Excluding these costs, the cash margin was 39.8% reflecting the initial shipments of the higher margin HyperSound Clear 500P product.
Operating Expenses
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Selling and marketing
$
Research and development
General and administrative
Business transaction costs
Goodwill and other intangible asset impairment
Restructuring charges

28,572
8,259
19,580
—
63,236
664

$

31,829
11,556
21,484
—
49,822
399

$

33,442
9,400
17,159
3,744
—
747

$

120,311

$

115,090

$

64,492

$
$

46,588
73,723

$
$

51,530
63,560

$
$

51,640
13,167

Total operating expenses
By Segment:
Headset
HyperSound
Selling and Marketing

Selling and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2016 totaled $28.6 million, or 16.4% as a percentage of net revenues, compared to $31.8
million, or 19.6% as a percentage of net revenues, for the prior year. This decrease was attributable to headcount reductions in connection with our marketing
department realignment ($0.7 million), lower retail marketing and depreciation, as certain of our major retail customers have shifted away from independent
in-store displays.
Selling and marketing expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 totaled $31.8 million, or 19.6% as a percentage of net revenues, compared to $33.4
million, or 18.0% as a percentage of net revenues, for the prior year. The 4.8% decrease was primarily due to lower direct media spend and licensing costs
($1.5 million) and a reduction in trade show spend ($0.9 million) in connection with a strategic shift to more targeted promotional activity, partially offset by
incremental marketing costs and additional sales force related to the HyperSound Clear 500P product launch.
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Research and Development
Despite the continued development initiatives such as the Stealth 350VR headset, Stream Mic and HyperSound Glass, research and development expenses
for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased versus the prior year on cost reductions following the launch of the HyperSound Clear 500P product ($3.0
million).
The increase in research and development expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 versus the prior year was primarily due to increased staffing levels
to support the development of the HyperSound Clear 500P product ($1.9 million) as well as new advanced audio and wireless development initiatives to
expand our Xbox One compatible headset portfolio and launch of our true multiplatform headset - the EarForce PX24 ($0.3 million).
General and Administrative
General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2016 decreased $1.9 million to $19.6 million compared to $21.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2015. The year over year decrease was primarily due to a lower non-cash stock compensation charges as compared to incremental
expense in connection with our stock option exchange in the prior year ($1.1 million), a reduction in HyperSound related expenses ($0.4 million) and lower
legal expenses ($0.3 million).
General and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015 increased $4.3 million to $21.5 million compared to $17.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014. The year over year increase was primarily driven by higher employee costs as a result of the full year impact of additional
headcount required of a public company ($1.5 million), legal fees associated with recent public filings in connection with our stock option exchange and
financing activities ($0.7 million) and higher stock compensation expense ($0.7 million).
Goodwill and Other Intangibles Impairment
As a result of interim and annual impairment tests, for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, we recorded a $63.2 million and $49.8
million goodwill impairment charge, respectively, in connection with the decline in implied fair value of the HyperSound reporting unit. There were no such
charges in 2014.
Business Transaction
Business transaction expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014 incurred in connection with the Merger included investment banker success fees of $2.2
million payable upon the close of the merger and legal and accounting fees required to complete the transaction. There were no such charges in 2016 or
2015.
Restructuring Charges
During 2014, we began to focus on company-wide overhead and operating expense cost reduction activities, such as closing excess facilities and reducing
redundancies. In connection with our efforts to improve our operating efficiency in our Headset business and reduce costs, we consolidated certain
operational functions in 2016 and completed the closure of certain production operations at one of our contract manufacturing operations in China in 2015.
In September 2016, we announced actions intended to significantly reduce HyperSound business operating expenses while pursuing strategic alternatives
and evolving the business to a licensing model.
Interest Expense
Interest expense increased $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2016 primarily due to $1.6 million of additional interest related to the Term Loan
Due 2019 and the Subordinated Notes, and non-cash amortization of related debt issuance costs.
Interest expense decreased $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 primarily due to the write-off of $2.2 million of unamortized debt issuance
costs related to the refinancing of our credit facility in the comparable period. Excluding this item, interest expense increased $0.1 million as additional
interest related to the issuance of the Term Loan Due 2019 and subordinated notes offset by savings associated with rate reductions and lower average
borrowings on our revolving line of credit.
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Income Taxes
Income tax benefit for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $0.4 million at an effective tax rate of 0.4% compared to income tax expense of $2.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2015 at an effective tax rate of (3.0)%. The effective tax rate was primarily impacted by the full valuation allowance on
domestic earnings, foreign entity tax benefits and certain state tax expense.
Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $2.4 million at an effective tax rate of (3.0)% compared to income tax benefit $6.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2014 at an effective tax rate of 28.8%. The effective tax rate was primarily impacted by two discrete items, the release of certain
reserves related to uncertain tax positions due to the closure of an IRS examination and the establishment of a valuation allowance on all of our deferred tax
assets in the United States and the United Kingdom.
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Other non-operating expenses increased for the year ended December 31, 2016 to $2.4 million due to negative effect if the Brexit vote on exchange rates as it
relates to our United Kingdom operations.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our primary sources of working capital are cash flow from operations and availability of capital under our revolving credit facility. We have funded
operations and acquisitions in recent periods with operating cash flows, and proceeds from debt and equity financings.
The following table summarizes our sources and uses of cash:
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Net cash used for operating activities
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of foreign exchange on cash

$

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

$

7,114 $
(1,830)
(3,229)
4,213
(85)
6,183

$

7,908 $
(15,133)
(6,693)
21,134
(102)
7,114

$

6,509
(14,834)
557
15,969
(293)
7,908

Operating activities
Cash used for operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $1.8 million, a decline of $13.3 million as compared to $15.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2015. The year-over-year decrease is primarily the result of certain operational actions to lower net cash burn in the HyperSound
business and better align costs with our revenue, and increased Headset cash flows on the strength of our new-gen portfolio, product cost improvements and
certain operating expense cost reduction efforts.
Cash used for operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $15.1 million compared to $14.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2014.
The year-over-year increase is primarily the result of lower net income adjusted for non-cash expenses and higher year-over-year payments of accounts
payable due to incremental expenses incurred in connection with the launch of the HyperSound Clear 500P product. These impacts were offset, in part, by the
valuation allowance recorded on the Company's deferred tax assets.
Investing activities
Cash used for investing activities was $3.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $6.7 million in 2015, primarily due to lower
capital expenditures compared to certain tooling purchases in connection with the expansion of our headset portfolio and the initial production line for
HyperSound Clear 500P in the prior year. In 2016, capital expenditures primarily related to interactive display purchases and certain website costs.
Cash used for investing activities was $6.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to cash provided by
31

investing activities of $0.6 million in 2014, which included $4.1 million of cash acquired in the Merger. Capital expenditures
increased $3.2 million compared to the prior year to $6.7 million primarily due to expenditures on tooling related to the
expansion of our headset portfolio and the initial production line for HyperSound Clear 500P as well as interactive display
purchases in connection with our initial international headset display units.
Financing activities
Net cash provided by financing activities was $4.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2016 compared to $21.1 million and $16.0 million during
the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. Financing activities in 2016 included $6.0 million of proceeds from the sale of common stock
and net borrowings on our revolving credit facilities of $3.4 million, partially offset by $4.0 million of term loan repayments and $1.2 million in debt
issuance costs related to recent debt amendments.
Financing activities in 2015 included the issuance of a $15 million term loan and $16.3 million principal amount of
subordinated notes, partially offset by repayments of term loans and net payments on our revolving credit facilities of $8.8
million.
Financing activities in 2014 included $37.2 million of proceeds from the sale of common stock, the issuance of $7.0 million principal amount of
subordinated notes and a $7.7 million term loan borrowing partially offset by (i) net payments on our revolving credit facilities of $2.9 million, (ii)
repayment of our $14.5 million legacy term loan and (iii) repayment of $18.5 million of outstanding subordinated notes.
Management assessment of liquidity
Management believes that our current cash and cash equivalents, the amounts available under our revolving credit facility, the impact of the proceeds from
our recent financings and cash flows derived from operations will be sufficient to meet anticipated cash needs for working capital and capital expenditures for
at least the next 12 months. Significant assumptions underlie this belief, including, among other things, that there will be no material adverse developments
in our business, liquidity or capital requirements.
We believe the combination of our revolving credit facility, long-term debt and cash flow generated by our gaming headset business and reduced costs
related to the HyperSound business will provide the necessary liquidity to fund our annual working capital needs.
Foreign cash balances at December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 were $0.2 million and $0.2 million, respectively.
Revolving Credit Facility
On March 31, 2014, Turtle Beach and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a new asset-based revolving credit agreement (“Credit Facility”) with Bank of
America, N.A., as Agent, Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, which replaced the then existing loan and security agreement. The Credit Facility, which
expires on March 31, 2019, provides for a line of credit of up to $60 million inclusive of a sub-facility limit of $10 million for TB Europe, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Turtle Beach. The Credit Facility may be used for working capital, the issuance of bank guarantees, letters of credit and other corporate
purposes.
The maximum credit availability for loans and letters of credit under the Credit Facility is governed by a borrowing base determined by the application of
specified percentages to certain eligible assets, primarily eligible trade accounts receivable and inventories, and is subject to discretionary reserves and
revaluation adjustments.
Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility bear interest at a rate equal to either a rate published by Bank of America or the LIBOR rate, plus in each case,
an applicable margin, which is between 1.00% to 1.50% for U.S. base rate loans and between 2.00% to 2.50% for U.S. LIBOR loans and U.K. loans. As of
December 31, 2016, interest rates for outstanding borrowings were 5.25% for base rate loans and 3.21% for LIBOR rate loans. In addition, Turtle Beach is
required to pay a commitment fee on the unused revolving loan commitment at a rate ranging from 0.25% to 0.50%, and letter of credit fees and agent fees.
If certain availability thresholds are not met, meaning that the Company does not have receivables and inventory which are eligible to borrow on under the
Credit Facility in excess of amounts borrowed, the Credit Facility requires the Company and its restricted subsidiaries to maintain a fixed charge coverage
ratio. The fixed charge ratio is defined as the ratio, determined on a consolidated basis for the most recent four fiscal quarters, of (a) EBITDA minus capital
expenditures, excluding those financed through other instruments, and cash taxes paid, and (b) Fixed Charges defined as the sum of cash interest expense
plus
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scheduled principal payments. The current fixed charge coverage ratio of at least 1.15 to 1.00 on the last day of each month while a Covenant Trigger Period
(as defined in the Credit Facility) is in effect will become effective again after the Company has complied with such ratio for six consecutive months.
The Credit Facility also contains affirmative and negative covenants that, subject to certain exceptions, limit our ability to take certain actions, including our
ability to incur debt, pay dividends and repurchase stock, make certain investments and other payments, enter into certain mergers and consolidations,
engage in sale leaseback transactions and transactions with affiliates and encumber and dispose of assets. Obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by
a security interest and lien upon substantially all of the Company's assets.
On November 2, 2015, the Company entered into a sixth amendment (the “Sixth Amendment”) to the Credit Facility pursuant to which Bank of America and
the lenders amended certain provisions of the Credit Facility to, among other things, modify certain provisions to provide (i) that the Company will make
certain periodic reports with respect to certain financial metrics and (ii) that the loan availability is decreased by an additional block.
On December 1, 2015, in connection with the sixth amendment, the Company amended the definition of EBITDA to exclude certain non-recurring expenses
and replaced certain financial covenants by amended EBITDA levels each month beginning with the month ended December 31, 2015 through (and
including) the month ending March 31, 2017 (with revised financial covenants to be agreed upon based on new financial projections after such date) on both
an overall and segment-by-segment basis.
On February 1, 2016, the Company further amended certain provisions of the Credit Facility to, among other things, provide that, on or prior to February 5,
2016, the Company receive net proceeds of not less than $6.0 million of additional equity capital or additional third lien debt financing and apply such
proceeds against the outstanding principal balance of the working capital line of credit, amend the definition of EBITDA to exclude certain non-recurring
expenses and replace certain financial covenants by amended EBITDA levels. The Company satisfied its paydown obligation with the proceeds from the
Offering and private placement. Refer to Note 2, “Equity Offering and Private Placement” for further details.
On June 17, 2016, the Company amended certain provisions of the Credit Facility to, among other things, temporarily reduce the existing loan availability
blocks, maintain certain cash flow levels with respect to its HyperSound division during each rolling four week period through the period ending October 28,
2016 and make certain periodic reports with respect to certain financial metrics.
On October 31, 2016, in connection with the recently announced HyperSound business restructuring, the Company amended certain provisions to provide,
among other things, that (i) the existing loan availability blocks be permanently reduced during certain specified periods, (ii) replaced certain financial
covenants determined on a segment-by-segment basis by amended EBITDA levels for the Headset business beginning with the month ended October 31,
2016, (iii) the Company maintain revised cash flow levels, in the aggregate and with respect to its HyperSound segment, during each rolling four week period
beginning with the period ended October 31, 2016 through December 31, 2018 and September 30, 2017, respectively, and (iv) in the event the Company’s
availability is less than certain specified amounts, obtain additional funding from the issuance of a subordinated promissory note provided by SG VTB (the
“Promissory Note”).
As of December 31, 2016, the Company was in compliance with all the amended financial covenants, and excess borrowing availability was approximately
$11.0 million, net of the outstanding Term Loan Due 2018 (as defined below) that is considered to be an additional outstanding amount under the Credit
Facility.
Term Loans
Term Loan Due 2018
On December 29, 2014, the Company amended the Credit Facility to permit the repayment of $7.7 million of then existing subordinated debt and accrued
interest with the proceeds thereof with Bank of America to enter into an additional loan (the “Term Loan”). The Term Loan resulted in modified financial
covenants while it is outstanding, will bear interest at a rate of LIBOR for the applicable interest period plus 5% and will be repaid in equal monthly
installments beginning on April 1, 2015, including a six month waiver and ending on October 1, 2018. As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal
balance was $3.6 million.
Term Loan Due 2019
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On July 22, 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries, entered into a term loan, guaranty and security agreement (the “Term Loan Due 2019”) with Crystal
Financial LLC, as agent, sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner, Crystal Financial SPV LLC and the other persons party thereto (“Crystal”), which provides
for an aggregate term loan commitment of $15 million that bears interest at a rate per annum equal to the 90-day LIBOR rate plus 10.25%. Under the terms of
the Term Loan Due 2019, we are required to make payments of interest in arrears on the first day of each month beginning August 1, 2015 and will repay the
principal in monthly payments beginning January 1, 2016, inclusive of a nine month waiver, with a final payment on June 28, 2019, the maturity date.
The Term Loan Due 2019 is secured by a security interest in substantially all of the Company and each of its subsidiaries' working capital assets and is
subject to the first-priority lien of Bank of America , N.A., as agent, under the Credit Facility, other than with respect to equipment, fixtures, real property
interests, intellectual property, intercompany property, intercompany indebtedness, equity interest in their subsidiaries, and certain other assets specified in
an inter-creditor agreement between Bank of America and Crystal.
The Company and its subsidiaries are required to comply with various customary covenants including, (i) maintaining minimum EBITDA (as defined in the
Term Loan Due 2019) in each trailing twelve month period beginning August 31, 2015, (ii) maintaining a Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the
Term Loan Due 2019) to be measured on the last day of each month while the term loans are outstanding of no more than 5.75:1 beginning December 31,
2015 with periodic step-downs to 3.00:1 on January 31, 2018, (iii) not making capital expenditures in excess of $11 million in the year ending December 31,
2015 and in excess of $5 million in each of the years ending December 31, 2016, 2018 and 2019 and in excess of $5.5 million in the year ending
December 31, 2017, (iv) restrictions on the Company’s and its subsidiaries ability to prepay its subordinated notes, pay dividends, incur debt, create or suffer
liens and engage in certain fundamental transactions and (v) an obligation to provide certain financial and other information. The agreement permits certain
equity holders of the Company to contribute funds to the Company to cure certain financial covenant defaults.
On February 1, 2016, the Company entered into a third amendment (the “Term Loan Amendment”) to the Term Loan Due 2019 to, among other things,
amend the definition of EBITDA to exclude certain non-recurring expenses and replace certain financial covenants by amended EBITDA levels each month
beginning with the month ended December 31, 2015 and on a trailing twelve-month period basis beginning with the period ending October 31, 2016,
through the termination date on both an overall and segment-by-segment basis.
On June 17, 2016, the Company entered into a fourth amendment to the Term Loan Due 2019 to, among other things, temporarily reduce the existing loan
availability blocks, maintain certain cash flow levels with respect to its HyperSound division during each rolling four week period through the period ending
October 28, 2016 and make certain periodic reports with respect to certain financial metrics.
On October 31, 2016, in connection with the recently announced HyperSound business restructuring, the Company amended certain provisions to provide,
among other things, that (i) the existing loan availability blocks be permanently reduced during certain specified periods, (ii) replaced certain financial
covenants determined on a segment-by-segment basis by amended EBITDA levels for the Headset business beginning with the month ended October 31,
2016, (iii) the Company maintain revised cash flow levels, in the aggregate and with respect to its HyperSound segment, during each rolling four week period
beginning with the period ended October 31, 2016 through December 31, 2018 and September 30, 2017, respectively, and (iv) in the event the Company’s
availability is less than certain specified amounts, obtain additional funding from the issuance of a subordinated promissory note provided by SG VTB (the
“Promissory Note”).
As of December 31, 2016, the Company was in compliance with the amended financial covenants, and outstanding principal balance was $10.7 million.
Subordination Agreement
On November 16, 2015, as a condition precedent to our lenders permitting certain subordinated notes, we entered into a subordinated agreement with and
between certain parties that our obligations under any such notes would be subordinated in right of payment in full of all the Company's obligations under
the Credit Facility and Term Loan Due 2019.
Subordinated Notes - Related Party
Concurrently with the completion of the Term Loan Due 2019, the Company amended and restated each of its outstanding subordinated notes (the
“Amended Notes”). The $13.8 million obligation of the Company under the Amended Notes is subordinate and junior to the prior payment of amounts due
under the Credit Facility and Term Loan Due 2019. In addition, the
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stated maturity date of the Amended Notes was extended to September 29, 2019, subject to acceleration in certain circumstances, such as a change of control
in the Company. The Amended Notes bear interest at a rate per annum equal to LIBOR plus 10.5% and shall be paid-in-kind by adding the amount to the
principal amount due. Further, as consideration for the concessions in the Amended Notes, the Company issued warrants to purchase 1.7 million of the
Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.54 per share.
On November 16, 2015, the Company issued a $2.5 million subordinated note (the “November Note”) to SG VTB, the proceeds of which, as set forth in the
amendment to the Term Loan Due 2019, were applied against the outstanding balance of the Term Loan Due 2019. The November Note will bear interest at a
rate of 15% per annum until its maturity date, which is September 29, 2019, and is subordinated to all senior debt of the Company. In connection with the
November Note, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share.
On October 31, 2016, in connection with certain amendments to the Credit Facility and Term Loan Due 2019, the Company and SG VTB entered into the
Promissory Note, which states that in the event the Company’s availability under the Credit Facility is less than certain specified amounts, the Company may,
upon request, at any time until September 29, 2019 require that SG VTB provide a $2 million subordinated loan. Upon issuance, the loan would bear interest
at a rate of either (i) LIBOR plus 10.5% per annum or (ii) 12.0%, dependent upon the Company’s compliance with certain financial covenants and would be
subordinated to all senior debt of the Company. Concurrent with entering into the November Note and Third Lien Guaranty, the Company also issued to SG
VTB a warrant to purchase 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per share.
In addition, under the terms of the Promissory Note, if and when the funding occurs, as additional consideration the Company would issue to SG VTB a
warrant, exercisable for a period of ten years beginning on the date of issuance, to purchase an amount of shares of the Company’s common stock equal to
2.4% of the Company’s then fully diluted shares outstanding at an exercise price equal to the closing price on that date. The warrant would not entitle the
holder to any voting rights or other rights as a stockholder of the Company prior to exercise.
SG VTB is an affiliate of Stripes Group LLC (“Stripes”), a private equity firm focused on internet, software, healthcare IT and branded consumer products
businesses. Kenneth A. Fox, one of our directors, is the managing general partner of Stripes and the sole manager of SG VTB and Ronald Doornink, our
Chairman of the Board, is an operating partner of Stripes.
Series B redeemable preferred stock
In September 2010, VTBH issued 1,000,000 shares of its Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock with a fair value of $12.4 million. We are required to redeem
the Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock on the earlier to occur of September 28, 2030 or the occurrence of a liquidation event (as defined in VTBH's
Certificate of Incorporation) at its original issue price of $12.425371 per share plus any accrued but unpaid dividends. The redemption value was $17.5
million and $16.1 million as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
Critical Accounting Estimates
Our discussion and analysis of our results of operations and capital resources are based on our condensed consolidated financial statements, which have been
prepared in conformity with GAAP. The preparation of these condensed consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Management
bases its estimates, assumptions and judgments on historical experience and on various other factors that it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Different assumptions and judgments would change the estimates used in the preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements, which, in turn,
could change the results from those reported. Management evaluates its estimates, assumptions and judgments on an ongoing basis.
Based on the above, we have determined that our most critical accounting policies are those related to revenue recognition and sales return reserve, inventory
valuation, asset impairment, and income taxes.
Revenue Recognition and Sales Return Reserve
Revenue is recognized when products are shipped and title has been transferred to a customer, the sales price is fixed and determinable, and collection is
reasonably assured. Product is considered delivered to the customer once it has been shipped and title and risk of loss have been transferred. Net revenue for
on-line purchases is recognized when products are shipped from our distribution facilities.
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Provisions for cash discounts, quantity rebates, and sales returns in the period the sale is recorded, based upon our prior experience and current trends, as a
reduction of revenue. These revenue reductions are established based upon management’s best estimates at the time of sale following the historical trend,
adjusted to reflect known changes in the factors that impact such reserves and allowances, and the terms of agreements with customers.
Inventory Valuation
Inventories are valued at the lower of weighted average cost or market, at the individual item level. Market is determined based on the estimated net
realizable value, which is generally the selling price. Inventory levels are monitored to identify slow-moving items and markdowns are used to clear such
product. Physical inventory counts are performed annually in January and estimates are made for any shortage between the date of the physical inventory
count and the balance sheet date.
Asset Impairment
We have significant long-lived tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill with indefinite lives, which are susceptible to valuation adjustments as a
result of changes in various factors or conditions. We assess the potential impairment of intangible and fixed assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that full recoverability of net asset balances through future cash flows is in question. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
are assessed at least annually, but also whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable. Factors we consider
important, which could trigger an impairment of such assets include significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results;
significant changes in the manner of or use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our overall business; significant negative industry or economic trends;
significant decline in our stock price for a sustained period; and a decline in our market capitalization below net book value.
Management estimates future pre-tax cash flows based on historical experience, knowledge and market data. Estimates of future cash flows require that we
make assumptions and apply judgment, including forecasting future sales and expenses and estimating useful lives of the assets. These estimates can be
affected by factors such as future product development and economic conditions that can be difficult to predict, as well as other factors such as those outlined
in “Risk Factors.” If the expected future cash flows related to the long-lived assets are less than the assets’ carrying value, an impairment loss would be
recognized for the difference between estimated fair value and carrying value.
There are inherent assumptions and estimates used in developing future cash flows requiring management judgment including projecting revenues, interest
rates and the cost of capital. Many of the factors used in assessing fair value are outside our control and it is reasonably likely that assumptions and estimates
will change in future periods. These changes can result in future impairments.
In connection with the Merger, the Company performed a valuation of the acquired goodwill and intangible assets and recorded $81.0 million of goodwill
based on the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. As a result of the annual impairment assessment as of November 1, 2015, the Company
recorded a $49.8 million goodwill impairment charge, which resulted in a $31.2 million remaining carrying value as of December 31, 2015. The goodwill
impairment was attributed to planned revenues reflective of certain operational decisions, including a slower roll-out to ensure customer satisfaction, an
increase to the risk factor that is included in the discount rate used to calculate the discounted cash flows and continued deterioration of the stock price.
During 2016, as a result of the shortfall versus plan and capital intensive nature of the rollout, we concluded that indicators of potential goodwill impairment
were present and based on the two-step impairment test, recorded goodwill and other intangibles charges of $63.2 million, which resulted in no remaining
carrying value as of December 31, 2016. Refer to Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policy” for further details.
Income Taxes
We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
based on the differences between the financial statement carrying value of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates and laws expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax
rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Inherent in the measurement of these
deferred balances are certain judgments and interpretations of existing tax law and other published guidance as applied to our operations. Our effective tax
rate considers our judgment of expected tax liabilities in the various jurisdictions within which we are subject to tax.
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The determination of the need for a valuation allowance on deferred tax assets requires Management to make assumptions and to apply judgment, including
forecasting future earnings, taxable income, and the mix of earnings in the jurisdictions in which we operate. During 2015, as a result of cumulative losses in
recent years primarily due to incremental costs associated with the console transition, acquisition costs and initial investments in the HyperSound business,
the Company concluded that a full valuation allowance is required on its net deferred tax assets.
The tax effects of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns are recognized only if they are “more likely-than-not” to be
sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits as of the reporting date. The tax benefits recognized in the financial
statements from such positions are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
settlement. We recognize estimated accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense.
We are currently under examination by certain state and local taxing jurisdictions. Further, at any given time, multiple tax years may be subject to
examination by various taxing authorities. The recorded amounts of income tax are subject to adjustment upon examination, changes in interpretation and
changes in judgment utilized in determining estimates.
See Note 1, “Summary of Significant Accounting Policy,” in the notes to the consolidated financial statements for a complete discussion of recent accounting
pronouncements. We are currently evaluating the impact of certain recently issued guidance on our financial condition and results of operations in future
periods.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Off balance sheet arrangements are transactions, agreements, or other contractual arrangements with an unconsolidated entity for which we have an
obligation to the entity that is not recorded in the consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2016, there are no significant off-balance sheet
arrangements.
Contractual Obligations
Our principal commitments primarily consist of obligations for minimum payment commitments to leases for office space, redeemable preferred stock and the
revolving credit facility. As of December 31, 2016, the future non-cancelable minimum payments under these commitments were as follows:
Payments Due by Period
(in thousands)
Less Than One
Year

Total
Contractual Obligations: (1)
Operating lease obligations (2)
Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock (3)
Long term debt (4)
Interest payments on long-term debt (5)
Total

1 - 3 Years

3 - 5 Years

$

5,135
51,928
69,676
12,181

$

1,663
—
38,552
1,340

$

2,824
—
11,720
579

$

648
—
19,404
10,262

$

138,920

$

41,555

$

15,123

$

30,314

More Than Five
Years
—
51,928
—
—
$

51,928

(1) Contractual obligations exclude tax liabilities of $1.5 million related to uncertain tax positions because we are unable to make a reasonably reliable
estimate of the timing of settlement, if any, of these future payments.
(2) Operating lease agreements represent obligations to make payments under non-cancelable lease agreements for its facilities.
(3) In September 2010, VTBH issued shares of its Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock. If the Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock is still outstanding as of
October 2030 or if the Company experiences a liquidation event as defined in VTBH's Certification of Incorporation, the Company will be required to
redeem the shares for an aggregate of $51.9 million, which is comprised of the aggregate purchase price of $12.4 million plus cumulative preferred
dividends of 8.0% per annum, or $39.5 million in the aggregate. See Note 13, “Commitments and Contingencies”, for further information.
(4) On March 31, 2014, the Company entered into the Credit Facility that expires March 31, 2019. However, due to certain terms of the facility, the
indebtedness is required to be classified as a current liability. Long term debt includes scheduled principal payments only. See Note 7, “Credit
Facilities and Long-Term Debt” for further information.
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(5) These amounts reflect estimated interest payments under our outstanding long-term debt agreements based on the applicable rates in effect as of
December 31, 2016, except for interest payments under our Credit Facility because the amount that will be borrowed in future years is uncertain.
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Item 7A - Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosures about Market Risk
Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact its financial position due to adverse changes in financial market prices and rates. The Company's
market risk exposure is primarily a result of fluctuations in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and inflation.
To date, the Company has used derivative financial instruments, specifically foreign currency forward and option contracts, to manage exposure to foreign
currency risks, by hedging a portion of its forecasted expenses denominated in British Pounds expected to occur within a year. The effect of exchange rate
changes on foreign currency forward and option contracts is expected to offset the effect of exchange rate changes on the underlying hedged item. The
Company does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. As of December 31, 2016, we do not have any derivative financial
instruments.
Interest Rate Risk
The Company's total variable rate debt is comprised of $35.9 million outstanding under the Credit Facility, $14.4 million presented as term loans and $16.5
million of Subordinated Notes. A hypothetical 10% increase in borrowing rates at December 31, 2016 would have resulted in a $0.3 million annual increase
in interest expense on the existing principal balance.
Foreign Currency Exchange Risk
The Company has exchange rate exposure, primarily, with respect to the British Pound. As of December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, our monetary assets and
liabilities which are subject to this exposure are immaterial, therefore the potential immediate loss to us that would result from a hypothetical 10% change in
foreign currency exchange rates would not be expected to have a material impact on our earnings or cash flows. This sensitivity analysis assumes an
unfavorable 10% fluctuation in the exchange rates affecting the foreign currencies in which monetary assets and liabilities are denominated and does not
take into account the offsetting effect of such a change on our foreign currency denominated revenues.
Inflation Risk
The Company is exposed to market risk due to the possibility of inflation, such as increases in the cost of its products. Although the Company does not
believe that inflation has had a material impact on its financial position or results of operations to date, a high rate of inflation in the future may have an
adverse effect on the Company’s ability to maintain current levels of gross margin and selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net
revenue if the selling prices of products do not increase with these increased costs.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Turtle Beach Corporation
San Diego, California
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Turtle Beach Corporation as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the related consolidated
statements of operations, comprehensive loss, convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2016. In connection with our audits of the financial statements, we have also audited the financial statement schedule listed in the
accompanying index. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements and schedules. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Turtle Beach
Corporation at December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years in the years then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Also, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.
/s/ BDO USA, LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
March 8, 2017

41

Turtle Beach Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2016
ASSETS

December 31, 2015

(in thousands, except par value and share amounts)

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

6,183

$

7,114

Accounts receivable, less allowances for $12,783 and $13,829 in 2016 and 2015, respectively

54,633

57,192

Inventories

21,698

26,146

Prepaid income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total Current Assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Deferred income taxes
Other assets
Total Assets

—

260

4,121

4,191

86,635

94,903

4,311

6,859

—

31,152

1,618

37,956

543

—

1,693

1,590

$

94,800

$

172,460

$

35,905

$

32,453

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current Liabilities:
Revolving credit facilities
Term loans

2,647

4,814

Accounts payable

11,927

17,680

Other current liabilities

16,414

14,236

66,893

69,183

Term loans, long-term portion

10,442

12,174

Series B redeemable preferred stock

17,480

16,145

Total Current Liabilities

Deferred income taxes
Subordinated notes - related party
Other liabilities
Total Liabilities

—

4

17,881

15,365

2,800

2,937

115,496

115,808

Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock, $0.001 par value - 100,000,000 shares authorized; 49,251,336 and 42,529,502 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

49

43

146,615

136,693

(166,800)

(79,618)

(560)

Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

(466)

(20,696)
$

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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94,800

56,652
$

172,460

Turtle Beach Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Year Ended
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

(in thousands, except share and per share data)
Net Revenue

$

Cost of Revenue
Gross Profit

173,978

$

162,747

$

186,176

131,368

122,056

135,509

42,610

40,691

50,667
33,442

Operating expenses:
Selling and marketing

28,572

31,829

Research and development

8,259

11,556

9,400

General and administrative

19,580

21,484

17,159

Goodwill and other intangible asset impairment

63,236

49,822

—

664

399

747

Restructuring charges
Business transaction costs

—

—

3,744

Total operating expenses

120,311

115,090

64,492

Operating loss

(77,701)

(74,399)

(13,825)

Interest expense

7,447

5,099

7,209

Other non-operating expense, net

2,421

1,016

(87,569)

(80,514)

Loss before income tax expense (benefit)
Income tax expense (benefit)

(387)

724
(21,758)

2,393

(6,272)

$

(87,182)

$

(82,907)

$

(15,486)

Basic

$

(1.79)

$

(1.96)

$

(0.39)

Diluted

$

(1.79)

$

(1.96)

$

(0.39)

Net loss
Net loss per share :

Weighted average number of shares:
Basic

48,592

42,269

39,665

Diluted

48,592

42,269

39,665

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Turtle Beach Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

December 31,
2015

December 31,
2014

(in thousands)

Net loss

$

(87,182)

$

(82,907)

$

(15,486)

Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustment

(94)

(237)

(334)

Other comprehensive income (loss)
(94)
Comprehensive loss

$

(87,276)

(237)
$

(83,144)

(334)
$

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(15,820)

Turtle Beach Corporation
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31,
2016

2015

$

Net loss

2014

(in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(87,182)

$

(82,907)

$

(15,486)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used for operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

5,066

5,901

5,800

Amortization of intangible assets

4,128

2,015

1,066

Amortization of deferred financing costs

1,342

360

2,621

Stock-based compensation

3,960

5,897

5,194

Accrued interest on Series B redeemable preferred stock

1,335

1,230

1,203

Paid in kind interest

2,156

947

Deferred income taxes
Provision for (Reversal of) sales returns reserve

1,138

(547)

5,414

(9,998)

(1,677)

2,113

(2,111)

Provision for doubtful accounts

144

2

37

Provision for obsolete inventory

11,414

1,107

532

Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on impairment of HyperSound assets

15

76

9

63,236

49,822

—

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

4,092

1,752

Inventories

(6,966)

11,147

11,363

Accounts payable

(5,057)

(17,287)

(10,552)

Accounts receivable

—

—

Prepaid expenses and other assets

245

(712)

Income taxes payable

395

(1,700)

Due to shareholders

2,071

Other liabilities
Net cash used for operating activities

(10,396)

(3,125)
(212)
4,704

(310)

3,379

(1,830)

(15,133)

(14,834)

(3,229)

(6,693)

(3,536)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment

—

Cash acquired in business combinations

—

(3,229)

Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

4,093

(6,693)

557

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities

208,920

217,644

157,982

Repayment of revolving credit facilities

(205,468)

(222,054)

(160,855)

(41)

Repayment of capital leases

(40)

—

Borrowings on term loan

(4,011)

Repayment of term loan
Repayment of subordinated notes
Proceeds from sale of common stock, net of issuance costs
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Proceeds from issuance of subordinated notes
Net cash provided by financing activities

7,692

(4,423)

(14,500)

—

—

(18,481)

5,968

—

37,230

—

731

(1,155)

Debt financing costs

1,618

(2,134)

(1,683)

—

16,300

7,000

4,213

21,134

15,969

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

(85)

(102)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(931)

(794)

7,114

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of period

(34)

15,110

(293)
1,399

7,908

6,509

$

6,183

$

7,114

$

7,908

Cash paid for interest

$

2,053

$

1,731

$

3,209

Cash paid for income taxes

$

—

$

16

$

554

Accrual for purchases of property and equipment

$

145

$

841

$

1,420

Value of shares issued to acquire HyperSound business

$

—

$

—

$

113,782

Conversion of Series A Preferred Stock

$

—

$

—

$

24,345

Issuance of warrants

$

—

$

1,983

$

—

Cash and cash equivalents - end of period
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Turtle Beach Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)
Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock
Shares

Amount

Common Stock
Shares

Amount

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Retained
Earnings
(Accumulated
Deficit)

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income
(Loss)

Total

(in thousands)
Balance at
December 31, 2013
Net loss
Other
comprehensive loss
Adjustment for
reverse merger
Conversion of
Series A Preferred
Cashless exercise of
warrants

48,690 $

24,345

12,700 $

13

$

(54,031)

$

18,775

$

$ (35,138)

—

(15,486)

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

7,275

7

113,775

—

113,782

17,527

18

24,327

—

24,345

(48,690)

(24,345)

(15,486)

105

—

—

(334)

(334)

—

—

24

—

—

—

—

—

Sale of common
stock, net of
issuance costs

—

—

4,000

4

37,226

—

—

37,230

Stock options
exercised

—

—

502

—

1,593

—

—

1,593

—

—

—

—

5,194

—

—

5,194

—

—

42,028

42

128,084

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

—

(237)

(237)

—

—

502

1

729

—

—

730

—

—

—

—

1,983

—

—

1,983

—

—

—

—

5,897

—

—

5,897

—

—

42,530

43

136,693

(79,618)

(466)

56,652

—

—

—

—

—

(87,182)

—

(87,182)

—

—

—

—

—

—

(94)

—

—

5,968

—

3,960

Stock-based
compensation
Balance at
December 31, 2014
Net loss
Other
comprehensive loss
Stock options
exercised
Issuance of
warrants
Stock-based
compensation
Balance at
December 31, 2015
Net loss
Other
comprehensive loss
Sale of common
stock, net of
issuance costs

—

—

6,700

6

5,962

Stock-based
compensation

—

—

22

—

3,960

Balance at
December 31, 2016

— $

—

49,252 $

49

$

146,615

3,289

$

(82,907)

$

(166,800)

$

(229)

131,186

—

(82,907)

(560)

(94)

$ (20,696)

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Turtle Beach Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization
Turtle Beach Corporation (“Turtle Beach” or the “Company”), headquartered in San Diego, California and incorporated in the state of Nevada in 2010,
is a premier audio technology company with expertise and experience in developing, commercializing and marketing innovative products across a range of
large addressable markets under the Turtle Beach® and HyperSound® brands. Turtle Beach is a worldwide leading provider of feature-rich headset solutions
for use across multiple platforms, including video game and entertainment consoles, handheld consoles, personal computers, tablets and mobile devices.
HyperSound technology is an innovative patent-protected sound technology that delivers immersive, directional audio offering unique potential benefits in
a variety of commercial settings and consumer devices, including improved clarity and comprehension for listeners with hearing loss.
VTB Holdings, Inc. (“VTBH”), the parent holding company of the historical business of the headset business, was incorporated in the state of Delaware
in 2010 with operations principally located in Valhalla, New York. Voyetra Turtle Beach, Inc. (“VTB”) was incorporated in the state of Delaware in 1975.
In October 2012, VTB acquired Lygo International Limited (“Lygo”), a private limited company organized under the laws of England and Wales, which
was subsequently renamed Turtle Beach Europe Limited (“TB Europe”).
Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”) and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments (which include normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair presentation
of the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows for the periods presented. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
Uses of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to use estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. The significant estimates and assumptions used by management affect: sales return
reserve, allowances for cash discounts, warranty reserve, valuation of inventory, valuation of long-lived assets, goodwill and other intangible assets,
depreciation and amortization of long-lived assets, valuation of deferred tax assets, determination of fair value of stock-based awards, stock warrants and
share based compensation. The Company evaluates estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors and adjusts
those estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be determined with precision, actual results
could differ from these estimates, and those differences could be material to the consolidated financial statements.
Revenue Recognition and Sales Return Reserve
Net revenue consists primarily of revenue from the sale of gaming headsets and accessories to wholesalers, retailers and to a lesser extent, on-line customers.
Revenue from products is recognized when the product has been delivered to a customer, the sales price is fixed and determinable, and collection is
reasonably assured. Product is considered delivered to the customer upon passage of title and risk of loss to the customer. Change in title to the product and
recognition of revenue occurs upon delivery to the customer when sales terms are free on board (“FOB”) destination and at the time of shipment when the
sales terms are FOB shipping point and there is no right of return. Net revenue for on-line purchases is recognized when products are shipped from the
Company’s distribution facilities. The Company excludes sales taxes collected from customers from “Net Revenue” in its Consolidated Statements of
Operations.
Provisions for cash discounts, quantity rebates, and sales returns are recognized in the period the sale is recorded, based upon our prior experience and current
trends, as a reduction of revenue. These revenue reductions are established by the Company based upon management’s best estimates at the time of sale
following the historical trend, adjusted to reflect known changes in the factors that impact such reserves and allowances, and the terms of agreements with
customers.
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Cost of Revenue and Operating Expenses
The following table illustrates the primary costs classified in each major expense category:
Cost of Revenue

Operating Expenses

Cost to manufacture products;

Payroll, bonus and benefit costs;

Freight costs associated with moving product from suppliers to
distribution center and to customers;

Costs incurred in the research and development of new products and
enhancements to existing products;
Depreciation related to demonstration units;

Costs associated with the movement of merchandise through customs;
Legal, finance, information systems and other corporate overhead
costs;
Sales commissions, advertising and marketing costs.

Costs associated with material handling and warehousing;
Global supply chain personnel costs;
Product royalty costs.

Product Warranty Obligations
The Company provides for product warranties in accordance with the contract terms given to various customers by accruing estimated warranty costs at the
time of revenue recognition. Warranties are generally fulfilled by replacing defective products with new products.
Marketing Costs
Costs associated with the production of advertising, such as print and other costs, as well as costs associated with communicating advertising that has been
produced, such as magazine ads, are expensed when the advertising first appears in public. Advertising costs were approximately $6.2 million, $5.3 million
and $4.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.
The Company also incurs co-operative advertising costs that represent reimbursements to customers for shared marketing expenses for sale of its products.
These reimbursements are recorded as reductions of net revenue based on a percentage of sales for all period presented. Co-operative advertising
reimbursements were approximately $4.0 million, $3.6 million and $6.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.
Deferred Financing Costs
Deferred financing costs represent costs incurred in conjunction with our debt financing activities and are capitalized and amortized over the life of the
related financing arrangements. If the debt is retired early, the related unamortized deferred financing costs are written off in the period the debt is retired and
are recorded in the statement of operations under the caption “Interest expense.”
Stock-Based Compensation
Compensation costs related to stock options and restricted stock grants are calculated based on the fair value of the stock-based
awards on the date of grant, net of estimated forfeitures. The grant date fair value of awards is determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and
the related stock-based compensation is recognized on a straight-line basis, over the period in which an employee is required to provide service in exchange
for the award, which is generally four years.
The Company estimates its forfeiture rate based on an analysis of actual forfeitures and will continue to evaluate the adequacy of the forfeiture rate based on
actual forfeiture experience, analysis of employee turnover behavior, and other factors. The impact from any forfeiture rate adjustment would be recognized
in the period of adjustment and if the actual number of future forfeitures differs from estimates, the Company might be required to record adjustments to
stock-based compensation expense.
For stock-based awards issued to non-employees, including consultants, compensation expense is based on the fair value of the
awards calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model over the service performance period. The fair value of options
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granted to non-employees for each reporting period is re-measured over the vesting period and recognized as an expense over the period the services are
received.
Exit and Disposal Costs
Management-approved restructuring activities are periodically initiated to achieve cost savings through reduced operational redundancies and to position
the Company strategically in the market in response to prevailing economic conditions and associated customer demand. Costs associated with restructuring
actions can include severance, infrastructure charges to vacate facilities or consolidate operations, contract termination costs and other related charges. For
involuntary separation plans, a liability is recognized when it is probable and reasonably estimable. For one-time termination benefits, such as additional
severance pay or benefit payouts, and other exit costs, such as lease termination costs, the liability is measured and recognized initially at fair value in the
period in which the liability is incurred, with subsequent changes to the liability recognized as adjustments in the period of change.
Net Earnings (Loss) per Common Share
Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated by dividing net income (loss) associated with common stockholders by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share assumes the issuance of additional shares of common stock by the Company upon
exercise of all outstanding stock options, stock warrants and contingently issuable securities if the effect is dilutive, in accordance with the treasury stock
method.
Cash Equivalents
Cash and short-term highly liquid investments with original maturity dates of three months or less at time of purchase and no redemption restrictions are
considered cash and cash equivalents.
Inventories
Inventories consist primarily of finished goods and related component parts, and are stated at the lower of weighted average cost or market value (estimated
net realizable value) using the first in, first out (“FIFO”) method. The Company maintains an inventory allowance for returned goods, slow-moving and
unused inventories based on the historical trend and estimates. Inventory write-downs, once established, are not reversed as they establish a new cost basis for
the inventory. Inventory write-downs are included as a component of cost of revenues in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment are presented at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Repairs and maintenance expenditures are expensed as
incurred. Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:
Estimated Life
Machinery and equipment
Software and software development

3 years
2-3 years

Furniture and fixtures

5 years

Tooling

2 years

Leasehold improvements

Term of lease or economic life of asset, if shorter

Demonstration units and convention booths

2 years

Valuation of Long-Lived and Intangible Assets and Goodwill
At acquisition, we estimate and record the fair value of purchased intangible assets, which primarily consists of in-process research and development,
customer relationships, trademarks and trade names, and patents. The fair values of these intangible assets are estimated based on our assessment. Goodwill
is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired in business combinations. Goodwill and certain other intangible
assets having indefinite lives are not amortized
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to earnings, but instead are subject to periodic testing for impairment. Intangible assets determined to have definite lives are amortized over their remaining
useful lives.
Long-lived and intangible assets and goodwill are assessed for the potential impairment of intangible and fixed assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that full recoverability of net asset balances through future cash flows is in question. Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
are assessed at least annually, but also whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying values may not be recoverable. Factors that could
trigger an impairment review, include (a) significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results; (b) significant changes in
the manner of or use of the acquired assets or the strategy for our overall business; (c) significant negative industry or economic trends; (d) significant decline
in our stock price for a sustained period; and a decline in our market capitalization below net book value.
Assessment for possible impairment is based on the Company’s ability to recover the carrying value of the long-lived asset from the expected future pre-tax
cash flows. The expected future pre-tax cash flows are estimated based on historical experience, knowledge and market data. Estimates of future cash flows
require the Company to make assumptions and to apply judgment, including forecasting future sales and expenses and estimating the useful lives of assets. If
the expected future cash flows related to the long-lived assets are less than the assets’ carrying value, an impairment charge is recognized for the difference
between estimated fair value and carrying value.
When performing our evaluation of goodwill for impairment, if we conclude qualitatively that it is not more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting
unit is less than its carrying amount, then the two-step impairment test is not required. If we are unable to reach this conclusion, then we would perform the
two-step impairment test. Initially, the fair value of the reporting unit is compared to its carrying amount. To the extent the carrying amount of a reporting
unit exceeds the fair value of the reporting unit; we are required to perform a second step, as this is an indication that the reporting unit goodwill may be
impaired. In this step, we compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill with the carrying amount of the reporting unit goodwill and
recognize a charge for impairment to the extent the carrying value exceeds the implied fair value. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by
allocating the fair value of the reporting unit to all of the assets (recognized and unrecognized) and liabilities of the reporting unit in a manner similar to a
purchase price allocation. The residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit goodwill. In addition, identifiable
intangible assets having indefinite lives are reviewed for impairment on an annual basis using a methodology consistent with that used to evaluate goodwill.
There are inherent assumptions and estimates used in developing future cash flows requiring management judgment including projecting revenues, interest
rates and the cost of capital. Many of the factors used in assessing fair value are outside our control and it is reasonably likely that assumptions and estimates
will change in future periods. These changes can result in future impairments. In the event our planning assumptions were modified resulting in impairment
to our assets, the associated expense would be included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations, which could materially impact our business, financial
condition and results of operations.
In connection with the merger, the Company performed a valuation of the acquired goodwill and intangible assets and recorded $81.0 million of goodwill
based on the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. As a result of the annual impairment assessment as of November 1, 2015, the Company
recorded a $49.8 million goodwill impairment charge, which resulted in a $31.2 million remaining carrying value as of December 31, 2015. The goodwill
impairment was attributed to planned revenues reflective of certain operational decisions, including a slower roll-out to ensure customer satisfaction, an
increase to the risk factor that is included in the discount rate used to calculate the discounted cash flows and continued deterioration of the stock price.
Further, since the launch of the HyperSound Clear 500P product in November 2015 to a limited initial group of audiology offices, the audiologist channel
has proven to require significantly greater than anticipated resources to fully pursue due to the substantial training efforts along with resistance to integrate
the product into the office workflow. As a result of the shortfall versus plan, Management concluded that indicators of potential goodwill impairment were
present and, performed an preliminary impairment assessment of whether it is more-likely-than-not that the carrying amount of the HyperSound reporting unit
is greater than its fair value. The initial impairment test, with respect to June 30, 2016, utilized a market approach based primarily on market data and
comparables, including the synergistic benefit for a market participant with greater resources, and assumptions about industry conditions, growth rates and
profitability as Management believed this represents the most likely use of the assets. This analysis indicated that the Company’s net book value exceeded
its fair value and as a result, the Company recorded a $31.2 million goodwill impairment charge, which represented the entire goodwill amount for the
HyperSound reporting unit.
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In September 2016, we started the process of restructuring the HyperSound business in an effort to reduce costs and align spending with revenues, while
continuing to pursue certain additional opportunities, including licensing the technology for HyperSound Glass and other applications. As such, during the
three months ended September 30, 2016, the Company completed the impairment analysis under an income approach that reflected recent events in
connection with the strategic options exploration, including the transition to a licensing business model. Based on additional information such as sustained
slower than anticipated sales volumes in the HyperSound business and certain plans to reduce operating costs to align with current revenues, the Company
materially revised certain revenue growth and margin assumptions based on estimates of future operations. As a result, in conjunction with the completion of
the second step of the Company's goodwill impairment analysis, we recorded a $32.1 million impairment charge related to the developed technology, inprocess research and development and trade names, which is included as a component of goodwill and intangible asset impairment.
During 2016, based on certain analysis (see above), the Company recorded a $63.2 million goodwill and other intangibles impairment charge, which resulted
in no remaining carrying value as of December 31, 2016.
Income Taxes
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the asset and liability method. Under the asset and liability method, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized based on the differences between the financial statement carrying value of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. The Company had elected to record a “deferred charge” for basis differences relating to intra-entity profits as recognition as a deferred tax asset is
prohibited.
During 2015, as a result of cumulative losses in recent years primarily due to incremental costs associated with the console transition, acquisition costs and
initial investments in the HyperSound business, the Company concluded that a full valuation allowance is required on its net deferred tax assets. A valuation
allowance is established for deferred tax assets when management anticipates that it is more likely than not that all, or a portion of these assets would not be
realized. In determining whether a valuation allowance is warranted, all positive and negative evidence and all sources of taxable income such as prior
earnings history, expected future earnings, carryback and carryforward periods and tax strategies are considered to estimate if sufficient future taxable income
will be generated to realize the deferred tax asset. The assessment of the adequacy of a valuation allowance is based on estimates of taxable income by
jurisdiction and the period over which deferred tax assets will be recoverable. In the event that actual results differ from these estimates, or these estimates are
adjusted in future periods for current trends or expected changes in assumptions, the Company may need to modify the level of valuation allowance which
could materially impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.
The tax effects of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in income tax returns are recognized only if they are “more likely-than-not” to be
sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits as of the reporting date. The tax benefits recognized in the financial
statements from such positions are measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
settlement. The Company recognizes estimated accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense.
The Company and its domestic subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return, while the Company’s foreign subsidiary files in its respective local
jurisdictions.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company determines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The Company uses a hierarchical structure to prioritize the inputs used to measure fair value into three broad levels. The
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1), then to quoted market prices for
similar assets or liabilities in active or inactive markets (Level 2) and gives the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3).
Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, revolving line of credit and long-term debt. Cash
equivalents are stated at amortized cost, which approximated fair value as of the consolidated balance sheet dates due to the short period of time to maturity;
and accounts receivable and accounts payable are stated at their carrying value, which approximates fair value due to the short time to the expected receipt or
payment. The revolving line of credit and long-term debt are stated at the carrying value as the stated interest rate approximates market rates currently
available to the Company, which are considered Level 2 inputs.
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The Company did not have any non-financial assets or non-financial liabilities recognized at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2016 and 2015.
Foreign Currency Translation
Balance Sheet accounts of the Company’s Europe subsidiary operations are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the end of each period. Statement of
Operations accounts are translated using the weighted average of the prevailing exchange rates during each period. Gains or losses resulting from foreign
currency transactions are included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations under the caption “Other non-operating expense, net” whereas,
translation adjustments are reflected in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) under the caption “Foreign currency translation
adjustment.”
Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of investments in cash, cash equivalents and
accounts receivables. The Company is exposed to credit risks and liquidity in the event of default by the financial institutions or issuers of investments in
excess of FDIC insured limits. The Company performs periodic evaluations of the relative credit standing of these financial institutions and limits the amount
of credit exposure with any institution.
Accounts receivable are unsecured and represent amounts due based on contractual obligations of customers. Our three largest individual customers
accounted for approximately 49% of our gross sales in the aggregate for the year ended December 31, 2016, or individually 17%, 16% and 16%, compared
to 14%, 18% and 15% in 2015 and 15%, 15% and 15% in 2014. In addition, two customers accounted for 27% and 30% of accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2016 and, 24% and 19% for December 31, 2015.
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are mitigated by performing ongoing credit evaluations of customers to assess the
probability of collection based on a number of factors, including past transaction experience with the customer, evaluation of their credit history, limiting the
credit extended, and review of the invoicing terms of the contract. In addition the Company has credit insurance in place through a third party insurer against
defaults by certain domestic and international customers, subject to policy limits. The Company generally does not require customers to provide collateral to
support accounts receivable. The Company has recorded an allowance for doubtful accounts for those receivables that were determined not to be collectible.
Foreign cash balances at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were $0.2 million and $0.2 million, respectively.
Segment Information
In 2014, following the merger, the Company aggregated its two operating segments - Voyetra Turtle Beach (“Headset”) and HyperSound. In light of the
subsequent development and launch of the HyperSound Clear 500P product, the Company evaluated whether its operating segments should continue to be
aggregated for reporting purposes and determined that as a result of the new hearing healthcare product, the HyperSound operating segment will no longer
have similar economic characteristics, production processes, clients or methods of distribution. As such, the Company has disclosed the Headset and
HyperSound operating segments separately. The entire business is managed by a single management team whose Chief Operating Decision Maker is the
Chief Executive Officer.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, which requires entities to recognize revenue in a way that depicts the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. The new guidance also requires additional
disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and
changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. On July 9, 2015, the FASB agreed to a one-year deferral of the
effective date to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and interim periods within those annual periods, but will permit public
business entities to adopt the standard as of the original effective
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date (annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016). These updates permit the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition
method. We do not believe the standard will impact our recognition of revenue from our headset business.
In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, Interest—Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs,
which requires that debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying amount
of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. ASU 2015-15 further clarified that debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements may
continue to be presented as an asset and amortized ratably over the term of the line-of-credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are any outstanding
borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015 and interim
periods within those annual periods with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this guidance on a retrospective basis as required and as such
reclassified $1.4 million of deferred financing fees from “Other Assets” to “Term Loan, long term portion” on the Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet at
December 31, 2015. Refer to Note 7, “Credit Facilities and Long-Term Debt” for further information.
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, that introduces the recognition of a right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the
lessee’s right to use, or control the use of, a specified asset for the lease term and, a lease liability, which is a lessee’s obligation to make lease payments
arising from a lease, measured on a discounted basis for all leases (with the exception of short-term leases). The guidance will be effective for public
companies for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within those fiscal years with early adoption permitted. The
Company has not yet selected a transition method or determined the effect on its consolidated financial statements.
In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation, which modifies current guidance related to the accounting for
forfeitures, employer tax withholding on share-based compensation and the financial statement presentation of excess tax benefits or deficiencies. This
amendment also clarifies the statement of cash flows presentation for certain components of share-based awards. The standard is effective for interim and
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, although early adoption is permitted. The Company does not anticipate that the adoption of the
new standard will have a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), which attempts to reduce the existing diversity in practice with respect
to reporting the following eight specific cash flow issues: debt prepayment or debt extinguishment costs; settlement of zero-coupon debt instruments or other
debt instruments with coupon interest rates that are insignificant in relation to the effective interest rate of the borrowing; contingent consideration payments
made after a business combination; proceeds from the settlement of insurance claims; proceeds from the settlement of corporate-owned life insurance policies
(including bank-owned life insurance policies); distributions received from equity method investees; beneficial interests in securitization transactions; and
separately identifiable cash flows and application of the predominance principle. This guidance will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2018. The
Company does not believe the guidance will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Simplifying the Accounting for Goodwill Impairment, which removes Step 2 of the goodwill impairment
test, which requires a hypothetical purchase price allocation. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by which a reporting unit’s carrying value
exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. This guidance will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2019, although early
adoption is permitted. The Company does not believe the guidance will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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Note 2. Equity Offering and Private Placement
On February 2, 2016, the Company entered into an Underwriting Agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”) with Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., as representative
of the several other underwriters named therein, relating to an underwritten public offering (the “Offering”) of 5,000,000 shares of our common stock, at a
price to the public of $1.00 per share (the “Offering Price”). Under the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, the Company also granted the underwriters a 30day option, which was not exercised, to purchase up to an additional 750,000 shares of common stock at the Offering Price less the underwriting discount and
estimated offering expenses payable by the Company.
In addition, on February 1, 2016, the Company entered into a separate, concurrent, side-by-side private placement of 1,700,000 shares of its common stock at
a price of $1.00 per share.
The Company received net proceeds from the Offering and a side by side private placement of approximately $6.0 million after deducting the underwriting
discount and offering expenses of $0.7 million. The Company used all net proceeds from the Offering to pay down amounts outstanding under its working
capital line of credit, which is consistent with past practice and required under the terms of our Credit Facility and Term Loan Due 2019.
Note 3. Fair Value Measurement
The Company follows a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value. This hierarchy requires entities to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:
•

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

•

Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for markets that are not active, or other inputs that
are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

•

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
This includes certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use significant unobservable inputs.

Financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and debt instruments. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015,
the Company has not elected the fair value option for any financial assets and liabilities for which such an election would have been permitted, and there
were no outstanding financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.
The following is a summary of the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our financial instruments at December 31, 2016 and 2015:
December 31, 2016
Reported

December 31, 2015

Fair Value

Reported

Fair Value

(in thousands)

Financial Assets and Liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents
Credit Facility
Term Loans
Subordinated Debt

$

6,183
35,905
14,367
19,403

$

6,183
35,905
14,281
18,569

$

7,114
32,453
18,379
17,247

$

7,114
32,453
18,179
15,892

Cash equivalents are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value as of the consolidated balance sheet dates, due to the short period of time to
maturity; and accounts receivable and accounts payable are stated at their carrying value, which approximates fair value due to the short time to the expected
receipt or payment. The carrying value of the Credit Facility and Term Loan Due 2018 equals fair value as the stated interest rate approximates market rates
currently available to the Company, which are considered Level 2 inputs. The fair values of our Term Loan Due 2019 and Subordinated Debt are based upon
an estimated market value calculation that factors principal, time to maturity, interest rate and current cost of debt, which is considered a Level 3 input.
54

Turtle Beach Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 4. Allowance for Sales Returns
The following table provides the changes in our sales return reserve, which is classified as a reduction of accounts receivable:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Balance, beginning of period
Reserve accrual
Recoveries and deductions, net
Balance, end of period

$

6,268 $
12,819
(14,496)

$

4,591

$

4,155 $
17,108
(14,995)
6,268

6,266
13,042
(15,153)

$

4,155

Note 5. Composition of Certain Financial Statement Items
Inventories
Inventories, net consist of the following:
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015
(in thousands)

Raw materials
Finished goods
Total inventories

$

1,680
20,018

$

1,481
24,665

$

21,698

$

26,146

Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment, net consists of the following:
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015
(in thousands)

Machinery and equipment
Software and software development
Furniture and fixtures
Tooling
Leasehold improvements
Demonstration units and convention booths

$

Total property and equipment, gross
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization

1,321
383
288
1,581
1,247
8,172

$

12,992
(8,681)
$

Total property and equipment, net

4,311

1,238
1,022
284
3,395
1,255
16,531
23,725
(16,866)

$

6,859

Depreciation and amortization expense on property and equipment, for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $5.1 million, $5.9 million
and $5.8 million, respectively.
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Other Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities consist of the following:
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015
(in thousands)

Accrued vendor expenses
Accrued royalty
Accrued employee expenses
Accrued expenses
Total other current liabilities

$

4,735
3,370
2,791
5,518

$

570
3,808
2,072
7,786

$

16,414

$

14,236

Note 6. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill
Changes in the carrying values of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2016 are as follows:
(in thousands)

Balance as of January 1, 2016

$

Impairment Charge (HyperSound)
Balance as of December 31, 2016

31,152
31,152

$

—

Acquired Intangible Assets
Acquired identifiable intangible assets, and related accumulated amortization, as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015 consist of:
December 31, 2016

Gross Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Asset Impairment

Net Book Value

(in thousands)

Customer relationships
Non-compete agreements
In-process Research and Development
Developed technology
Trade names
Patent and trademarks
Foreign Currency
Total Intangible Assets

$

5,796 $
177
27,100
8,880
170
967
(1,294)

3,737
177
4,074
802
92
65
(853)

$

41,796

8,094
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$

—
—
23,026
8,078
78
902
—
$

32,084

2,059
—
—
—
—
—
(441)
$

1,618
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December 31, 2015

Gross Carrying
Value

Accumulated
Amortization

Asset Impairment

Net Book Value

(in thousands)

Customer relationships
Non-compete agreements
In-process Research and Development
Developed technology
Trade names
Patent and trademarks
Foreign Currency
Total Intangible Assets

$

5,796 $
177
27,100
8,880
170
730
(463)

3,213
177
1,018
225
67
37
(303)

$

42,390

4,434

$

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
$

—

2,583
—
26,082
8,655
103
693
(160)
$

37,956

In October 2012, VTB acquired Lygo International Limited, subsequently renamed TB Europe. The acquired intangible assets relating to customer
relationships and non-compete agreements are being amortized over an estimated useful life of thirteen years with the amortization being included within
sales and marketing expense.
In January 2014, the merger between VTBH and Turtle Beach (f/k/a Parametric Sound Corporation) was completed. The acquired intangible assets relating to
developed technology, customer relationships and trade name are subject to amortization. Customer relationships and trade name are being amortized over
an estimated useful life of two years and five years, respectively, with the amortization being included within sales and marketing expense. In October 2015,
the purchased in-process technology for research projects, primarily related to directed audio solutions that beam sound to a specific listening area (i.e. the
HyperSound technology), reached technological feasibility and was reclassified as an amortizable finite-lived asset and is being amortized over an estimated
useful life of approximately eight years with the amortization being included within cost of revenue. During 2016, in connection with the Company's
exploration of strategic options, the estimated useful life of the developed technology was reassessed and as a result, the remaining balance will be amortized
over an estimated economic useful life of approximately 5.5 years with the amortization being included within cost of revenue.
Amortization expense related to definite lived intangible assets of $4.1 million, $2.0 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015
and 2014, respectively.
As of December 31, 2016, estimated annual amortization expense related to definite lived intangible assets in future periods is as follows:
(in thousands)

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
Thereafter
Total

$

436
366
307
258
217
475

$

2,059
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Note 7. Credit Facilities and Long-Term Debt
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

(in thousands)

Revolving credit facility, maturing March 2019

$

Term Loan Due 2018
Term Loan Due 2019
Less unamortized deferred financing fees
Total Term Loans
Subordinated notes - related party
Less unamortized debt discount
Total Subordinated notes
Total outstanding debt
Less: current portion of revolving line of credit
Less: current portion of term loans
Total noncurrent portion of long-term debt

$

35,905

$

32,453

3,632
10,735
1,278

5,769
12,610
1,391

13,089

16,988

19,403
1,522

17,247
1,882

17,881

15,365

66,875
(35,905)
(2,647)

64,806
(32,453)
(4,814)

28,323

$

27,539

Total interest expense, inclusive of amortization of deferred financing costs, on long-term debt obligations was $5.5 million, $3.5 million and $6.0 million
for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
Amortization of deferred financing costs was $1.3 million, $0.4 million and $2.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The amount for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes the write-off of $2.2 million in deferred financing costs associated with the
repayment of the Company's former loan and security agreement. In connection with the Term Loan Due 2019 and Amended Notes, the Company incurred
$5.3 million of financing costs, including $2.0 million related to the fair value of the warrants issued recorded as debt discount, which has been deferred and
will be recognized over the term of the respective agreements.
Revolving Credit Facility
On March 31, 2014, Turtle Beach and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a new asset-based revolving credit agreement (“Credit Facility”) with Bank of
America, N.A., as Agent, Sole Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner, which replaced the then existing loan and security agreement. The Credit Facility, which
expires on March 31, 2019, provides for a line of credit of up to $60 million inclusive of a sub-facility limit of $10 million for TB Europe, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Turtle Beach. The Credit Facility may be used for working capital, the issuance of bank guarantees, letters of credit and other corporate
purposes.
The maximum credit availability for loans and letters of credit under the Credit Facility is governed by a borrowing base determined by the application of
specified percentages to certain eligible assets, primarily eligible trade accounts receivable and inventories, and is subject to discretionary reserves and
revaluation adjustments.
Amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility bear interest at a rate equal to either a rate published by Bank of America or the LIBOR rate, plus in each case,
an applicable margin, which is between 1.00% to 1.50% for U.S. base rate loans and between 2.00% to 2.50% for U.S. LIBOR loans and U.K. loans. As of
December 31, 2016, interest rates for outstanding borrowings were 5.25% for base rate loans and 3.21% for LIBOR rate loans. In addition, Turtle Beach is
required to pay a commitment fee on the unused revolving loan commitment at a rate ranging from 0.25% to 0.50%, and letter of credit fees and agent fees.
If certain availability thresholds are not met, meaning that the Company does not have receivables and inventory which are eligible to borrow on under the
Credit Facility in excess of amounts borrowed, the Credit Facility requires the Company and its restricted subsidiaries to maintain a fixed charge coverage
ratio. The fixed charge ratio is defined as the ratio, determined on a consolidated basis for the most recent four fiscal quarters, of (a) EBITDA minus capital
expenditures, excluding those financed
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through other instruments, and cash taxes paid, and (b) Fixed Charges defined as the sum of cash interest expense plus scheduled principal payments. The
current fixed charge coverage ratio of at least 1.15 to 1.00 on the last day of each month while a Covenant Trigger Period (as defined in the Credit Facility) is
in effect will become effective again after the Company has complied with such ratio for six consecutive months.
The Credit Facility also contains affirmative and negative covenants that, subject to certain exceptions, limit our ability to take certain actions, including our
ability to incur debt, pay dividends and repurchase stock, make certain investments and other payments, enter into certain mergers and consolidations,
engage in sale leaseback transactions and transactions with affiliates and encumber and dispose of assets. Obligations under the Credit Facility are secured by
a security interest and lien upon substantially all of the Company's assets.
On November 2, 2015, the Company entered into a sixth amendment (the “Sixth Amendment”) to the Credit Facility pursuant to which Bank of America and
the lenders amended certain provisions of the Credit Facility to, among other things, modify certain provisions to provide (i) that the Company will make
certain periodic reports with respect to certain financial metrics and (ii) that the loan availability is decreased by an additional block.
On December 1, 2015, in connection with the sixth amendment, the Company amended the definition of EBITDA to exclude certain non-recurring expenses
and replaced certain financial covenants by amended EBITDA levels each month beginning with the month ended December 31, 2015 through (and
including) the month ending March 31, 2017 (with revised financial covenants to be agreed upon based on new financial projections after such date) on both
an overall and segment-by-segment basis.
On February 1, 2016, the Company further amended certain provisions of the Credit Facility to, among other things, provide that, on or prior to February 5,
2016, the Company receive net proceeds of not less than $6.0 million of additional equity capital or additional third lien debt financing and apply such
proceeds against the outstanding principal balance of the working capital line of credit, amend the definition of EBITDA to exclude certain non-recurring
expenses and replace certain financial covenants by amended EBITDA levels. The Company satisfied its paydown obligation with the proceeds from the
Offering and private placement. Refer to Note 2, “Equity Offering and Private Placement” for further details.
On June 17, 2016, the Company amended certain provisions of the Credit Facility to, among other things, temporarily reduce the existing loan availability
blocks, maintain certain cash flow levels with respect to its HyperSound division during each rolling four week period through the period ending October 28,
2016 and make certain periodic reports with respect to certain financial metrics.
On October 31, 2016, in connection with the recently announced HyperSound business restructuring, the Company amended certain provisions to provide,
among other things, that (i) the existing loan availability blocks be permanently reduced during certain specified periods, (ii) replaced certain financial
covenants determined on a segment-by-segment basis by amended EBITDA levels for the Headset business beginning with the month ended October 31,
2016, (iii) the Company maintain revised cash flow levels, in the aggregate and with respect to its HyperSound segment, during each rolling four week period
beginning with the period ended October 31, 2016 through December 31, 2018 and September 30, 2017, respectively, and (iv) in the event the Company’s
availability is less than certain specified amounts, obtain additional funding from the issuance of a subordinated promissory note provided by SG VTB (the
“Promissory Note”).
As of December 31, 2016, the Company was in compliance with all the amended financial covenants, and excess borrowing availability was approximately
$11.0 million, net of the outstanding Term Loan Due 2018 (as defined below) that is considered to be an additional outstanding amount under the Credit
Facility.
Term Loans
Term Loan Due 2018
On December 29, 2014, the Company amended the Credit Facility with Bank of America to enter in to an additional loan (the “Term Loan Due 2018”) for the
repayment of $7.7 million of then existing subordinated debt and accrued interest. The Term Loan Due 2018 resulted in modified financial covenants while
it is outstanding, will bear interest at a rate of LIBOR for the applicable interest period plus 5% and will be repaid in equal monthly installments beginning
on April 1, 2015 and ending on October 1, 2018, reflecting a six month waiver. Amounts so repaid are recognized by lowering the balance of the term loan
tranche and increasing the lower interest rate base revolver amount, with no net impact on borrowing availability.
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Term Loan Due 2019
On July 22, 2015, the Company and its subsidiaries, entered into a term loan, guaranty and security agreement (the “Term Loan Due 2019”) with Crystal
Financial LLC, as agent, sole lead arranger and sole bookrunner, Crystal Financial SPV LLC and the other persons party thereto (“Crystal”), which provides
for an aggregate term loan commitment of $15 million that bears interest at a rate per annum equal to the 90-day LIBOR rate plus 10.25%. Under the terms of
the Term Loan Due 2019, the Company is required to make payments of interest in arrears on the first day of each month beginning August 1, 2015 and will
repay the principal in monthly payments beginning January 1, 2016, inclusive of a nine month waiver, with a final payment on June 28, 2019, the maturity
date.
The Term Loan Due 2019 is secured by a security interest in substantially all of the Company and each of its subsidiaries' working capital assets and is
subject to the first-priority lien of Bank of America , N.A., as agent, under the Credit Facility, other than with respect to equipment, fixtures, real property
interests, intellectual property, intercompany property, intercompany indebtedness, equity interest in their subsidiaries, and certain other assets specified in
an inter-creditor agreement between Bank of America and Crystal.
The Company and its subsidiaries are required to comply with various customary covenants including, (i) maintaining minimum EBITDA (as defined in the
Term Loan Due 2019) in each trailing twelve month period beginning August 31, 2015, (ii) maintaining a Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the
Term Loan Due 2019) to be measured on the last day of each month while the term loans are outstanding of no more than 5.75:1 beginning December 31,
2015 with periodic step-downs to 3.00:1 on January 31, 2018, (iii) not making capital expenditures in excess of $11 million in the year ending December 31,
2015 and in excess of $5 million in each of the years ending December 31, 2016, 2018 and 2019 and in excess of $5.5 million in the year ending
December 31, 2017, (iv) restrictions on the Company’s and its subsidiaries ability to prepay its subordinated notes, pay dividends, incur debt, create or suffer
liens and engage in certain fundamental transactions and (v) an obligation to provide certain financial and other information. The agreement permits certain
equity holders of the Company to contribute funds to the Company to cure certain financial covenant defaults.
The Term Loan Due 2019 contains customary representations, mandatory prepayment events and events of default, including defaults triggered by the failure
to make payments when due, breaches of covenants and representations, material impairment in the perfection of Crystal’s security interest in the collateral
and events related to bankruptcy and insolvency of the Company and its subsidiaries. Upon an event of default, Crystal may declare all outstanding
obligations immediately due and payable (along with a prepayment fee), a default rate of an additional 2.0% may be applied to amounts outstanding and
may take other actions including collecting or taking such other action with respect to the collateral pledged in connection with the term loan.
On November 2, 2015, the Company entered into an amendment to the Term Loan Due 2019 to, among other things, provide (i) that upon receipt all the
proceeds from the future issuance of subordinated notes will immediately be used to prepay outstanding principal in an amount equal to $2.5 million, (ii) that
the Company will make certain periodic reports with respect to certain financial metrics, (iii) that the existing financial covenants are suspended and replaced
by amended EBITDA levels during the months ended September 30, 2015 through the month ending November 30, 2015.
On February 1, 2016, the Company entered into a third amendment (the “Term Loan Amendment”) to the Term Loan Due 2019 to, among other things,
amend the definition of EBITDA to exclude certain non-recurring expenses and replace certain financial covenants by amended EBITDA levels each month
beginning with the month ended December 31, 2015 and on a trailing twelve-month period basis beginning with the period ending October 31, 2016,
through the termination date on both an overall and segment-by-segment basis.
On June 17, 2016, the Company entered into a fourth amendment to the Term Loan Due 2019 to, among other things, temporarily reduce the existing loan
availability blocks, maintain certain cash flow levels with respect to its HyperSound division during each rolling four week period through the period ending
October 28, 2016 and make certain periodic reports with respect to certain financial metrics.
On October 31, 2016, in connection with the recently announced HyperSound business restructuring, the Company amended certain provisions to provide,
among other things, that (i) the existing loan availability blocks be permanently reduced during certain specified periods, (ii) replaced certain financial
covenants determined on a segment-by-segment basis by amended EBITDA levels for the Headset business beginning with the month ended October 31,
2016, (iii) the Company maintain revised
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cash flow levels, in the aggregate and with respect to its HyperSound segment, during each rolling four week period beginning with the period ended October
31, 2016 through December 31, 2018 and September 30, 2017, respectively, and (iv) in the event the Company’s availability is less than certain specified
amounts, obtain additional funding from the issuance of a subordinated promissory note provided by SG VTB (the “Promissory Note”).
As of December 31, 2016, the Company was in compliance with all the amended financial covenants.
Subordination Agreement
On November 16, 2015, as a condition precedent to the Company's lenders permitting the Company to enter into certain subordinated notes, the Company
entered into a subordination agreement with and between Bank of America and Crystal, pursuant to which the parties agreed that the Company's obligations
under any such notes would be subordinate in right of payment to the payment in full of all the Company’s obligations under the Credit Facility and Term
Loan Due 2019.
Subordinated Notes - Related Party
On April 23, 2015, the Company issued a $5.0 million subordinated note (the “April Note”) to SG VTB Holdings, LLC, the Company’s largest stockholder
(“SG VTB”). The April Note was issued with an interest rate of (i) 10% per annum for the first year and (ii) 20% per annum for all periods thereafter, with
interest accruing and being added to the principal amount of the note quarterly.
On May 13, 2015, the Company issued subordinated notes (the “May Notes”) with an aggregate principal amount of $3.8 million to SG VTB, and a trust
affiliated with Ronald Doornink, the Chairman of the Company's board of directors (the “Board”). The May Notes were issued with an interest rate of 10% per
annum until the maturity date of the May Notes (which was August 13, 2015 but could be extended up to two additional 90 day periods upon the written
agreement of the Company and the noteholder), with interest accruing and being added to the principal amount of the May Notes quarterly. Following the
maturity date, the interest rate would have increased to 20% per annum.
On June 17, 2015, the Company issued a subordinated note (the “June Note”) with an aggregate principal amount of $3.0 million to SG VTB. The June Note
was issued at an interest rate of 10% per annum until the maturity date of the June Note (which was September 17, 2015 but could be extended up to two
additional 90 day periods upon the written agreement of the Company and the noteholder), with interest accruing and being added to the principal amount of
the June Note quarterly. Following the maturity date, the interest rate would have increased to 20% per annum. In addition, the Company had the option to
request that SG VTB make, in SG VTB’s sole discretion, additional advances from time to time up to an aggregate principal amount of $15.0 million. Prior to
the amendment (see below), after an additional advance of $6.0 million on July 8, 2015, $9.0 million was outstanding under the June Note.
Concurrently with the completion of the Term Loan Due 2019, the Company amended and restated each of its outstanding subordinated notes (the
“Amended Notes”). The obligations of the Company under the Amended Notes is subordinate and junior to the prior payment of amounts due under the
Credit Facility and Term Loan Due 2019. In addition, the stated maturity date of the Amended Notes was extended to September 29, 2019, subject to
acceleration in certain circumstances, such as a change of control in the Company. The Amended Notes bear interest at a rate per annum equal to LIBOR plus
10.5% and shall be paid-in-kind by adding the amount to the principal amount due. Further, as consideration for the concessions in the Amended Notes, the
Company issued warrants to purchase 1.7 million of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.54 per share.
On November 16, 2015, the Company issued a $2.5 million subordinated note (the “November Note”) to SG VTB, the proceeds of which, as set forth in the
amendment to the Term Loan Due 2019, were applied against the outstanding balance of the Term Loan Due 2019. The November Note will bear interest at a
rate of 15% per annum until its maturity date, which is September 29, 2019, and is subordinated to all senior debt of the Company.
In consideration of the credit extended under the November Note, VTB and VTBH entered into a Third Lien Continuing Guaranty, (as amended, the “Third
Lien Guaranty”), under which they guarantee and promise to pay to Stripes, any and all obligations of the Company under the November Note. To secure our
obligations under the November Note and the Third Lien Guaranty, the Company entered into a Third Lien Security Agreement, dated as of November 16,
2015, pursuant to which Stripes was granted a security interest upon all property of the VTB and VTBH until the payment in full of the Subordinated Note or
the release of the guarantee or collateral, as applicable. Concurrent with entering into the November Note and Third
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Lien Guaranty, the Company also issued to SG VTB a warrant to purchase 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.00
per share to SG VTB.
On October 31, 2016, in connection with certain amendments to the Credit Facility and Term Loan Due 2019, the Company and SG VTB entered into the
Promissory Note, which states that in the event the Company’s availability under the Credit Facility is less than certain specified amounts, the Company may,
upon request, at any time until September 29, 2019 require that SG VTB provide a $2 million subordinated loan. Upon issuance, the loan would bear interest
at a rate of either (i) LIBOR plus 10.5% per annum or (ii) 12.0%, dependent upon the Company’s compliance with certain financial covenants and would be
subordinated to all senior debt of the Company.
In addition, under the terms of the Promissory Note, if and when the funding occurs, as additional consideration the Company would issue to SG VTB a
warrant, exercisable for a period of ten years beginning on the date of issuance, to purchase an amount of shares of the Company’s common stock equal to
2.4% of the Company’s then fully diluted shares outstanding at an exercise price equal to the closing price on that date. The warrant would not entitle the
holder to any voting rights or other rights as a stockholder of the Company prior to exercise.
SG VTB is an affiliate of Stripes Group LLC (“Stripes”), a private equity firm focused on internet, software, healthcare IT and branded consumer products
businesses. Kenneth A. Fox, one of our directors, is the managing general partner of Stripes and the sole manager of SG VTB and Ronald Doornink, our
Chairman of the Board, is an operating partner of Stripes.
Note 8. Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Federal:
Current
Deferred

$

11
—

Total Federal
State and Local:
Current
Deferred
Total State and Local
Foreign
Current
Deferred
Total Foreign
Total

$

1,935

(6,153)

149
—

197
663

455
(347)

149

860

108

—
(547)

—
(402)

—
(227)

(387) $

62

3,271
(9,424)

11

(547)
$

(3,218) $
5,153

(402)
2,393

(227)
$

(6,272)
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The reconciliation between the provision (benefit) for income taxes and the expected provision (benefit) for income taxes at the U.S. federal statutory rate of
35% is as follows:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

U.S. Operations
Foreign Operations

$

(88,084)
515

$

(78,643)
(1,871)

$

(21,639)
(119)

Income (loss) before income taxes
Federal statutory rate

(87,569)
35%

(80,514)
35%

(21,758)
35%

Provision for income taxes at federal statutory rate
State taxes, net of federal benefit
Foreign tax rate differential
Research credits
Change in valuation allowance
Impairment charge
Acquisition costs
Stock compensation
Interest on Series B Preferred Stock
Prior year adjustment
Change in unrecognized tax benefits

(30,649)
113
(522)
—
18,969
10,903
—
230
467
14

(28,180)
805
253
—
8,528
17,438
—
3,384
430
518

(7,615)
37
151
(728)
—
—
613
—
421
27

(26)
114

(1,024)
241

875
(53)

Other
Provision (benefit) for income taxes

$

(387)

$

2,393

$

(6,272)

The income tax provision (benefit) reflects the current and deferred tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements or tax returns. U.S. federal income taxes are provided on unremitted foreign earnings, except those that are considered indefinitely
reinvested. at December 31, 2016, the Company had no foreign unremitted earnings. The Company considers the earnings of certain non-U.S. subsidiaries to
be indefinitely reinvested outside the United States and the current plans do not demonstrate a need to repatriate them to fund our U.S. operations.
The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company’s deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are as follows:
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

(in thousands)

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Inventories
Employee benefits
Net operating loss
Unrecognized tax benefits
Depreciation and amortization
Intangible assets
Other

$

52
3,407
3,754
19,246
649
357
209
1,222

$

28,896
(28,353)

Valuation allowance
$

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

543

38
914
2,360
16,992
623
(151)
(13,086)
1,672
9,362
(9,366)

$

(4)

At December 31, 2016, the Company has $49.0 million of net operating loss carryforwards and $21.0 million of state net operating loss carryforwards, which
will begin to expire in 2029. An ownership change occurred on January 15, 2014, and
$12.7 million of federal net operating losses included in the above are pre-change losses subject to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended. The Company believes, based on the estimated Section 382 limitation and the net operating loss carryforward period, that the pre ownership
change net operating losses can be fully utilized in future years if there is sufficient taxable income in such carryforward period.
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The realization of deferred tax assets depends on the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences are
deductible. During 2015, as a result of cumulative losses in recent years primarily due to incremental costs associated with the console transition, acquisition
costs and initial investments in the HyperSound business, the Company concluded that a full valuation allowance is required on its net domestic deferred tax
assets. However, the Company believes there is sufficient evidence to support the utilization of the Company’s international net deferred tax assets totaling
$0.5 million and, therefore, no valuation allowance has been set-up against these assets.
The Company recognizes windfall tax benefits associated with the exercise of stock options directly to stockholders’ equity only when realized.
Accordingly, deferred tax assets are not recognized for net operating loss carryforwards resulting from windfall tax benefits.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015
(in thousands)

Gross unrecognized tax benefit, beginning of period
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year

$

1,468

$

—

Decreases based on tax positions in a prior period

—

—
$

Gross unrecognized tax benefit, end of period

1,468

3,965

(2,497)
$

1,468

The Company recognizes only those tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, and establish tax reserves for uncertain tax
positions that do not meet this threshold. To the extent these unrecognized tax benefits are ultimately recognized, approximately $1.5 million will impact the
Company’s effective tax rate in a future period. Interest and penalties associated with income tax matters are included in the provision for income taxes. As of
December 31, 2016, the Company had uncertain tax positions of $2.2 million, inclusive of $0.7 million of interest and penalties.
The Company files U.S., state and foreign income tax returns in jurisdictions with various statutes of limitations. Below is a summary of the filing
jurisdictions and open tax years:
Open Years

U.S. Federal
California
New Jersey
New York
Pennsylvania
Texas
United Kingdom

2013 - 2015
2012 - 2015
2012 - 2015
2013 - 2015
2013 - 2015
2012 - 2015
2013 - 2015

Note 9. Preferred Stock
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
In September 2010, VTBH issued 48,689,555 shares of its Series A Convertible Preferred Stock for aggregate proceeds of $24.3 million. In connection with
the Merger, all of the issued and outstanding Series A Convertible Preferred Stock were canceled and the former holders were issued 17,526,640 shares of
Turtle Beach Corporation Common Stock.
Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock
In September 2010, VTBH issued 1,000,000 shares of non-voting Series B Redeemable Preferred Stock (“Preferred Stock”) with a fair value of $12.4 million.
We are required to redeem the Preferred Stock on the earlier to occur of September 28, 2030 or the occurrence of a liquidation event at its original issue price
of $12.425371 per share plus any accrued but unpaid dividends. Dividends are cumulative and accrue at a rate of 8.0% per annum, compounded quarterly,
and payable as and when declared by the Board of Directors. The Preferred Stock does not contain any conversion rights.
A liquidation event is defined as any acquisition of the Company by means of merger or other form of corporate reorganization in which the outstanding
shares of the corporation are exchanged for securities or other consideration issued, or caused to be
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issued, by the acquiring corporation or its subsidiary (other than a reincorporation transaction) or a sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the
corporation.
For the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, the Company recognized $1.3 million, $1.2 million and $1.2 million, respectively, of interest
expense on the Preferred Stock. The redemption value was $17.5 million and $16.1 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Company
has recorded the Preferred Stock as a non-current liability due to its mandatory redemption provisions for all periods presented.
There were no dividends declared during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014.
As of December 31, 2016, 2015, and 2014, 1,000,000 shares of Series B redeemable preferred stock are authorized, issued and outstanding.
Note 10. Net Income (Loss) Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share of common stock attributable to common stockholders:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands, expect per-share data)

Net loss

$

(87,182)

$

(82,907)

$

Weighted average common shares outstanding — Basic
Plus incremental shares from assumed conversions:
Dilutive effect of stock options, warrants, unvested awards

48,592
—

—

—

Weighted average common shares outstanding — Diluted

48,592

42,269

39,665

Net loss per share :
Basic
Diluted

$
$

(1.79)
(1.79)

42,269

(15,486)

$
$

(1.96)
(1.96)

39,665

$
$

(0.39)
(0.39)

Incremental shares from stock options and restricted stock awards are computed by the treasury stock method. The weighted average shares listed below were
not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share because to do so would have been anti-dilutive for the periods presented or were otherwise
excluded under the treasury stock method. The treasury stock method calculates dilution assuming the exercise of all in-the-money options and vesting of
restricted stock, reduced by the repurchase of shares with the proceeds from the assumed exercises, unrecognized compensation expense for outstanding
awards and the estimated tax benefit of the assumed exercises.
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Stock options
Warrants
Unvested restricted stock awards
Total

65

6,411
3,071
120

6,260
954
54

6,081
36
6

9,602

7,268

6,123
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Note 11. Stock-Based Compensation
On October 30, 2013 the Board of Directors adopted, and on December 27, 2013 the stockholders approved, the 2013 Stock-Based Incentive Compensation
Plan (the “2013 Plan”), that became effective upon consummation of the Merger on January 15, 2014. Our stock-based compensation program is a broadbased program designed to attract and retain employees while also aligning employees’ interests with the interests of our shareholders. In addition, members
of our Board of Directors participate in our stock-based compensation program in connection with their service on our board.
Stock option awards outstanding under the Company’s Plans are time-based and granted at exercise prices which are equal to the market value of the
Company’s common stock on the grant date (determined in accordance with the applicable Plan), and expire no later than ten years of the date of grant, but
only to the extent they have vested. The options generally vest as specified in the option agreements subject, in some instances, to acceleration in certain
circumstances. The restrictions on restricted stock generally lapse over a three-year period from the date of the grant. In the event a participant terminates
employment with the Company, any vested stock options and any restricted stock still subject to restrictions are generally forfeited if they are not exercised
within 90 days.
The following table presents the stock activity and the total number of shares available for grant as of December 31, 2016:
(in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2015
Options granted
Restricted Stock granted
Forfeited/Expired shares added back

3,258
(2,006)
(129)
1,138
2,261

Balance at December 31, 2016

Total estimated stock-based compensation expense for employees and non-employees, related to all of the Company's stock-based awards, was comprised as
follows:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Cost of revenue
Selling and marketing
Research and development
General and administrative
Total stock-based
compensation

$

557
90
561
2,752

$

889
320
784
3,904

$

310
866
846
3,172

$

3,960

$

5,897

$

5,194

Forfeitures on option grants are estimated at 10% based on evaluation of historical and expected future turnover for non-executives and 0% based for
executives. Stock-based compensation expense was recorded net of estimated forfeitures, such that expense was recorded only for those stock-based awards
that are expected to vest. The Company reviews this assumption periodically and will adjust it if it is not representative of future forfeiture data and trends
within employee types (executive vs. non-executive).
None of the Company's stock options were exercised for the year ended December 31, 2016. The associated tax benefit recognized in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 was approximately $2.1 million and $1.9 million, respectively. In addition,
cash flows resulting from tax deductions in excess of the cumulative compensation cost recognized for stock-based compensation arrangements (“excess tax
benefits”) are classified as financing cash flows only when realized. As such, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company received
$0.7 million and $1.6 million, respectively, in cash from the exercise of stock options and related excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
arrangements of $0.1 million and $0.7 million, respectively, were not recognized.
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Stock Option Activity
Options Outstanding
Number of
Shares
Underlying
Outstanding
Options

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Term

WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

(In years)

Outstanding at December 31, 2015
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

5,613,384 $
2,006,082
—
(1,238,019)

2.19
1.15
—
2.01

7.89 $

628,833

Outstanding at December 31, 2016

6,381,447

$

1.90

7.37 $

20,033

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2016

6,371,446

$

1.91

7.37 $

19,937

Exercisable at December 31, 2016

3,311,716

$

1.92

7.33 $

18,019

Aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the estimated fair value of the underlying common stock and the exercise price of outstanding, inthe-money options. There was no aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised for the year ended December 31, 2016.
As of December 31, 2016, total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options granted to employees was $4.0 million, which is
expected to be recognized over a remaining weighted average vesting period of 2.7 years.
Determination of Fair Value
Option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected stock price volatility. The Black-Scholes option pricing
model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. The fair value of
options granted under the Company’s Plans was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Expected term (in years)
Risk-free interest rate
Expected volatility
Dividend rate

6.1
1.1% - 2.3%
40.7% - 42.2%
0%

6.1
1.5% - 1.9%
40.8% - 47.1%
0%

6.1
1.8% - 2.0%
47.5% - 49.8%
0%

Each of these inputs is subjective and generally requires significant judgment to determine. The risk-free rate is based on a zero-coupon U.S. Treasury rate in
effect at the time of grant with maturity dates that coincide with the expected life of the options. The expected life of the options is based on a simplified
weighted average taking into account the vesting conditions and contractual life of the award. Since the Company has a limited trading history for its
common stock, the expected volatility was derived from the historical stock volatilities of several unrelated public companies within the Company’s industry
that are considered to be comparable to the Company’s business over a period equivalent to the expected term of the stock option grants.
The weighted average grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $0.48, $0.88 and $5.27,
respectively. The total estimated fair value of employee options vested during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 was $2.4 million, $3.0
million and $5.5 million, respectively.
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Restricted Stock Activity

Shares
Nonvested restricted stock at December 31, 2015
Granted
Vested

71,898
129,309
(65,502)

Nonvested restricted stock at December 31, 2016

135,705

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair Value
Per Share
$

3.48
1.16
2.29
1.84

As of December 31, 2016 total unrecognized compensation cost related to the nonvested restricted stock awards granted was $0.1 million, which is expected
to be recognized over a remaining weighted average vesting period of 0.3 years.
Stock Warrants
In connection with and as consideration for the concessions in the Amended Notes, the Company issued to SG VTB and a trust affiliated with Ronald
Doornink warrants to purchase 1.7 million shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.54 per share. The warrants are exercisable for a
period of five years beginning on the date of issuance, July 22, 2015. The exercise price and the number of shares of Common Stock purchasable are subject
to standard anti-dilution adjustments and do not carry any voting rights or other rights as a stockholder of the Company prior to exercise. The shares issuable
upon exercise are also subject to the “demand” and “piggyback” registration rights set forth in the in the Company’s Stockholder Agreement, dated August 5,
2013, as amended July 10, 2014.
In connection with the November Note, the Company issued a warrant to purchase 1.4 million shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of
$2.00 per share to SG VTB. The exercise price and the number of shares are subject to standard anti-dilution adjustments and do not carry any voting rights as
a stockholder of the Company prior to exercise. The warrant is exercisable for a period of ten years beginning on the date of issuance and does not entitle the
holder to any voting rights or other rights as a stockholder of the Company prior to exercise.
The warrants meet the requirements for classification within equity as warrants entitle the holder to purchase a stated amount of shares of common stock at a
fixed exercise price that are not puttable (either the warrant or the shares) to the Company or redeemable for cash.
Phantom Equity Activity
In November 2011, VTBH adopted a 2011 Phantom Equity Appreciation Plan ("the Appreciation Plan") that covers certain employees, consultants, and
directors of VTBH (“Participants”) who are entitled to phantom units, as applicable, pursuant to the provisions of their respective award agreements. The
Appreciation Plan is shareholder-approved, which permits the granting of phantom units to VTBH’s Participants of up to 1,500,000 units. These units are not
exercisable or convertible into shares of common stock but give the holder a right to receive a cash bonus equal to the appreciation in value between the
exercise price and value of common stock at the time of a change in control event as defined in the plan.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, 714,347 phantom units at a weighted-average exercise price of $0.93 have been granted and are outstanding. Because
these phantom units are not exercisable or convertible into common shares, said amounts and exercise prices were not subject to the exchange ratio provided
by the Merger agreement. As of December 31, 2016, compensation expense related to the Appreciation Plan units remained unrecognized because a change
in control, as defined in the plan, had not occurred and is not anticipated by the Company. In July 2015, the Appreciation Plan was terminated as to new
grants, but vested and unvested phantom units will continue.
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Note 12. Segment and Geographic Information
In 2014, following the merger, the Company aggregated its two operating segments - Voyetra Turtle Beach (“Headset”) and HyperSound. During 2015, in
light of the subsequent development and launch of the HyperSound Clear 500P product, the Company evaluated whether its operating segments should
continue to be aggregated for reporting purposes and determined that as a result of the new hearing healthcare product, the HyperSound operating segment
will no longer have similar economic characteristics, production processes, clients or methods of distribution. As such, the Company has disclosed the
Headset and HyperSound operating segments separately. The entire business is managed by a single management team whose Chief Operating Decision
Maker is the Chief Executive Officer.
The following tables show net revenues, operating income and total assets by reporting segments:
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

Net Revenues
Headset
HyperSound

$

173,323
655

$

161,835
912

$

185,469
707

Total

$

173,978

$

162,747

$

186,176

$

8,633 $
(86,334)

(8,698) $
(65,701)

(311)
(13,514)

$

(77,701) $

(74,399) $

(13,825)

(in thousands)

Operating Income (Loss)
Headset
HyperSound
Total
Interest Expense
Other non-operating expense, net

$
$

7,447
2,421

$

Loss before income tax expense (benefit)

$
$

5,099
1,016

(87,569) $

(80,514) $

December 31,
2016

Total Assets
Headset
HyperSound
Eliminations

$
$

7,209
724
(21,758)

December 31,
2015
(in thousands)

Total

$

94,081
31,233
(30,514)

$

96,444
111,490
(35,474)

$

94,800

$

172,460

(1) At December 31, 2016, HyperSound assets excluding eliminations, as a result of certain inventory reserves and asset impairments, totaled $0.7 million.

The following table represents total net revenue based on where customers are physically located:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

North America
United Kingdom
Europe
Other
Total net revenue

$

130,371
21,778
15,729
6,100

$

117,526
20,881
17,329
7,011

$

123,908
29,425
24,082
8,761

$

173,978

$

162,747

$

186,176
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The following table represents property and equipment based on physical location:
Year Ended
December 31,
2016

2015
(in thousands)

United States
International

$

3,986
325

$

5,749
1,110

Total

$

4,311

$

6,859

Note 13. Commitments and Contingencies
Litigation
The Company is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of its business. Although the amount of any liability that
could arise with respect to these actions cannot be determined with certainty, in the Company’s opinion, any such liability will not have a material adverse
effect on its consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations or liquidity.
Shareholders Class Action: On August 5, 2013, VTBH and the Company (f/k/a Parametric) announced that they had entered into the Merger Agreement
pursuant to which VTBH would acquire an approximately 80% ownership interest and existing shareholders would maintain an approximately 20%
ownership interest in the combined company. Following the announcement, several shareholders filed class action lawsuits in California and Nevada seeking
to enjoin the Merger. The plaintiffs in each case alleged that members of the Company’s Board of Directors breached their fiduciary duties to the shareholders
by agreeing to a Merger that allegedly undervalued the Company. VTBH and the Company were named as defendants in these lawsuits under the theory that
they had aided and abetted the Company's Board of Directors in allegedly violating their fiduciary duties. The plaintiffs in both cases sought a preliminary
injunction seeking to enjoin closing of the Merger, which by agreement was heard by the Nevada court with the California plaintiffs invited to participate.
On December 26, 2013, the court in the Nevada cases denied the plaintiffs’ motion for a preliminary injunction. Following the closing of the Merger, the
Nevada plaintiffs filed a second amended complaint, which made essentially the same allegations and sought monetary damages as well as an order
rescinding the Merger. The California plaintiffs dismissed their action without prejudice, and sought to intervene in the Nevada action, which was granted.
Subsequent to the intervention, the plaintiffs filed a third amended complaint, which made essentially the same allegations as prior complaints and sought
monetary damages. On June 20, 2014, VTBH and the Company moved to dismiss the action, but that motion was denied on August 28, 2014. That denial is
currently under review by the Nevada Supreme Court, which held a hearing on the Company's petition for review on September 1, 2015. After the hearing, the
Nevada Supreme Court requested a supplemental briefing, which the parties completed on October 13, 2015. The Nevada Supreme Court also invited the
Business Law Section of the Nevada State Bar to submit an amicus brief by December 3, 2015 and briefing was completed on February 23, 2016. The
Company believes that the plaintiffs’ claims against it are without merit.
Dr. John Bonanno Complaint: On February 18, 2015, Dr. John Bonanno, a minority shareholder of Series B Preferred Stock of VTBH, filed a complaint in
Delaware Chancery Court alleging breach of contract against VTBH. According to the complaint, the Merger purportedly triggered a contractual obligation
for VTBH to redeem Dr. Bonanno's preferred stock. Dr. Bonanno requests a declaratory judgment stating that he is entitled damages including a redemption
of his stock for the redemption value of $15.1 million (equal to the original issue price of his stock plus accrued dividends) as well as other costs and
expenses. On February 8, 2016, the Delaware Chancery Court granted VTBH's motion to dismiss for improper venue, and Dr. Bonnano's complaint was
dismissed without prejudice. In January of 2017, Dr. Bonanno filed a complaint in New York state court alleging breach of contract against VTBH and
seeking a declaratory judgment that he is entitled to damages and specific performance, including redemption of his stock. The Company answered the
complaint on March 7, 2017. At the order of the Court, the parties will be filing cross-motions for summary judgment on March 31, 2017, on the sole
question of whether the Merger was a defined event in the purported contract entitling Dr. Bonnano to redemption of his shares. VTBH maintains that the
Merger did not trigger any obligation to redeem Mr. Bonanno's preferred stock.
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The Company will continue to vigorously defend itself in the foregoing matters. However, litigation and investigations are inherently uncertain.
Accordingly, the Company cannot predict the outcome of these matters. The Company has not recorded any accrual at December 31, 2016 for contingent
losses associated with these matters based on its belief that losses, while possible, are not probable. Further, any possible range of loss cannot be reasonably
estimated at this time. The unfavorable resolution of these matters could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of operations,
financial condition or cash flows. The Company is engaged in other legal actions not described above arising in the ordinary course of its business and, while
there can be no assurance, believes that the ultimate outcome of these other legal actions will not have a material adverse effect on its business, results of
operations, financial condition or cash flows.
Operating Leases
The Company leases office and warehouse spaces under operating leases that provide for future minimum rental lease payments under non-cancelable
operating leases as of December 31, 2016, are as follows:
(in thousands)

2017
2018
2019
2020
Thereafter

$

1,663
1,512
1,312
648
—

Total

$

5,135

Warranties
The Company warrants products against certain manufacturing and other defects. These product warranties are provided for specific periods of time
depending on the nature of the product. Warranties are generally fulfilled by replacing defective products with new products. The following table provides
the changes in our product warranties, which are included in other current liabilities:
Year Ended
December 31,

2016

2015

2014

(in thousands)

Warranty, beginning of period
Warranty costs accrued
Settlements of warranty claims
Warranty, end of period

$

580 $
702
(643)

$

639

$

493 $
693
(606)
580

$

139
850
(496)
493

XO FOUR Stealth Product Recall: In August 2015, the Company received a limited number of reports from consumers and retailers that certain EAR
FORCE® XO FOUR Stealth headsets appeared to have a white substance or spots on the ear pads. Upon receiving the reports, the Company promptly stopped
shipping any units of the XO FOUR Stealth headsets and notified our retail customers to stop sales pending the results of the Company’s investigation. An
outside laboratory engaged by the Company identified the substance as mold. In cooperation with the U.S. Consumer Product Safety Commission (“CPSC”),
the Company is voluntarily recalling certain units of the headsets. As of December 31, 2016 and the date of this report, the Company has not received notice
of any law suits against the Company in connection with the recall and is working with the contract manufacturer to collect reimbursement for certain related
costs.
On February 3, 2016, the Company notified CPSC promptly upon discovery that a vendor had mistakenly shipped certain recalled headsets to fill online
orders. The Company has attempted to notify directly each of the affected purchasers to instruct them to participate in the recall. The Company will be
subject to additional fees and costs related to the recall; additionally, the CPSC has the authority to seek penalties in connection with this matter. The
possible range of loss cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.
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Note 14. Selected Quarterly Financial Data - Unaudited
Fiscal 2016

Quarter

First

Second (1)

Third (1)

Fourth

(in thousands, except per share data)

Net Revenue
Gross Margin
Net Income (Loss)
Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic
Diluted

$

24,028 $
3,362
(12,011)

29,362 $
5,113
(42,573)

38,384 $
3,927
(44,799)

82,204
30,208
12,201

$
$

(0.26) $
(0.26) $

(0.86) $
(0.86) $

(0.91) $
(0.91) $

0.25
0.25

Fiscal 2015

Quarter

First

Second

Third

Fourth (1)

(in thousands, except per share data)

Net Revenue
Gross Margin
Net Income (Loss)
Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Basic
Diluted

$

19,689 $
3,116
(10,593)

22,612 $
3,402
(9,898)

35,887 $
9,564
(15,880)

84,559
24,609
(46,536)

$
$

(0.25) $
(0.25) $

(0.23) $
(0.23) $

(0.38) $
(0.38) $

(1.09)
(1.09)

(1) Includes goodwill and other intangible impairment charges related to the HyperSound business of $49.8 million, $31.2 million and $32.1
million for the three months ended December 31, 2015, June 30, 2016 and September 30, 2016, respectively.
Item 9 - Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.
Item 9A - Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports we file or submit under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(e) and Rule 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Exchange Act,
as of the end of the period covered by this Report. This evaluation also included consideration of our internal controls and procedures for the preparation of
our financial statements as required under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Based upon that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2016.
Notwithstanding the material weakness discussed below, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, concluded
that the consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly present, in all material respects, the Company's financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows for the periods presented, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
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Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f)
of the Exchange Act). Our internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to our management and Board of Directors regarding the
preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements.
All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Because of these inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation, and may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the Corporation's annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Management has
identified the following material weakness in the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting.
The Company did not maintain effective internal controls over the review of certain assumptions related to the annual goodwill impairment assessment,
which resulted in a material audit adjustment to goodwill and related disclosures in the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2016. This control deficiency, if unremediated, could result in a material misstatement to the annual or interim consolidated financial
statements that would not be prevented or detected. Accordingly, our management has determined that this control deficiency constitutes a material
weakness.
Because of the material weaknesses described above, our management has concluded that as of December 31, 2016, our system of internal control over
financial reporting was not effective based on the framework and criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework (2013), issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Because of the material weakness, management has concluded that the Corporation's internal control over financial reporting was not effective as at
December 31, 2016.
Management’s Remediation Plan
In our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015, we identified and disclosed a material weakness in our controls over the review of certain
assumptions related to the annual goodwill impairment assessment. In response to the material weakness identified, Management designed, documented and
implemented additional control procedures and enhanced existing control procedures related to the identification of triggering events that could indicate
potential impairment and review of the assumptions, data inputs and valuation calculation used in the annual goodwill impairment assessment.
Management intends to take the following further actions to address the material weakness as it relates to the development and application of emerging
business cash flow estimates:
Review its controls, including the implementation of additional reviews by qualified personnel and the preparation and retention of additional supporting
documentation, to enhance the design and documentation of management review controls in order to increase the precision at which management review
controls operate.
We are in the process of implementing our remediation plan and anticipate that these initiatives will be at least partially, if not fully, implemented by March
31, 2017.
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Other than the material weakness described above, there have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the period covered that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Our process for evaluating controls and
procedures is continuous and encompasses constant improvement of the design and effectiveness of established controls and procedures and the remediation
of any deficiencies, which may be identified during this process.
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Item 9B - Other Information
On March 3, 2017, our Board of Directors approved a retention plan (the “Retention Plan”) providing for cash bonuses and equity incentives to certain
employees, including our two named executive officers. The purpose of the Retention Plan is to encourage the continued employment of the participating
employees in the event of a change in control. Pursuant to the Retention Plan, if a participating employee is continuously employed with the Company and
in good standing on the date of a change of control (as defined in the Retention Plan), (i) all of the employee’s unvested stock options previously issued
under any of the Company’s equity incentive plans will immediately vest unless assumed on substantially similar terms by the acquiring company, (ii) the
employee will receive a grant of units (the “Participation Points”) which entitle the employee to a portion of a cash payment, payable on the date which is
nine months after the change of control (or within three months for employees not retained by the acquiring company), in an aggregate amount equal to
approximately 5% of the enterprise value of the Company (the “Bonus Pool”) at the time of the change in control (as defined in the Retention Plan) and (iii)
the employee will be entitled to certain severance payments, including reimbursement of COBRA premiums, if he or she is terminated by the acquiring
company within one year of the change of control. Our named executive officers, Juergen Stark and John Hanson, will participate in the Retention Plan and
will receive grants of Participation Points which entitle them to approximately 31% and 16% of the total Bonus Pool, respectively.
The foregoing description of the Retention Plan does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text thereof, a copy of
which is attached hereto as Exhibit 10.47.
PART III
Item 10 - Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information in our Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC within
120 days after the end of the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 in connection with our 2017 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “2017
Proxy Statement”) or an amendment to this Form 10-K filed within the same time period (the “Amendment”), in either case, set forth under the captions
“Election of Directors,” “Management Information,” “Corporate Governance” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.”
We have adopted a code of business conduct and ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. This code of business
conduct and ethics is available on the Company’s website corp.turtlebeach.com. The information on our website is not a part of or incorporated by reference
into this Report. If the Company makes any amendments to this code other than technical, administrative or other non-substantive amendments, or grants any
waivers, including implicit waivers, from a provision of this code to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer, the Company will
disclose the nature of the amendment or waiver, its effective date and to whom it applies by posting such information on the Company’s website at
corp.turtlebeach.com.
Item 11 - Executive Compensation
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information in our 2017 Proxy Statement or the Amendment set forth under
captions “Corporate Governance,” “Executive Compensation and Related Information” and “Report of the Compensation and Management Development
Committee.”
Item 12 - Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information in our 2017 Proxy Statement or the Amendment set forth under
the captions “Executive Compensation and Related Information” and “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”
Item 13 - Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information in our 2017 Proxy Statement or the Amendment set forth under
the captions “Corporate Governance” and “Executive Compensation and Related Information.”
Item 14 - Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information in our 2017 Proxy Statement or the Amendment set forth under
the captions “Audit and Non-Audit Fees.”
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
a.

List of documents filed as part of this Annual Report:
1.

The following Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are filed as part of this Annual Report:
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms;
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014;
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2014 and 2014;
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015;
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014;
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014; and
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

b.

2.

All schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable, not required or the information has been otherwise supplied in the financial
statements or notes thereto.

3.

The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index attached hereto are filed as part of this Annual Report and incorporated herein by reference

The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index attached hereto are filed as part of this Annual Report and incorporated herein by reference.

c. Not applicable.
Item 16. Form 10-K Summary
None.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TURTLE BEACH CORPORATION
Date:

March 8, 2017

By:

/S/ JOHN T. HANSON
John T. Hanson
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary
(Principal Financial Officer)
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*
**
***
†
^

All exhibits and schedules to the Agreement and Plan of Merger have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. The
Company will furnish the omitted exhibits and schedules to the SEC upon request by the SEC.
Filed herewith.
Furnished herewith.
Management contract or compensatory plan.
Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. Omitted portions have been filed separately with
the Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Turtle Beach Corporation
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
Years ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014

Description
Year Ended December 31, 2016:
Allowance for sales returns
Allowance for cash discounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Year Ended December 31, 2015:
Allowance for sales returns
Allowance for cash discounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Year Ended December 31, 2014:
Allowance for sales returns
Allowance for cash discounts
Allowance for doubtful accounts

Balance - Begin

Deductions /
Other

Additions

Balance - End

(in thousands)

$

6,268
7,459
102

$

4,155
5,451
200

$

6,266
2,489
225
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$

$

$

12,819
16,678
144

17,108
17,904
157

13,042
18,488
37

$

$

$

(14,496)
(16,081)
(110)

(14,995)
(15,896)
(255)

(15,153)
(15,526)
(62)

$

4,591
8,056
136

$

12,783

$

6,268
7,459
102

$

13,829

$

4,155
5,451
200

$

9,806

Exhibit 10.47

Turtle Beach Corporation
Retention Plan
Plan Document

ARTICLE I
PURPOSE
The purpose of the Turtle Beach Corporation (the “Company”) Retention Plan (this “Plan”) is to encourage the continued
employment of certain employees of the Company in the event of a Change in Control.

ARTICLE II
DEFINITIONS
“Administrator” means the committee appointed by the Board to administer the Plan.
“Base Pay” means the Participant’s annual base salary at the rate in effect as of the day prior to his or her termination of
employment.
“Board” means the Board of Directors of the Company.
“Cause” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in a Participant’s employment or consulting agreement or, if no employment or
consulting agreement is in effect or if “cause” is not defined therein, “Cause” shall mean: (a) the Participant’s conviction of or plea of
guilty or nolo contendere to a felony; (b) a determination by the Board that the Participant committed fraud, misappropriation or
embezzlement against any person; (c) the Participant’s material breach of the terms of any material written agreement with the
Company or any affiliate to which Participant is a party; (d) the Participant’s willful misconduct or gross neglect in performance of
Participant’s duties; or (e) the Participant’s failure or refusal to carry out material responsibilities reasonably assigned by the Board or
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer to the Participant; provided, however, that with respect to subsections (c), (d) and (e) above,
Cause will only be deemed to occur after written notice to the Participant of such action or inaction giving rise to Cause and the failure
by the Participant to cure such action or inaction (which is capable of cure) within 30 days after written notice.
“Change in Control” means, any of the following events occurring after the date hereof: (a) a “person” (as such term in used in
Sections 13(d) and 14(d) of the 1934 Act), other than a trustee or other fiduciary holding securities under an employee benefit plan of
the Company or a corporation owned, directly or indirectly, by the stockholders of the Company in substantially the same proportions
as their ownership of stock of the Company, is or becomes the “beneficial owner” (as defined in Rule 13D-3 under the 1934 Act),
directly or indirectly, of securities of the Company representing fifty percent (50%) or more of the combined voting power of the
Company’s then outstanding securities; (b) the Company merges or consolidates with any other corporation, other than in a merger
or consolidation that would result in the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent
(either by remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity) directly or indirectly, at least fifty

percent (50%) of the combined voting power of the voting securities of the Company or such surviving entity outstanding immediately
after such merger or consolidation; or (c) the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets.
Notwithstanding anything in this Plan to the contrary, no event that would be a Change in Control as defined above shall be a Change
in Control unless such event also constitutes a “change in control event” as defined in Section 409A of the Code.
“Good Reason” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in a Participant’s employment or consulting agreement or, if no
employment or consulting agreement is in effect or if “good reason” is not defined therein, “Good Reason” shall mean: (a) a material
diminution, without a Participant’s consent, in such Participant’s title, duties or responsibilities as in effect immediately before such
diminution; (b) a material breach by the Company of any written employment agreement between a Participant and the Company; (c) a
material reduction in a Participant’s base salary or target bonus opportunity by the Company or (d) the relocation of Participant’s
primary office location more than 50 miles from the original office location; in each case, after written notice to the Company thereof
and the Company’s failure to remedy such diminution, breach, reduction or relocation within 30 days thereafter and where the
Participant actually terminates employment within 60 days after the expiration of such cure period.
“1934 Act” means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and the rules promulgated thereunder.
“Participant” means an employee of the Company who is designated by the Board as being covered by the Plan.
“Participation Percentage” means, with respect to any Participant, the number of Participation Points held by such Participant at
the time of the Change of Control divided by the aggregate number of Participation Points granted (and not retired by the Company)
prior to the time of the Change of Control.
“Participation Point” means a hypothetical unit designated by the Company as a metric for determining the portion of the
Retention Bonus Pool to which a Participant is entitled. For the avoidance of doubt, Participation Points do not represent shares of the
Company’s common stock or any other equity security of the Company or any of its affiliates, nor does a Participation Point provide
any rights to obtain ownership of any shares of the Company’s common stock or any other equity security of the Company of any of
its affiliates.
“Net Enterprise Value” means the enterprise value of the Company at the time of a Change in Control, calculated using a
trailing twelve month average with respect to the amount of debt outstanding under any revolving credit facility, the amount
outstanding under any term loans or with respect to any preferred stock, in each case, at the time of the Change in Control and the
amount of consideration received by common stockholders in connection therewith, less the amount of any transaction related
expenses, including the fees and expenses of financial advisers, accountants and attorneys.
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“Retention Bonus Pool” means (x) five percent (5.0%) of the Net Enterprise Value, subject to adjustment by the Administrator
less (y) the aggregate amount of Fixed Amount Retention Bonuses payable hereunder upon a Change in Control.
“Target Bonus” means a Participant’s annual target bonus under the Company’s Management Incentive Plan for the calendar
year in which the Transaction Date occurs.
“Transaction Date” means the date upon which a Change in Control occurs.

ARTICLE III
ELIGIBILITY
3.1.

Eligibility. Any employee of the Company designated in writing by the Board is eligible to participate in the Plan.

ARTICLE IV
RETENTION BONUS; PARTICIPATION POINTS
If a Participant is continuously employed in good standing by the Company to the date of a Change in Control, (i) all unvested
stock options under the Company’s equity incentive plans held by such Participant shall immediately vest upon such Change in
Control except to the extent that the acquiring person in a Change in Control or its direct or indirect parent agrees to assume such
unvested stock options or replace them with options that maintain the existing aggregate option spread of such unvested options,
provide for vesting that is not less favorable to the Participant and are otherwise substantially similar to such unvested stock options in
connection with the Change in Control and (ii) such Participant shall receive a Retention Bonus equal to (x) if such Participant’s grant
provided for Participation Points, his or her Participation Percentage multiplied by the amount of the Retention Bonus Pool or (y) if
such Participant’s grant provided for a fixed Retention Bonus (a “Fixed Amount Retention Bonus”), the amount specified in such
grant, such amount payable on the date which is 9 months following the date of such Change in Control if the Participant remains
continuously employed in good standing by the Company through the date of payment of such Retention Bonus; provided, that, if
such Participant’s employment is terminated by the Company without Cause or by the Participant for Good Reason at or following
such Change in Control, then such Participant shall receive such Retention Bonus within 30 days of such termination if not previously
paid.
Each Participant will receive a grant document from the Administrator, a form of which is attached as Exhibit A, providing
such Participant with either a number of Participation Points or a fixed Retention Bonus amount.
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ARTICLE V
SEVERANCE
If a Participant is terminated by the Company without Cause or a Participant terminates his or her employment for Good
Reason during the one year period following a Change in Control, then subject to the Participant’s execution and non-revocation of a
general release in form and substance satisfactory to the Company, the Participant will be entitled to the following: (i) a lump-sum
payment equal to 100% of the Participant’s Target Bonus for the year of termination multiplied by a fraction the numerator of which is
the total number of days that the Participant was employed by the Company during such year and the denominator of which is 365; (ii)
continuation of the Participant’s Base Pay for six (6) months from the termination date of the Participant’s employment in accordance
with the Company’s ordinary payroll practices; and (iii) if the Participant elects coverage under COBRA, reimbursement for the full
amount of premiums for such continuation coverage for a period of six (6) months; provided, that, if a Participant is entitled to
severance benefits under such Participant’s employment agreement, then the Participant shall only be entitled to the larger benefit for
each of the items above as between the severance benefits in such employment agreement and under this Plan, but not both.

ARTICLE VI
ADMINISTRATION
The Administrator shall administer the Plan and shall have the power to implement, operate and interpret the Plan in its
discretion and, further, to take such other action as the Administrator deems appropriate under the circumstance in light of the purpose
of the Plan, including, but limited to, substituting the Retention Bonus contemplated by Article IV and/or the severance benefits under
Article V with payments or benefits of reasonably equivalent value. In all cases, the rights and benefits of Participants under the Plan
shall be governed solely by the terms and conditions of the Plan. Interpretation and application of the Plan, including the construction
of all Plan provisions and the determination of eligibility for benefits, shall be made by the Administrator, and are within the
Administrator’s sole and absolute discretion.

ARTICLE VII
MISCELLANEOUS
7.1.
Amendment. Prior to the Transaction Date, the Plan may be amended at any time by the Administrator. On or after
Transaction Date, the Plan may not be amended.
7.2.
Termination. Prior to the Transaction Date, the Company may terminate the Plan at any time by providing written
notice to the Participants. In addition, the Plan shall automatically terminate on December 31, 2018 if no Change in Control has
occurred prior to such time; provided, that, following such time, the Plan shall automatically be extended for additional
4

one year terms unless the Company determines otherwise prior to the end of the then-current term. If the Plan is terminated, then no
Participant shall be entitled to any payments hereunder.
7.3.
Withholding. The Company shall have the right to reduce any payment under the Plan to satisfy any requirement under
federal, state, local or other applicable law to withhold taxes or otherwise make deductions from any benefit payable under the Plan.
7.4.
Right to Employment. Nothing in the Plan shall be construed as giving any Participant the right to continue in the
employment of the Company. Nothing in the Plan shall diminish the Company’s right to terminate a Participant’s employment at any
time for any reason.
7.5.
No Assignment. A Participant may not, except by the laws of descent and distribution, alienate, assign, transfer or
otherwise encumber any of his or her benefits under the Plan for any purpose whatsoever, and any attempt to do so shall be
disregarded as null and void.
7.6.
Governing Law and Construction. This Plan shall be construed in accordance with the law of the State of California,
without regard to conflict of laws provisions, to the extent not preempted by federal law.
Adopted this 3rd day of March, 2017.

By:______________________________
Title:_____________________________
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Exhibit 21

List of Subsidiaries of
Turtle Beach Corporation
VTB Holdings, Inc.
Voyetra Turtle Beach, Inc.
PSC Licensing Corporation
Turtle Beach Europe Limited

Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Turtle Beach Corporation
San Diego, California
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S3 (File No. 333-188389 and File No. 333173017) and Form S-8 (File No. 333-171838, File No. 333-181653, File No. 333-188390 and File No. 333-193982) of Turtle Beach
Corporation of our report dated March 8, 2017, relating to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule, which
appear in this Form 10-K.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP
Stamford, Connecticut
March 8, 2017

Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Juergen Stark, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Turtle Beach Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.
Date:

March 8, 2017

By:

/s/ JUERGEN STARK
Juergen Stark
Chief Executive Officer and President

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, John T. Hanson, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Turtle Beach Corporation;

2.

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3.

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
c)

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5.

The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.
Date:

March 8, 2017

By:

/s/ JOHN T. HANSON
John T. Hanson
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the Annual Report of Turtle Beach Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016 as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), we, Juergen Stark, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and John T. Hanson,
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify to my knowledge, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the SarbanesOxley Act of 2002, that:
1.

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2.

The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.

Date:

March 8, 2017

By:

/s/ JUERGEN STARK
Juergen Stark
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date:

March 8, 2017

By:

/s/ JOHN T. HANSON
John T. Hanson
Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Secretary
(Principal Financial Officer)

